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Chairman’s Report
TREHREE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Crown International Corporation Limited (the “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, collectively referred to as the “Group”), I am pleased to
present the final results of the Group for the financial year ended 31 March
2020 (the “Current Year”).

As of 31 March 2020, the total assets of the Group reached approximately
HKS$3,280 million, and the profit attributable to the shareholders of the
Company (“Shareholders”) for the Current Year was approximately HK$9.4
million, which is increased by approximately HK$5.6 million or 147%
compare to that of the financial year ended 31 March 2019 (the “Last
Year”).

In the Current Year, the Group is principally engaged in the businesses
of property investment, property development, hotel operations,
financial consultancy service and comprehensive healthcare planning and

management services in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

This year is a year full of challenges. The Sino-US trade issues have been
complicated and capricious since the beginning from the mid-2018, but
China and the United States finally signed the first phase of the trade
agreements in January 2020, which was originally expected to have a
positive impact on the global economy. However, a coronavirus disease
with the greatest fallout in a recent century broke out. Its spread was so fast
that it had spread to every corner of the world in just three or two months,
including the largest economies such as the United States, China, Europe
and Japan. To fight against the outbreak, the strictest isolation measures
have been introduced all over the world, including the lockdown and closure
measures. The daily activities of the people must be forced to suspend, and
more importantly, the production activities have been halted, which has
seriously affected the global economy. So far, the priority of the governments
around the world is still to combat the outbreak. Although the central banks
of various countries have introduced massive bailout measures to boost the
weak economy, it is believed that the global economy can only gradually

pick up after the outbreak is contained and demand rises.
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All the three investment properties of the Group, namely B ZESE in
Zhongshan, H# KJ& in Yingkou and Jinggangshan hotel in Jiangxi, had
been leased out at the end of the year, and we had signed long-term leases
agreements with tenants for a period ranging from nine to approximately

fifteen years, ensuring the long-term rental income.

The Group’s property development project Golden Beach No. 1 project (the
“Golden Beach No. 1 Project”) located in Weihai, Shandong, the PRC is
originally expected to be completed in full in the fourth quarter of 2020.
However, affected by the outbreak of coronavirus, the construction progress
was substantially delayed. The current expected completion time for the
project will be delayed to the second half year of 2021. The Golden Beach
No. 1 Project will have a total of approximately 195,000 square metres of
the gross floor area with over 1,600 apartment suites and 360 car parking
spaces. Among which, approximately 130,000 square metres of the gross

floor area will be available for sale as serviced apartments.

According to a report issued by the independent valuer engaged by the
Group, based on (among other things) the current property price levels in
Weihai, the aggregate market value of the whole project including serviced
apartments, hotel and related retail premises and car-parking spaces is
expected to be approximately RMB2.26 billion assuming they have been
completed at the current stage. The Group believes that the Weihai property
will become a new source of income and generate stable cash flow for the

Group.
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Chairman’s Report (continued)

FTRHEEE @

During the period, the Group launched a new business, namely the
comprehensive healthcare planning and management services. According to
the China National Committee on Aging, the national elderly population
aged 60 or above will reach 248 million by 2020, with an aging level of
17%. The state has proposed to promote the construction of “Healthy
China” in the “13th Five-Year Plan” in 2015, and upgraded the construction
of “Healthy China” as a national strategy. In 2016, the State Council set
a clear goal for “Healthy China 2030” that, the total scale of the health
service industry should reach RMBI16 trillion by 2030. The report of the
19th National Congress of the CPC in 2017 also proposed “accelerating the
cause and the industry development of the aging sector”. With the steady
and rapid development of the domestic economy and the improvement of
people’s living standards, the demand for health services has risen swiftly.
The industry scale will quadruple from RMB3.8 trillion in 2015 to RMB16
trillion in 2030. The health care industry has huge development potential
and will usher in an unprecedented opportunity for development. China
will become the largest market for the global health industry. In the context
of the “Healthy China” national strategy, the health industry has become
an important engine of economic growth under the new norms. The Group
regards the comprehensive healthcare sector as one of its major targets for
future development. In the initial stage, the Group first provided planning,
research, establishment, staff training and other preliminary works as well as
the post-establishment management services to operators who are interested
in the comprehensive healthcare business. In the future, the Group may
proactively identify potential existing property projects to modify them
into high-end healthcare projects. It is also possible to develop high-
end healthcare projects through land development by ourselves. With the
cooperation of property owners and the capital operation of insurers and
financial institutions, we will jointly operate high-end healthcare projects. I
believe that the comprehensive healthcare business will provide the Group

with another sustainable business development opportunity.
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The Group creates long-term value based on its prudent and sound
p g p

governance principles and risk management. It has laid a solid foundation

for its long-term development by continuously ensuring asset quality and

financial resources.

On behalf of the Board, I would like to take this opportunity to extend our
utmost gratitude to our valued clients, Shareholders and all of the business
associates for their continued support for and confidence in the Group.
I also wish to express our sincere appreciation to our management and

employees as a whole for their positive efforts over the past years.

HUNG Man

Chairman

Hong Kong, 12 June 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis
SIREBsImMN NI

BUSINESS REVIEW

Introduction

During the Current Year, the Group was principally engaged in the
business of property investment, property development, hotel operations,
financial consultancy service and comprehensive healthcare planning and

management services in the PRC.

Property investment

The Group’s current investments in investment properties consist of the

following wholly-owned properties:

e The commercial building known as ¥ KJE ar Bayuquan District,
Kunlun Main Street West, Yingkou city, Liaoning province, the PRC
(the “Yingkou Property”);

e The hotel complex at No. 1 Lan Hua Ping Road, Ciping Town,
Jinggangshan city, Jiangxi province, the PRC (the “Jinggangshan
Property”); and

e The residential and commercial complex known as 2 FZEFE at
No. 69 Zhongshan Third Road, East District, Zhongshan city,
Guangdong province, the PRC (the “Zhongshan Property”).

Property development

The Group’s current investment in property development comprises
approximately 1,400 serviced apartment units in the project located at
Golden Beach No. 1, Golden Beach Garden, south of Bei Huan Hai Road
and east of Ren Tai Garden, Gao District, Weihai city, Shandong province,
the PRC (the “Weihai Property”) currently under development and to be
sold by the Group. The Weihai Property project is 100% owned by the
Group.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Hotel operations

The Group’s current investment in hotel operations consist of the hotel

development in the Weihai Property.

The Group’s hotel operations comprise approximately 200 hotel suites in
the Weihai Property to be managed by a world-renowned hotel group as
hotel manager under the management agreement between the Group and the

said hotel group. The hotel is still under construction at the moment.

Financial consultancy service

Due to the economic slowdown in the PRC, the Group’s business of
providing financial consultancy services to property developers in the PRC

for financing recorded no revenue during the Current Year.

Comprehensive healthcare planning and management services

The new business segment, comprehensive healthcare planning and
management services was established during the Current Year. Currently,
this new business segment includes mainly provision of comprehensive
healthcare planning and management services to healthcare business
operators, including preliminary planning, research, establishment, staff

training and post-establishment operation and management.

A. The Group’s Property Investment

(i) The Yingkou Property

The Yingkou Property is a 16-storey commercial building situated
in Yingkou city, Liaoning province, the PRC. The gross floor
area of the Yingkou Property is approximately 10,740 square
metres, and is owned by WRHIERE (B D) WIESHERAE
(“U” Inns (Yingkou) Hotel Management Corporation Limited*)
(the “Yingkou Subsidiary”), a subsidiary of the Company. The
Yingkou Subsidiary entered into two separate lease agreements in

relation to the Yingkou Property.

*  For identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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(ii)

In September 2010, the Yingkou Subsidiary as lessor entered into
a lease agreement with a bank as lessee in relation to the lease of
the second to fourth floors, as well as part of the ground floor
area, of the Yingkou Property. The lease was for ten years, with an
annual rental of RMB1.68 million for the first five years and an

annual rental of RMB1.764 million for the remaining five years.

In November 2013, the Yingkou Subsidiary as lessor entered into
a lease agreement with a local lessee in relation to the lease of the
fifth to sixteenth floors, as well as part of the ground floor area, of
the Yingkou Property. The lease was for nine years, with an initial
annual rental of RMB1.2 million for the first three years of the
lease. The annual rental shall increase by 6% after the expiration
of each three year period after the commencement date of the

lease.

The Yingkou Property is currently fully occupied due to the
abovementioned two leases. The Group considers that the
operations of the Yingkou Property has entered a stable stage. The
Group does not expect any material change to the operation of
the Yingkou Property for the duration of the current leases until

2021 and 2022 respectively.

The Jinggangshan Property

The Jinggangshan Property is a hotel complex situated in
Jinggangshan city, Jiangxi province, the PRC. The hotel complex

has a gross floor area of approximately 9,600 square metres.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

In June 2017, the Group entered into a lease agreement over
the Jinggangshan Property with a local lessee for a period of ten
years (which commenced on 8 December 2017, after the expiry
of a rent-free period of six months) until 7 December 2027.
The annual rental for each of the first three years was RMBI1.8
million and the annual rental for each of the next three years
was RMB1.9 million. Subsequently the annual rental for each of
the following three years was RMB2.0 million, while the annual
rental for the last year was RMB2.1 million. Under the terms of
the lease agreement, the local lessee shall operate hotel businesses
in the hotel complex. The local lessee undertook to renovate
and maintain the hotel complex, and to ensure that the post-
renovation complementary facilities achieve 3-Star or above in
accordance with relevant PRC standards. The lessee undertook
to pay not less than RMB10 million in renovation expenditures,
and the Group shall subsequently reimburse the renovation

expenditures of up to RMB10 million over the term of the lease.

The renovation work arranged by the local lessee has been
completed, and the hotel complex operated by the tenant has
commenced its operations. Accordingly, the Group’s business
operations of the Jinggangshan Property have also entered a stable
stage. The Group does not expect any material change to the
operation of the Jinggangshan Property for the duration of the

current lease until 2027.

The Group believes this business model will not only help the
Group generate stable rental income to the Group, but also
improve the cash flow of the Group by spreading the renovation

expenses borne by the Group over the term of the lease.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EIR 5 m MK DT (@

12

(iii) The Zhongshan Property

The Zhongshan Property is a multi-purpose complex comprising
retail floors on the lower levels and commercial and residential
floors on the upper levels. In 2015, the Group acquired the
Zhongshan Property for investment purposes. When the
acquisition was completed, the Group was of the view that the
commercial and residential floors of the Zhongshan Property were
suitable for use as economy hotels and serviced apartments, while
the retail floors were suitable for leasing to tenants operating

retail and catering businesses.

Due to the consistently rising property market in Zhongshan
city since 2015, the Zhongshan Property recorded a substantial
accumulated increase in market value since its acquisition by
the Group based on the revaluation on the Zhongshan Property
undertaken by an independent property valuer engaged by the

Group.

The Group’s management observed that the price level of the
residential properties in Zhongshan kept climbing at a moderate
rate in the financial year of 2019/20. The Group’s management
believed that such increase was attributable to the following
factors: (i) the State Council’s “Government Work Report” in
2017 officially proposed to study and formulate the development
plan for Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area (the
“Greater Bay Area”), signifying the construction of the Greater
Bay Area as a formal national strategy thereby; (ii) the opened
Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macao Bridge (the “Bridge”), the world’s
longest sea-crossing bridge-and-tunnel channel, which reduces
commuting time between Hong Kong, Zhuhai and Macau to
roughly one hour, and is open 24-hours for border crossing. The
opening of the Bridge has greatly enhanced the synergies among
the cities within the Greater Bay Area in terms of circulation
of goods, interaction of services, personnel movement and the
free flow of information; (iii) the recent development of the
Shenzhen-Zhongshan bridge and the Zhongshan metro, which
is expected to shorten the commuting time from Zhongshan to
Shenzhen and Foshan respectively upon their completion; and
(iv) the current average price per square metre of Zhuhai, which
is adjacent to Zhongshan, remain much higher than that of

Zhongshan.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

In September 2019, the Group and a local lessee entered into
a lease agreement. Pursuant to the lease agreement, the entire
Zhongshan Property including the residential units, the retail
floors and the car parking spaces were leased to the lessee for a
term commencing from 1 January 2020 to 31 March 2034. The
initial annual rent is RMB33.0 million for the first three years of
the lease commencing from 1 January 2020. The annual rental
shall increase by 3.5% after the expiration of each three year
period from 1 January 2020. Any renovation plan proposed by
the lessee must obtain prior approval from the Group and the cost

of renovation will be borne by the lessee.

The Group’s investment in Property Development

The Weihai Property

The Weihai Property consists of three high rise hotel buildings with a
total gross floor area of approximately 195,000 square metres, which
were all originally intended for hotel use. The Group’s management
observed that Weihai has become an increasingly popular destination
for the retired population in recent years which, coupled with the
rapid growth of the tourism sector, has resulted in a consistent influx
of migrants and an increased demand for properties. The Group’s
management considered such development in Weihai will continue
to benefit its hotel industry and the local property market. In light of
the above, the Group’s management resolved in the financial year of
2017/18 that approximately 130,000 square metres of the gross floor
area of the Weihai Property shall be renovated and sold as serviced

apartments.

B B R B A PR A F] (“Weihai Runhe”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, obtained the Commodity Housing
Pre-sale Permit in the third quarter of 2018, after which pre-sale of the

serviced apartments of Weihai Property started.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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As at the date of this report, the total pre-sales by Weihai Runhe
amounted to approximately RMB190 million, and the total
saleable area pre-sold is approximately 17,000 square metres.
The relevant pre-sale amounts are expected to be recognised as
revenue in the financial year of 2021/22, as the construction and
renovation works of the serviced apartment units are currently

expected to be completed in the second half year of 2021.

Financing of development of the Weihai Property

It is expected that the preliminary initial costs (excluding the land
costs which was paid by the Group through acquisition of the
offshore holding company of the PRC company for development
of the Weihai Property) for development of the Weihai Property
will exceed RMB1.0 billion. Part of the Group’s plan to finance
the development of the Weihai Property is pre-sale of the serviced

apartment units as disclosed above.

To finance the construction and renovation costs of the Weihai
Property, prior to entering the Group, Weihai Runhe through
China Everbright Bank, entered into an entrusted loan agreement
with a subsidiary of China HKBridge Holdings Limited (“China
HKBridge Loan”), under which Weihei Runhe obtained a loan
facility in the aggregate principal amount of RMB150 million,
bearing interest at 18% per annum and repayable on 24 July

2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

In November 2018, Weihai Runhe entered into an entrusted debt
investment agreement (the “Asia Alliance Asset Loan”) with Hi
B EESHAERAT, through Harbin Bank Tianjin Branch,
pursuant to which Weihai Runhe obtained a loan facility of
RMBG660 million (equivalent to approximately HK$772 million)
for a term of 3 years, bearing interest at 6.6% per annum. The
final drawdown amount was RMB500 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$584.6 million) with the remaining undrawn
facility amount lapsed. The Asia Alliance Asset Loan replaced
the China HKBridge Loan. The Group’s management believes
that substantial interest expenses will be saved through the
replacement of China HKBridge Loan which was of a higher
interest rate, thus lowering the construction finance costs of the
Weihai Property. Meanwhile, the Asia Alliance Asset Loan will
provide the Group with sufficient liquidity, improving the chance
for the Group to secure the Golden Beach No.1 Project — phase
IL.

The Management considered that the Weihai Property would be
sufficiently financed through (i) the cash flow generated from
pre-sale of the serviced apartments; (ii) loan facilities such as the
facilities mentioned above: (iii) financing of the development
costs by contractor for obtaining interest return from the Group;
and (iv) other capital arrangements as may be entered into by the

Group from time to time.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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C. The Group’s Hotel Operations C. ARS8

16

The Weihai Property

Among the three buildings of the Weihai Property, the highest one of
which would partially be built into a hotel in the future. Affected by
the outbreak of COVID-19, the construction progress was severely
hindered. The estimated completion time will be delayed from original
estimation in the fourth quarter of 2020 to the second half year of
2021. The main building of the Weihai Property is expected to stand
approximately 149.8 metres in height, making it a landmark along the
Golden Beach in Weihai. It is also expected to be the highest building
in Weihai.

When the Group completed the acquisition of the Weihai Property
in September 2017, it acquired, along with the Weihai Property, the
benefit of a management agreement with a world-renowned hotel
group as hotel manager. Under the said management agreement, the
hotel manager will, among other things, provide certain consultancy,
design and monitoring services in the course of the development of
the hotel floors, and manage the operation of the hotel premises after
completion of the development. The hotel is expected to achieve a
5-star international standard and target high-end business and leisure

travelers.

The hotel complex is under construction at the moment. Upon
completion of the construction and renovation works (expected to be
in the second half year of 2021), the hotel is expected to provide about

200 luxury suites and rooms.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

The Group’s Financial Consultancy Service

Due to the sustained slowdown in the economy of the PRC, the
provision of financial consultancy services business to the real estate
developers in need of financing, which was the main service provided
by the Group under this segment in the past, was also greatly affected
in the Current Year and thus did not record any revenue for the
Current Year. However, the Group believes that the PRC market
potential is still huge and it may adjust its operating model in future
to not only focus on providing financial consultancy services to real
estate developers, but also build more financing platforms for other
companies with a view to capturing market opportunities and increased

income therefrom.

The Group’s Comprehensive Healthcare Planning and
Management Services

The new business segment, comprehensive healthcare planning and
management services was established during the Current Year. The
Group has succeeded in attracting professional teams with extensive
experience in these sectors and has comprehensive project resources
and customer network. This business segment has already contributed
revenue to the Group during the Current Year. This business is aiming
to operate with the goal of building the brand of “Grandlife Healthcare
Group”. Currently, this segment services mainly focus on provision
of comprehensive healthcare planning and management services such
as preliminary planning, research, establishment, staff training and
post-establishment operation and management to healthcare business

operators.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EIR 5 m MK DT (@

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Key Performance Indicators

S5 ol B
2 B 3

For the year ended 31 March
BREZHA=1—HIL4EE

2020 2019
“ERORE DR AE
HK$’000 HKS$’000
T# L T# T
Revenue L& 14,914 5,371
Profit attributable to owners of the Company A F) A N AR i A 9,379 3,791
Earnings per share (HK cent) & A (WAl 0.27 0.11
As at 31 March
R=HAH=1+—H
2020 2019
“RRE EFNE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# T Tt
Gross assets A 3,275,774 3,270,544
Net assets attributable to owners of the Company AN FBEA N AL 3G A 1,901,146 2,027,821
Cash and bank balances 4 T RAT K 13,692 167,073
Borrowings fH& 598,503 598,046
Net borrowings/net assets attributable to owners of A A B AR A F A A\ AL
the Company T 30.8% 21.3%

Revenue

Revenue amounted to approximately HK$14.9 million for the Current
Year, representing an increase of approximately HK$9.5 million or
approximately 177.7% as compared to that of approximately HK$5.4
million for the Last Year. The increase in revenue was that for the Current
Year, other than the usual rental income of our two investment properties,
the Jinggangshan Property and the Yingkou Property, there was also rental

income from the Zhongshan Property. In addition, the new business

W i

segment of comprehensive healthcare planning and management services i ©

also contributed to the Group revenue of approximately HK$0.3 million for

the Current Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses amounted to approximately HK$11.1 million for
the Current Year, representing a decrease of approximately HK$12.1 million
or approximately 52.2% as compared to that of approximately HK$23.2
million for the Last Year. The significant decrease in other operating
expenses was mainly due to the fact that a very significant portion of the
leasing expense in the past was now accounted for as depreciation of right-
of-use assets in accordance with the adoption of HKFRS 16. Depreciation
of right-of-use assets was included in depreciation on property, plant and
equipment in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income by the
Group, which was not included in other operating expenses. However,
the leasing expense of HK$7.1 million was otherwise included in other
operating expenses in the Last Year. In addition, the Group also strictly
controlled expenses during the Current Year, which greatly reduced other

operating expenses as a whole.

Finance costs

Finance costs amounted to approximately HK$1.1 million for the Current

Year, which is similar to that of HK$0.9 million last year.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

For the Current Year, the Group recorded a net profit attributable to owners
of the Company of approximately HK$9.4 million (Last Year: approximately
HK$3.8 million), an increase of approximately HK$5.6 million as compared

to that of the Last Year.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

For the Current Year, the Group’s sources of fund primarily included
income generated from business operations and proceeds from issuance
of bonds, which were used in our business operations and investment and

development of projects.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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The Group expects that income generated from business operations and
borrowings will continue to be the main sources of funds in the coming year.
Therefore, the Group will continue to strengthen cash flow management,
improve the efficiency of capital returns on projects and stringently control
the cost and various expenses. Besides, the Group will continue to look for
opportunities to cooperate with foreign and domestic investors, in order to
provide other sources of funding for the expansion of projects and business

development.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had bank balances and cash of
approximately HK$13.7 million as compared to the bank balances and cash
of approximately HK$167.1 million as at 31 March 2019.

The Group had net current assets amounting to approximately HK$226.5
million as at 31 March 2020, against approximately HK$870.3 million as
at 31 March 2019. The Group’s current ratio (i.e. current assets divided by
current liabilities) was approximately 1.2x as at 31 March 2020 as compared

with approximately 4.9x as at 31 March 2019.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s net debt gearing ratio (i.e. net
debt divided by equity attributable to owners of the Company) was
approximately 30.8% (31 March 2019: 21.3%). Net debt comprises total

borrowings less cash and cash equivalents and restricted bank balances.

BONDS ISSUED

On 9 April, 2019, the Company issued a 7% per annum bonds in a total
principal amount of HK$40,500,000 maturing on the second anniversary
of the issue date of the bonds at the placing price equal to 100% of the
principal amount of the bonds. As at 31 March 2020, the total outstanding
amount of the bonds issued was HK$55,500,000 (31 March 2019:
HKS$15,000,000).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Capital expenditure of the Group for the Current Year included expenditure
on fixed assets and investment properties of approximately HK$42.1 million
(Last Year: approximately HK$38.0 million) and approximately HK$1.5

million (Last Year: approximately HK$1.2 million) respectively.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND
COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2020,

(a) the Group did not have any material contingent liabilities or

guarantees (31 March 2019: Nil); and

(b) the Group has capital expenditure for hotel properties contracted
for but not provided in the consolidated financial statements in
the amount of approximately HK$121.1 million (31 March 2019:
HK$179.3 million) in respect of the construction of the hotel

properties.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, the Group’s interests in the Weihai
Property, and the equity interests in a PRC subsidiary which control the
Weihai Property were pledged to an independent third party as security for
borrowings with outstanding amount of RMB500.0 million (equivalent
to: approximately HK$546.0 million (31 March 2020); approximately
HK$585.0 million (31 March 2019)).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Company is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and is mainly responsible
for corporate financing and administration, and engaged in investment
holding. The business of the Company’s subsidiaries primarily involves
operations and investments in the PRC, with revenue and expenditure
denominated in Renminbi. If necessary, the Group will consider using
forward exchange contracts to hedge against foreign exchange exposures. The
main foreign exchange exposure is from Renminbi; however as both revenue
and expenditure of the Group’s business are dominated in Renminbi, the
Directors believe that the Group does not have significant foreign exchange

exposure.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS, DISPOSALS AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

There was no material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries and associated

companies by the Group for the Current Year.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, the Group did not hold any
significant investments (31 March 2019: Nil).

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had a total of 55 employees (31 March
2019: 47 employees), including executive Directors. The remuneration and
staff cost for the Current Year were approximately HK$13.8 million (Last
Year: approximately HK$14.7 million). The Group’s remuneration policy
and packages for the executive Directors and senior management were
determined by the remuneration, quality and nomination committee of
the Company while those for other employees were reviewed and approved
by the chief executive officer of the Company. The Group remunerates
its employees based on industry practice and the performance of each
individual. The Group also offers discretionary bonuses, medical insurance
and defined contribution retirement plans, and provides a share option

scheme for its employees and executive Directors.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The current principal business of the Group includes property investment,
property development, hotel operations, provision of financial consultancy
service and provision of comprehensive healthcare planning and

management services in the PRC.

For the property investment, the three investment properties of the Group,
namely EHLZEM in Zhongshan, W K)E in Yingkou and Jinggangshan
hotel in Jiangxi, have all been leased, signing long-term lease agreements
ranging from around 9 to 15 years, which has guaranteed its long-term
rental income and a stable annual cash inflow for the Group, thereby
allowing the Group to focus on developing other business with the bulk of

its resources and energy.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

For the property development, pre-sale of the apartment units of the Golden
Beach No. 1 Project phase I located in Weihai, Shandong province, the
key project of the Group, has commenced in the third quarter of 2018.
The project was originally expected to be completed and delivered in the
fourth quarter of 2020. However, affected by the outbreak of COVID-19,
the construction progress is severely hindered and the latest estimated
completion time will be delayed to the second half year of 2021. The Group
will then be able to recognise sales revenue from the Golden Beach No. 1
Project phase I in the financial year of 2021/22. In addition, the Group is
conducting in-depth research on the Golden Beach No. 1 Project phase II in
Weihai, next to its phase I, and may continue with development of the Phase

II, expecting these two projects to create synergies.

For the hotel operations, the Golden Beach No. 1 Project phase I located
in Weihai, Shandong province is still under construction. Also affected by
the outbreak of COVID-19, the hotel is expected to be completed and start
business in the second half year of 2021. The hotel portion of the Golden
Beach No. 1 Project phase I, becoming a new landmark and the highest
building of Weihai city, Shandong province, will be managed by a world-
renowned hotel management company, making it the first international five-

star hotel of the city.

Suffering from the global weak economy, the financial consultancy service
business is not able to maintain its revenue level. The Group is studying to
adjust the development direction of its financial consultancy service to adapt

to the current market situation.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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The new business segment of comprehensive healthcare planning and
management business was established during the Current Year. Currently,
the comprehensive healthcare business planning and management services
includes provision of services to healthcare business operators, including
preliminary planning, research, establishment, staff training and post-
establishment operation and management. The Group has succeeded in
attracting professional teams with extensive experience in these sectors and
has comprehensive project resources and customer network. It is expected
this business segment would contribute to the revenue and earnings for
the Group in future. Furthermore, the Group is also identifying potential
property projects, in future, the Group may through various methods such
as acquisition of property projects or cooperation with property owners
to modify property projects into high-end healthcare projects or even
develop healthcare projects through land development by ourselves and
combined with the capital operation of insurance companies and financial
institutions to jointly operate healthcare projects. To cope with this
development, the Group intends to raise up to USD200 million through
bond issuance to support the related capital expenditures. The concept of
comprehensive healthcare will become an important goal of the Group’s

future development.

At the beginning of 2020, the outbreak of the COVID-19 affected the
global economy. Various countries have implemented isolation measures,
interrupting people’s exchanges, stopping production, cutting off the supply
chain, and preventing normal trade. To save the weak economy, central
banks of various countries have launched unprecedented bailout measures.
We believe that when the epidemic stabilises and demand rises, the global

economy, including China, is expected to recover quickly.

The Group is fully confident in its future development.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The main businesses of the Group include property investment, property
development, hotel operations, financial consultancy service and
comprehensive healthcare planning and management services in the PRC.
Since all the main businesses of the Group are concentrated in China, the
main risks and uncertainties of the Group have been closely related to the

demand, economic performance and political environment in China.

The outbreak of the novel coronavirus pneumonia in China in early 2020
severely affected the normal life in China with unprecedented measures
such as the nationwide lockdown and the closure of customs, the suspension
of production activities and markets and the prohibition of foreign entry.
During the epidemic, normal business transactions, factory production
activities and other activities were forced to suspend. The entire economic
circle and supply chain suffered heavy losses and demand was severely
weighed down. However, under the sturdy and effective control of the
Chinese government, the epidemic has gradually eased, and therefore, China
has recovered earlier than the European countries and the United States,
taking the lead in the economic recovery. However, if the novel coronavirus
pneumonia epidemic relapses in the future or even becomes endemic which
will continue to affect the economic environment, the longer the duration,

the more it will affect the operations of the Group.

Since a large portion of the Group’s business resources are invested in
property investment and property development, China’s macro-control
policies on the real estate industry are also the main source of risks for
the Group. Based on the experience of the past ten years or more, the
Chinese government’s regulation of the domestic real estate industry highly
depends on the economic situation. When the economy is overheated, the
government will introduce regulatory policies such as restricting purchases
and prices, restricting project loans and restricting mortgages to curb an
overheated economy. On the other hand, in times when the economy
suffers, the government may relax the relevant policies again. The domestic
economy has been greatly damaged because of the outbreak of the novel
coronavirus pneumonia. It is expected that the Chinese government will
launch many economic stimulus measures to save the economy, from which

the real estate industry is expected to benefit.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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China has a wide range of taxes for the real estate industry, such as land
value-added tax, real estate tax, value-added tax, urban construction tax and
education surcharges and corporate income tax. The real estate industry is
far more taxed than other industries. Thus, changes in taxation policies will

have a significant impact on the profitability of the Group.

According to data from the People’s Bank of China, the exchange rate
of RMB to Hong Kong dollars fell from RMB100 to HK$116.82 at the
beginning of the 2019/2020 financial year to RMB100 to HK$109.45 at
the end of the year, representing a drop of 6.3%. As the Group mainly
holds assets located in China, both the Group’s total assets and net assets
accounted for in Hong Kong dollars declined. If the RMB exchange rate
falls further, the total assets and net assets of the Group will also decline

accordingly.

In addition to the abovementioned risks and uncertainties, the Group’s
analysis on the credit risk and liquidity risk is detailed in the note 3.1

financial risk management of the consolidated financial statements.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Current Year, as far as the Company is aware, there was no
material breach of or non-compliance with applicable laws or regulations by
the Group that has a material adverse impact on the business and operations

of the Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises that employees are its valuable assets. The Group’s
employee management focuses on recruiting and developing talents. Staff
performance is measured on a regular and structured basis to provide
employees with appropriate feedback and to ensure their alignment with the
Group’s corporate strategy. The Group also understands that maintaining
a good long-term relationship with business partners is one of its primary
objectives. Accordingly, the management has used its best endeavours to
maintain good communications, promptly exchanged ideas and shared
business updates with them when appropriate. During the Current Year,
there was no material or significant dispute between the Group and its

customers, suppliers and business partners.
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Executive Directors

Ms. HUNG Man, formerly known as Xiong Shu Min, (“Ms. HUNG”),
Chairman of the Board (“Chairman”), chief executive officer (“CEQO”),
Chairman of the Executive Committee and (“Executive Committee”)
Member of the Remuneration, Quality and Nomination Committee
(“RQNC”) of the Company

Aged 51, Ms. HUNG was appointed as an executive Director, the
Chairman, CEQO, chairman of the Executive Committee and member of
the RQNC on 28 March 2019. She invested in securities and real estate
in Hong Kong in the 1990s. In 2012, Ms. HUNG acquired shares in
Crown Landmark Corporation (“CLC” and, together with its subsidiaries,
the “Crown Landmark Group”) and participated in the operations
and management of the Crown Landmark Group, which eventually
acquired a controlling equity interest in the Company in 2014. Under
her management, the Crown Landmark Group expanded its various
operations, and she accumulated years of experience in operating a business

conglomerate.

Ms. HUNG has substantial participation in non-profit and charitable
activities. She is currently serving as director of the Crown International
Foundation Limited, vice chairperson of the board of governors of the Hong
Kong Guangan Development and Promotion Association, and honorary
chairperson of the 14th term board of governors of the Hong Kong Alumni
Association of Huagiao University. She was a director of each of the 38th
term and the 39th term board of directors, vice chairperson of the 40th term
board of directors and is currently the vice chairperson of the 41st term

board of directors, of Yan Oi Tong.
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Directors’ Biographies (continued)
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Mr. LI Yong Jun (“Mr. LI”), Vice Chairman of the Board and Member of
the Executive Committee

Aged 51, Mr. LI was appointed as an executive Director, vice Chairman of
the Board, and member of the Executive Committee on 3 May 2018. He
holds a Master of Business Administration in management from Cheung
Kong Graduate School of Business, and holds the qualification of senior
engineer in the PRC. Mr. LI has over 20 years’ experience in enterprise
strategic decision making and corporate management. He is the president
of Yong Xin Hua Holdings Group Co., Led. (7K 3 4 i £ [ A BR 2 #] )
together with its subsidiaries, the “YXHY Group”). The YXHY Group was
founded by Mr. LI in 2003 with its headquarters located in Beijing. The
YXHY Group’s major businesses cover industries real estate development,
cultural tourism investment, and internet big data services. Its business
scope covers cultural tourism real estate development, financial and real
estate investment, construction and operation of cultural experience parks,
investment in cultural and creative industries, internet big data services
and art and finance industry, etc. Under his leadership, the YXHY Group
expanded into a national diversified group. Mr. LI has been appointed as
a non-executive director of HKBridge Financial Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 2323) (“HKBridge”), a company listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange, on 30 August 2019. He has been further appointed as the
chairman of the board of directors of HKBridge since 6 April 2020.

Mr. LI is also the Asia chairman of the Global Hope Coalition (of which
the Director-General of UNESCO is the Honorary President), the vice
chairman of the China Industry University Research Collaboration
Association, and the vice chairman of the China Intangible Cultural

Heritage Protection Association.

Mr. LIU Hong Shen (“Mr. LIU”), Vice Chairman of the Board and
Member of the Executive Committee

Aged 60, Mr. LIU was appointed as a non-executive Director of the
Company (a “NED”) on 27 May 2014 and also appointed as the vice
Chairman of the Board on 2 July 2014. He was re-designated as an executive
Director and member of the Executive Committee on 1 November 2015. He
obtained a bachelor’s degree in Chinese Literature from Yunnan University

in China.

As an entrepreneur, Mr. LIU has many years of experience in commerce,
especially in real estate development in both residential and commercial
properties. He and his business partners have invested in and developed both

residential and commercial properties.

Crown International Corporation Limited
2 8 Annual Report 2019/2020

R4 (T4 4]) - wA W &
AT & B H

S1BE » BRAER ZF — NFRLA = HEERAL
BT ES - EREGR R AT EEER
ERKEEECRPIN R T MN TS R T A
S A P R A T A o 200 A i S
SR e SR B o ) A B AL O i R A A
A0 o 0 BUAT: K 7 2 4 B AR A PR A 7] (7
Ie) L B J 2 ) - R [ RORT e e e 2 1 ] ) 3
IS o JRORT HE P i SR W 2SR AR AL R R
A B AL I AL A o AORT 8 1 B A ] 32 %
e = 7 3 b g B 8% - SOAb R O B % LB
AR OR S R 785 - L S 785 0 8 25 SR b 7 B
B S b B - SCAL G I I
B OGRS ~ B A K R I B
T B 4l 2 3 4 o AR AR A BT - KO 2
V2 e 5 VL 9 o T 2 M 25 T AL AR I A ]
PR IVENAZTH o BRERRESR
A 9 A PR W] (Je Ay AR9% < 2323)
(T4 1) > —ZR B B EAR BT Z A F Ay
FERATEF S MR ZFZFENANHE
WEERBBZERTG LN -

2 A [ WR 4 T 2 BR A BB o i O i
(I &5 B BB SCAL A AR Sl 2B ) ~ b
I 7 BT 5 5 A0 MR 3 T R B B R
SCAU R R 1 o

AL (TR A]) - wA 1w K&
AT & B H

GOBK > BB AN “F—~WELH = +-EH
BRAEBAAFERTER (TR
) AR F-NELCH HERMTAE
FEE B PR —F-HET A A
WERATERRUTZEGZHE -
(ERUTES PN ST 2 E A

Yl — A5 BB AR LR
Fe T SE W) 36 2 5 M B 9% 5 T B R 25 AR A
B o M B H B — B R BT R
[EEZ/ES



Directors’ Biographies (continued)

Mr. MENG Jin Long (“Mr. MENG”), Member of the Executive
Committee

Aged 35, Mr. MENG was appointed as a NED on 27 May 2014. He was
re-designated as an executive Director and member of each of the Executive
Committee and the RQNC on 19 September 2014. Mr. Meng was further
appointed as the Chairman and the chairman of the Executive Committee
during the period from 31 March 2015 to 27 March 2019. He was the CEO
during the period from 31 March 2015 to 6 October 2016. He obtained a
bachelor’s degree in Business Administration from Jing Qiao University in

China.

Mr. MENG joined the Crown Landmark Group in May 2012. Before
joining the Crown Landmark Group, he was a sales manager at a real estate
investment company in Beijing. Mr. MENG assisted in land and property
development, shopping mall leasing and management and managed the sale

and lease of several real estate projects.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LONG Tao (“Mr. LONG”), Chairman of the Audit Committee and
Member of the RQNC

Aged 67, Mr. LONG was appointed as an independent Non-executive
Director of the Company (an “INED”) and the chairman of the audit
committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) and a member of
the RQNC on 27 May 2014. He graduated from Research Institute for
Fiscal Science, the Ministry of Finance, majoring in accounting. He holds a

master’s degree in Economics.

Mr. LONG is currently the chairman of Beijing Haiwen Venture Capital,
Ltd., an independent non-executive director of each of Qingling Motors
Company Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1122), UBS SDIC Fund Management Company
Limited, Beijing Whoswho Culture and Media Company Limited, Beijing
Wangfujing Group Company, Limited (At ERFHEE BB HRAF ),
a company whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock

code: 600859) and Aimer Company Limited ( B 540 A MR H] )

SB[/ @

MWL (TREL]D MITZRHAAMA

35ik > mBEN F-NERH =+ H#E
ZEBAAF AT HEF - WR _F 1
FEATIE B R AT ES WITZER
ToULHM REAKRLETETZIRE -
mEERF-HEZA=ZT—HE %
—EZHA LA SRR
ERBEATZRETER R F-RE=
HE+F—HEZZFANFEHH AN HBIRHY %
AT R o ABHE A5 v B A R B T A LR
R A

FAB A T — AR T A R 4R
P o A T T N B2 5 L e 5 T - R Sl i —
J M 7 BB o W) 98 A B AR B o ol S A T B
e Ry SE PR - R A A B DL R
BRI EIHH Z 38 AL -

18 30 JE P AT

WA (THEL]D) BEZHRT LR R
W REARRAZHARA

678k > HESEE R —“F—MERA —+EH#
TAER AN GBI AT H - RN B
ZEW ([BEZRHG]) 10 - LRHM -
RELRBZ BT H o 05387 M BOR
S R BRI S T VG 5 R o A A AR
BAE LB

2 BT oI i D 0 SRR B Al 8 A LA
PR A A R B IKEH R A R AF (—
T e Ay 7% B A2 P b v 2z 2 R e A ARBE
1122) ~ BB B SR IE & 45 BT IR A ] ~ hAb 4
N SCACAGEBE A7 R 2 ]~ b R F 4R
JBeAn A R ) (— [ JBe Ay i 38 58 27 32 5 e
Eii 2 AT > BArREE 1 600859) K HE A
ARA T Z WL IERATE S -

SRR ERAE H A R A 29
2019/2020 4E



Directors’ Biographies (continued)
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Mr. LONG has extensive knowledge and experience in corporate finance,
accounting, audit, asset appraisal, enterprise restructuring and listing. Mr.
Long had served as an associate professor at the Accountancy Division of
Central University of Finance and Economics, and the New York office of
KPMG Peat Marwick. He had acted as a member of the Securities Issue and
Approval Committee of the China Securities Regulatory Commission and
a member of the Chinese Accounting Expert Panel for China-Hong Kong

Securities Team.

Mr. REN Guo Hua (“Mr. REN”), Chairman of the RQNC and Member
of the Audit Committee

Aged 63, Mr. REN was appointed as an INED and the chairman of the
RQNC and a member of the Audit Committee on 27 May 2014. He
obtained a bachelor’s degree in English and American literature from East

China Normal University.

Mr. REN is currently the senior advisor of StormHarbour Securities (Hong
Kong) Limited. He has many years of experience in financial investment
products. Mr. REN served in various global financial institutions and has
many years of experience in international banking and investment market.
He was a managing director of Greater China Origination in StormHarbour
Securities (Hong Kong) Limited and the general manager of Sinolink
Financial Leasing Company Limited. Before that, Mr. REN was a managing
director and head of capital markets of China region in Standard Chartered
Bank Hong Kong and had made valuable contributions to the debt and
fixed income business for the bank. In his earlier career, he also served
in Commonwealth Bank of Australia Hong Kong, Fleet National Bank
Shanghai Representative Office, True Stand Investments Limited (Hong
Kong), Bear Stearns and Bank of China.
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Directors’ Biographies (continued)

Mr. CHEN Fang (“Mr. CHEN”), Member of the Audit Committee and
Member of the RQNC

Aged 61, Mr. CHEN was appointed as an INED and a member of each
of the Audit Committee and the RQNC on 27 May 2014. He obtained a
graduate degree in Technical Economy from Harbin Institute of Technology

in China.

Mr. CHEN is currently the president of Beijing GZT Network Technology
Inc. He has many years of experience in corporate governance as well as
enterprise development and restructuring. Mr. CHEN has also established
a valuable network in the business communities. He was the Dean of
the Institute of IT and Social Development Research of the Chongqing

Technology and Business University.
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Corporate Governance Report
EXEGHRS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES

The Board presents the corporate governance report of the Group for the

Current Year.

While focusing on its business development with full force, the Company
places great effort in upholding its corporate governance standards as we
believe good corporate governance is an important component in striving for

the highest returns to the Sharcholders.

The Company’s principles of corporate governance emphasise on a
quality Board, sound internal controls, independence, transparency of
information and accountability to all stakeholders. Both the Board and the
Group’s management are committed to continuously improving corporate
governance practices and an ethical corporate culture as the intrinsic value of

the Company.

The Company is maintaining a high standard of corporate governance with
a view to enhancing the management of the Company as well as preserving
the interest of its Sharcholders as a whole. The Company has complied with
the applicable code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code”) and Corporate Governance Report contained in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

(the “Listing Rules”) save as disclosed below.

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Ms. HUNG served as both the Chairman and the
CEO, such practice deviates from the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.
By taking into the account the current circumstances of the Group as a
whole, the Board considers Ms. HUNG, being a key leader of the Group,
as a suitable candidate to be the CEO, ensuring consistent direction with
the Group and enables more effective and efficient overall strategic planning
for the Group. The Board will consider splitting the roles of Chairman and
CEOQ at a time when it is appropriate. Therefore, the Board believes that the
deviation from the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code is applicable in
such circumstance. Also, under the supervision of the Executive Committee
which is comprised of four executive Directors, the Board is appropriately
structured with a balance of power to provide sufficient checks to protect the

interest of the Company and the Shareholders.

Under code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the board
should attend the general meetings of the company and invite the chairman
of the committees to attend; Under code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code,
independent non-executive directors and other non-executive directors
should attend general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of
the views of shareholders. However, due to other business commitment, Mr.
LONG Tao, the chairman of the Audit Committee and an INED, and Mr.
CHEN Fang, an INED, did not attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 9 September 2019.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

THE BOARD

Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises a total of seven
Directors, being four executive Directors and three INEDs. The list of
Directors is set out in the section headed “Report of the Directors” of this
annual report. The Company has also maintained on its website and on the
Stock Exchange’s website an updated list of the Directors identifying their
role and function and whether they are INEDs.

The Board is committed to maintaining a balanced composition in terms
of its diversity of experience, expertise and independence. The Directors’
biographical information is set out in the section headed “Directors’

Biographies” on pages 27 to 31 of this annual report.

Each Director gives sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the Group.
All Directors are required to disclose to the Company at the time of their
appointment and annually the number and the nature of offices held in
public companies or organisations and other significant commitments with

an indication of the time involved.

Save for those as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ Biographies”
of this annual report, the Board members do not have any other financial,

business, family or other material/relevant relationships with each other.

Directors’ continuing professional development

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, the Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. The purpose of the code provision is to get
the Directors involved in the Board with an awareness of contribution
thereto. Directors are continually updated on the latest development
of the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance practice. During the
Current Year, all Directors, have participated in appropriate continuous
professional development activities by ways of reading materials relevant
to the Company’s business or to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities.
All Directors have been required to provide the Company their records of

training received for the Current Year.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
EXEBRS @

Board diversity policy

The Board adopted the board diversity policy on 4 September 2013
which sets out the approaches to achieve diversity on the Board. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board
to enhance the quality of its performance. Further, the Company sees
increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and sustainable development. In
designing the Board’s composition, board diversity has been considered
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. All the Directors’ appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against the objective criteria, having due

regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises seven members
coming from various professional backgrounds including property
development, accounting and corporate governance, etc. The Board is of
the view that the current Board has provided a good balance of skills and
experience to the Company and will continue to review its composition

from time to time.

The board diversity policy is posted on the website of the Company.

Directors’ nomination and appointment

Since April 2006, the Company has adopted the “Procedures on Directors’
Nomination, Appointment and Re-appointment” which sets out the
procedures, processes and criteria to select and recommend candidates for

directorship.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles of
Association”), the Board is empowered to appoint a Director to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Shareholders (being two or
more Shareholders together holding not less than ten per cent. of the entire
issued shares of the Company) are empowered to nominate candidates for
directorship and subject to Shareholders’ approval at the general meeting of
the Company. The RQNC can also nominate candidates for directorship for
appointment by the Board. Any Director appointed by the Board during the
year shall hold office until the next annual general meeting of the Company

(the “AGM”) and be eligible for re-election.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

The determination of the emoluments of Directors is based on the duties
and responsibilities of the individual Director by reference to the prevailing

market conditions.

The Company has purchased directors’ and officers’ liability insurance for

all Directors.

Remuneration of Directors

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the Current Year are set out in

Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

Board practices

The Board holds meetings regularly at least four times a year. Additional
meetings will be arranged, if and when required. All Directors are given
opportunities to include matters in the meeting agenda. Generally, notice
of at least 14 days is given for a regular Board meeting. Reasonable notice
will be given for all other Board meetings. Minutes are kept by the company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”’) and available for
inspection by the Directors. Directors have separate and independent access
to the Company’s senior management, and full and unrestricted access to
relevant information in a timely manner with appropriate information in
such form and of such quality as will enable them to make an informed
decision and discharge their duties and responsibilities. The Board ensures
that Directors are provided with sufficient resources in the furtherance of
their duties as Board/committee members, including access to independent

professional advice, if necessary, at the Company’s expense.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
EXEBRS @

During the Current Year, 16 Board meetings were held and the attendance

record is set out below:

Directors

o

Ms. HUNG Man e &+t
M. LI Yong Jun 2K S A
Mr. LIU Hong Shen BIAL R e A
Mr. MENG Jin Long A e A A
Mr. LONG Tao HE i B A
Mr. REN Guo Hua EREE 3
Mr. CHEN Fang B S

*  The 2019 AGM held on 9 September 2019.

Independence

The Company believes that independence brings unbiased judgment and
conscience in decision making. The Board currently comprises three INEDs.
One of the INEDs possesses accounting expertise as required under Rule
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. The Board received from each INED a written
confirmation of his independence and was satisfied with his independence as

required by the Listing Rules.

According to article 133 of the Articles of Association, one-third of the
Directors who served longest on the Board since they were last elected, shall
retire but shall be eligible for re-election at the AGM. Pursuant to code
provision A.4.2 of the CG Code, every Director shall retire by rotation at
least once every three years. The Board will ensure that each Director shall
retire by rotation in the above manner in order to comply with the code

provisions of the CG Code.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

According to article 133 of the Articles of Association, a Director appointed
to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board is subject to re-election

by Shareholders at the first AGM after his/her appointment.

Any re-election of an INED who has served the Board for more than
nine years, should be subject to a separate resolution to be approved by

Shareholders.

Relationship

All the Directors do not have any financial, business, family or other

material/relevant relationship with one another.

Independent non-executive Directors

Each of the INEDs has entered into a service agreement with the Company
for a term of three years. The term of office is subject to retirement by

rotation and re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association and

the CG Code.

As equal Board members, the INEDs give the Board and the Board
committees on which they serve the benefit of their skills, expertise and
various backgrounds and qualifications through regular attendance and
active participation. They make positive contributions to the development of
the Company’s strategy and policies through independent, constructive and

informed comments.

Their attendance to Board, Board committee and general meetings are

disclosed in other parts of this Corporate Governance Report.

The INEDs are identified in all corporate communications that disclose the

names of Directors.

Matters reserved for the Board

The Company’s “Guideline on Division of the Roles of the Board and the
Management” has set out clearly the roles of the Board and the Group’s

managcment.

Matters reserved for the Board include long term objectives and commercial
strategies, corporate and capital structures, financial reporting and controls,
internal controls, material contracts, communications, Board memberships,
remuneration, delegation of authority, corporate governance matters and

policy setting.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
EXEBRS @

The Group’s management is mainly responsible for the execution of the
business plans, strategies and policies adopted by the Board and assigned to

it from time to time.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees, including the Executive
Committee, the Audit Committee and the RQNC and delegated authority
to them for overseeing certain aspects of the Company’s affairs. There are
clear written terms of reference for the Board committees. Reports of the

Board committee meetings are presented to the Board regularly.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprises all the executive Directors. As at the
date of this annual report, the Executive Committee is chaired by Ms.
HUNG Man and the members are Mr. LI Yong Jun, Mr. LIU Hong Shen
and Mr. MENG Jin Long .

The Executive Committee is delegated to be responsible for the day-to-
day management, administration and operation of the Company and its
principal duties are clearly set out in its terms of reference. The delegated

functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all the INEDs who possess appropriate
business, legal, engineering and financial experience and skills to undertake
the review of financial statements in accordance with good practice
of financial reporting. As at the date of this annual report, the Audit
Committee is chaired by Mr. LONG Tao and the members are Mr. REN
Guo Hua and Mr. CHEN Fang.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee were revised on 31 March
2016 to reflect the additional responsibility of the Audit Committee
arising from the Stock Exchange’s amendments to risk management and
internal control under the CG Code applicable to listed companies with an

accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2016.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

The Audit Committee’s main duties, among others, are as follows:

1)

2)

3)

4

(5)

(6)

7)

®)

)

to recommend to the Board the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the independent auditor of the Company (the
“Independent Auditor”), and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the Independent Auditor, and deal with any

questions of its resignation or dismissal;

to review and monitor the Independent Auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with

applicable standards;

to discuss with the Independent Auditor on the nature and scope of the

audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

to develop and implement a policy on engaging Independent Auditor

for the provision of non-audit services;

to monitor the integrity of financial statements and to review the
annual report, interim report and financial statements and to review
significant financial reporting judgments contained therein, before

submission to the Board;

to review financial control, risk management and internal control

systems;

to discuss the internal control system with the Group’s management to
ensure that the Group’s management has performed its duty to have an
effective control system, including the adequacy of the resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the

Company’s accounting and financial reporting function;

to ensure co-ordination between the internal auditors and the

Independent Auditors;

to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced and
has appropriate standing within the Company, and to review and

monitor its effectiveness;
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
EXEBRS @

(10) to review the Independent Auditor’s management letters, any material
queries raised by the Independent Auditor to the Group’s management
about accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and

the Group’s management’s response; and

(11) to report to the Board on the matters in code provision C.3.3 of the

CG Code.

The Audit Committee held 4 meetings during the Current Year and the

attendance record is set out below:

Directors

W

Mr. LONG Tao HE WSk
Mr. REN Guo Hua A |2 3 5 A
Mr. CHEN Fang Bl 5t A

The main works performed by the Audit Committee during the Current
Year included the review of the Independent Auditor’s audit plan, the review
of the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 and
interim financial statements for the six months ended 30 September 2019
with recommendation to the Board for approval. It has also reviewed the
adequacy and effectiveness of internal control system, approved the internal
audit report and reviewed and recommended the appointment and re-

appointment of the Independent Auditor.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s audited consolidated
results for the Current Year, including the accounting principles and practice
adopted by the Group and recommended to the Board for consideration.
The Audit Committee has also recommended the re-appointment of BDO

Limited (“BDO”) as the Independent Auditor at the forthcoming AGM.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

RQNC

The RQNC comprises all the INEDs and one executive Director. As at the
date of this annual report, the RQNC is chaired by Mr. REN Guo Hua and
the members are Ms. HUNG Man, Mr. LONG Tao and Mr. CHEN Fang.

The terms of reference of the RQNC were revised on 1 January 2019 which
are available on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
Its principal duties are to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and senior
management, and to draw up procedures for formulating an incentive-based
remuneration policy. The RQNC is authorised by the Board to determine,
with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management, and is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on remuneration of NEDs. No Director or

any of his associates will be involved in deciding his own remuneration.

The RQNC is also responsible for reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board at least annually, assessing the performance of
the executive Directors, assessing the independence of INEDs, identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members, determining the
policy for the nomination of the Directors, and make recommendations to

the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors.

In determining the Company’s remuneration policy, the RQNC considers,
among other things, salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in

the Group.

The RQNC also reviews and approves compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment to ensure it is consistent with contractual terms or is otherwise

fair and not excessive.

The Company provides the RQNC with sufficient resources to perform its
duties. Where necessary, the RQNC will engage independent professional

advice at the Company’s expense.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
EXEBRS @

During the Year, the RQNC held 2 meetings and the attendance record is set

out below:

Directors

Wk

Mr. REN Guo Hua A [ 38 S A
Ms. HUNG Man 35
Mr. LONG Tao BER A
Mr. CHEN Fang Bl T 5t A

The main works performed by the RQNC during the Current Year
included review of the structure, size and composition of the Board, making
recommendations on the appointment and re-appointment of Directors and

the assessment of the independence of INEDs.

Pursuant to code provision of B.1.5 of the CG Code, the emoluments of the

members of the senior management of the Group by bands is set out below:

Remuneration Bands

AL B
Nil to HK$1,000,000 F%1,000,000% 70
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 #% 76 £1,500,0003 JC
Crown International Corporation Limited
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility to maintain a good
standard of corporate governance practices and business ethics within the

Group under the terms of reference of the corporate governance function.

Corporate governance functions

The Board is responsible for determining the policy for the corporate
governance of the Company, and performing the corporate governance

duties including:

(1) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on

corporate governance;

(2) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of the Directors and senior management;

(3) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(4) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance

manual (if any) applicable to employees and the Directors; and

(5) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report as required under the Listing
Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
EXEBRS @

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Board has adopted its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors (the “Securities Code”) on terms no less exacting
than the required standard set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having been made specific enquiries
by the Company, other than the disclosure by Ms. HUNG (as the sole
shareholder of Redstone Capital Corporation) under the section “Sufficiency
of Public Float” in the report of the Directors, all the Directors have
confirmed their compliance with the Securities Code in their securities

transactions during the Current Year.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Current
Year were audited by BDO whose term of office will expire at the conclusion
of the forthcoming AGM. The Audit Committee has recommended to the
Board that BDO be nominated for re-appointment as the Independent
Auditor at the forthcoming AGM.

BDO provides an annual audit assurance on the Company’s financial
statements. It is the responsibility of the Independent Auditor to form an
independent opinion, based on its audit, on the financial statements and
to report its opinion solely to the members, as a body, in accordance with
section 405 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”). The Audit Committee is obliged
to ensure continuing Independent Auditor’s objectivity and safeguard

independence.

For the Current Year, audit services fee and non-audit services fee amounted

to approximately HK$1.35 million and HK$0.03 million respectively.

DIRECTORS’ AND INDEPENDENT
AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements for each financial period to ensure that such financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the
results and cash flows for that period. The Company’s financial statements
are prepared in accordance with all relevant statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Directors are responsible for ensuring
that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied consistently;

and that judgment and estimates made are prudent and reasonable.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

The Directors are aware of an instalment of interest payment in respect
of the Group’s entrusted loan was past due, and the bank has the right to
request immediate repayment of the entire loan with the principal amount
of approximately HK$546,000,000 outstanding as at 31 March 2020,
together with interest and penalty payables. However, as at 31 March 2020,
the cash and cash equivalents of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$1,501,000 only. These conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Further discussion on this issue has been set
out in Note 2.1(a) to the consolidated financial statements in this Annual

Report.

Having made appropriate enquiries and examined the major areas which
will give rise to the aforesaid significant financial exposure, the Directors,
based on the cash flow projections which has been prepared on the basis that
the Group will successfully implement the plans and measures as set out in
Note 2.1(a) to the consolidated financial statements, are satisfied that the
Group will have sufficient working capital to finance its operations in the
next twelve months from 31 March 2020. In this connection, the Directors
have continued to prepare the consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis for the year ended 31 March 2020 and considered that the
Group has applied consistent accounting policies and made judgments
and estimates that are appropriate and reasonable in accordance with the

applicable accounting standards.

BDO, the Independent Auditor, has presented its responsibilities in the
Independent Auditor’s Report in respect of the Company’s consolidated
financial statements for the Current Year as set out on pages 76 to 81 of this

annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall responsibility for internal controls and reviewing
its effectiveness. Policies and procedures are in place to ensure that assets
are adequately protected against unauthorised use or disposal and that the
interests of Shareholders are safeguarded. The systems in place are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance

against material misstatement or loss.

The Board maintains an organisation structure with clearly defined levels
of responsibility and authority and appropriate reporting procedures. The
Board meets regularly and has a schedule of matters that are brought to it for
decision in order that effective control over strategic, financial, operational

and compliance issues can be maintained.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
EXEBRS @

To enable the Company to discharge its annual review responsibilities
pursuant to code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the Company has
reviewed the need for an internal audit function and considered it
appropriate to continue with the practice of outsourcing the internal audit
functions. Accordingly, the Company has engaged an external professional
internal control consultant firm, SHINEWING Risk Services Limited
(“SHINEWING”), to provide internal audit services to the Group on an

annual basis.

SHINEWING has conducted evaluation and tests in connection with the

following management’s assertions for the Current Year:
(1) the system of internal control of the Group is effective;
(2) the risk management process of the Group is effective; and

(3) effective internal controls are maintained to safeguard the Group’s

assets.

SHINEWING also formulates the annual internal audit plan and
procedures, conducts periodic independent reviews on the operations of
each division to identify any irregularities and risks, develops action plans
and makes recommendations to address the identified risks, and report to
the Audit Committee on any key findings and progress of the internal audit
process. The Audit Committee, in turn, reports to the Board on any material

issues and makes recommendations to the Board.

In strict compliance with the requirements of code provision C.2.1 of the
CG Code, the Directors keep reviewing the internal control system of the
Group and further improve the system with respect to financial control,
operational control, compliance control and risk management on top of the
comprehensive review of the internal control system conducted under the
guidance of the Board. In addition, this review also considers the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function.
The Board considers the risk management and internal control systems are

effective and adequate.

The Company will continue, where necessary, to improve its internal control

system and strengthen its risk management capability.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board, and all Directors have
access to the Company Secretary, for ensuring that the Board procedures,
applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed. The Company Secretary
is also responsible for ensuring that the Board is fully appraised of the

relevant corporate governance developments relating to the Group.

The Company Secretary complied with the professional training

requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules during the Current Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The general meetings shall be convened by the Directors on the requisition

of Shareholders pursuant to section 566 of the Companies Ordinance.

The Directors are required to call a general meeting if the Company has
received requests to do so from Shareholders representing at least 5% of
the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having a right to vote at
general meetings. A request must state the general nature of the business
to be dealt with at the meeting, and may include the text of a resolution
that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting.
Requests may consist of several documents in like form. A request may be
sent to the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form, and must be

authenticated by the person or persons making it.

The Company arranges for the notice to Shareholders to be sent for annual
general meetings at least 20 clear business days before the meeting and to be

sent at least 10 clear business days for all other general meetings.

For putting forward proposals at any general meeting or enquiries to the
Board, Shareholders shall do so in writing to the Company Secretary.
The letter shall state clearly the identity of the Shareholder, the amount
of shareholding, correspondence address and telephone number, and the
related suggestions and enquiries. The Company shall, in a reasonable and
practicable manner, pass the said matter to the Board and respond according

to the situation.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
EXEBRS @

In addition, the Company may receive letters or phone enquiries from
Sharcholders from time to time, and the Company will, in a reasonable and
practicable manner, respond as quickly as possible. For matters concerning
the Company’s shares and basic information of announcements, enquiries
shall be put forward to the Company whose contact particulars are as

follows:

Address: Suite 902, 9th Floor, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 3168 2588

Fax: (852) 3168 2599

Office Hours: 9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.

Monday to Friday (except public holidays)

The rights of Shareholders and the procedures for demanding a poll on
resolutions at general meetings are contained in the Articles of Association.
Details of such rights to demand a poll procedure are included in all relevant
circulars to Sharcholders and will be explained during the proceedings of

meetings.

Poll results will be posted on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange

and the Company following each general meeting.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for communication
between the Shareholders and the Board. Ms. HUNG Man, an executive
Director and the Chairman, attended the 2019 AGM. The chairmen of
the Audit Committee, the RQNC and the Independent Board Committee
(where applicable), or in their absence, other members of the respective

committees, are available to answer questions at the Shareholders’ meetings.

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationship with
its investors. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative and a

timely manner.

Currently, investors can assess the Company’s information through
the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company

(htep://www.crownicorp.com).
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

The Board reviews the above Shareholders’ communication policy on a

regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Pursuant to Rule 13.90 of the Listing Rules, the Company has posted its
Articles of Association on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company. During the Current Year, there was no change in the

constitutional documents of the Company.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIS -HHEBREBHRS

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Other than financial performance, environmental protection is also our key
focus. The Group is pleased to present its annual environmental, social and
governance report (the “ESG Report”) of the Group for the Current Year
in accordance with the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide under Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules. Its purpose is to report
the Group’s policies and performance regarding the environment and the
society during the Current Year, and to deepen the communication with the
stakeholders. The ESG Report covers the Group’s environmental and social
performance. The data in the ESG Report are obtained from the relevant
departments of the Group and its stakeholders. We welcome and value each
of your feedback. If you have any questions or suggestions regarding this
ESG Report, please feel free to contact us at:

Address:  Suite 902, 9th Floor, Central Plaza,

18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Telephone: +852 3168 2588

E-mail:

info@crownicorp.com

OUR PHILOSOPHY IN ESG

The Group fully understands the importance of protecting the earth, our
precious planet, and prioritising environmental and social responsibilities.
As a result, in formulating our business strategies, identifying different
potential acquisitions and investments, and fulfilling our business objectives,
one of our major criteria is to integrate our considerations in ESG into our
day-to-day operations, in order to operate the Group in a sustainable and

accountable way.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

ABOUT THE GROUP

During the Current Year, the Group was principally engaged in the
business of property investment, property development, hotel operations,
financial consultancy service and comprehensive healthcare planning and

management services in the PRC.

Property investment segment

As at 31 March 2020, the Group held three investment properties in
its portfolio: the Yingkou Property, the Jinggangshan Property and the
Zhongshan Property. While the Group earned rental income from all these
properties during the Current Year, the property investment segment is

simply an office-based operation.

The Yingkou Property is a 16-storey commercial building situated in
Yingkou, the PRC. Two separate lease agreements in relation to the Yingkou

Property are entered into with local tenants.

The Jinggangshan Property is a hotel complex. The Group entered into a

lease agreement with a local lessee for a period of ten years.

The Zhongshan Property comprises of 2 blocks of residential buildings
providing serviced apartments and commercial podium. The Group entered
into a lease agreement with a local lessee for a period of almost 15 years

commencing from 1 January 2020.

Based on the condition described above, our senior management considered
that there was no significant environmental impact generated for our
property investment segment, and we focused our efforts on controlling
resource consumption and general waste disposal in the offices located in the

PRC and also in Hong Kong.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIE-HEBKREBHRSE m

Property development and hotel operations segment

During the Current Year, the Weihai Property was still under construction
and the construction work is performed by the subcontractor, as such,
these segments are still in preparatory phase and have not yet commenced
its hotel operations, sale of remaining commercial portions and carparks.
The Group’s senior management considered that the environmental impact
from the property development segment and hotel operations segment by
the Group during the Current Year was minimal and mainly office based.
Further discussions in relation to the selection of the subcontractor are

described in the “Supply Chain Management” section below.

Financial consultancy service segment

The Group commenced its financial consultancy service segment during the
financial year of 2016/17 through its wholly owned subsidiary named 5
EEEESMAEMRAF. As this segment is also an office-based operation,
similar to the property investment segment and hotel operations segment,

our senior management focuses in environmental protection in our office.

Comprehensive healthcare planning and management

services segment

The comprehensive healthcare planning and management services was newly
established during the Current Year. Currently, this business segment mainly
focus on provision of comprehensive healthcare planning and management
services such as preliminary planning, research, establishment, staff training
and post-establishment operation and management to healthcare business
operators. Our senior management considers the environmental impact of

this new segment is relatively insignificant since the operation is mainly

office-based.

Given that all the segments are either office-based or not yet commenced
its daily operations, and that our staffs are all office-based, the Directors
consider the day-to-day office resources management is the most important

element of the Group’s ESG Report.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Office resources management

Living in the earth, our precious planet, we are accountable to build a
sustainable future for our generations and their generations. The Group
believes that everybody, including its employees, should play an important
role to protect the earth and its resources, and is committed to upholding
high environmental standards to fulfil relevant requirements under
applicable laws or ordinances during the operation of the business, including
all necessary requirements under the Environmental Protection Law of the
PRC (932 A R0 Hn [ B2 55 08 3% ) and any environmental legislation in
Hong Kong. The main influences on environment in the process of our daily

normal operation in our offices are consumption of paper, power and water.

Electricity and water consumption

Electricity consumption is the major source of indirect greenhouse gas
emission at our offices. During the Current Year, the Group consumed
approximately 222,524 kWh of electricity. The Group sets out several
comprehensive guidelines and measures in relation to energy saving to its
employees with an aim to minimise the greenhouse gas emissions from

consumed electricity. A summary of the guidelines are listed as follows.

In the offices of the Group, we maintain an indoor temperature at an
optimal level of 25° C. We clean the air conditioner and ventilation system
regularly to reduce unnecessary electricity usage. We install LED lighting
system in the offices, and we also encourage the use of natural light. We
encourage our employees to turn off all equipment, when not in use,
especially during lunch hours and after office hours. We highly encourage
our employees to make use of modern telecommunication systems, such as
telephone or video conferencing system, to minimise travel arrangements.
We put notices and signs emphasising the importance of energy saving in the

offices.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
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In relation to the consumption of water, we strictly control the frequency
of water usage, and as a result, consumption of water was saved. During
the Current Year, the Group mainly consumed water in a regular fire drill
exercise. We have not experienced any issue in sourcing water that is fit for

the aforesaid purpose.

Non-hazardous waste management

The main wastes are the domestic waste from daily operations, and the
domestic sewage generated from staff’s daily usage. The Group promotes
different environmental friendly measures to reduce disposal of non-
hazardous waste (such as used papers) in the Group’s offices. We encourage
our employees to reduce unnecessary printing and photocopying by using
double-sided copying. We also suggest the use of electronic information
systems for material sharing or internal administrative documents. We
encourage employees to treasure and conserve resources by keeping
records of the quantity of stationery and equipment and maintaining a
formal purchase requisition system. We also encourage our employees to
use proper domestic waste treatment methods, and require employees to
dispose of domestic waste to the designated collection containers or places
in accordance with the specified location and time. In offices where sorting
waste is implemented, we encourage our employees to categorise domestic
waste. Employees are prohibited from dumping or stacking domestic waste

arbitrarily.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIS - ENEBHRS @

SUMMARY OF KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS FOR SUBJECT AREA A.

ENVIRONMENT

Environmental indicators

By

Emissions
Nitrogen oxides emissions (kg)
Sulphur oxides emissions (kg)

Particulate matter emissions (kg)

Greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions

Total GHG emissions (kg of carbon dioxide
(“CO2”) equivalent)

Direct emissions (Scope 1) (kg of CO: equivalent)

Indirect emissions (Scope 2) (kg of CO:2 equivalent)

Other indirect emissions (Scope 3) (kg of CO2 equivalent)

GHG intensity (kg of CO2/number of employees)

Waste

Non-hazardous waste generated in total
— paper used (number of paper)

— toner cartridge (piece)

Hazardous waste generated in total (tons)

Use of Resources
Energy consumption in total (kWh)

Energy consumption intensity (kWh/number of employees)

Water consumption in total (m?)
Water consumption intensity (m*/number of employees)
Total amount of packaging materials used

in finished products (tons)

Note 1: No hazardous waste is generated by the Group during the Current Year. FiFsEL -

Note 2: The Group’s operations do not involve product packaging. No data is Fi3E2 -

disclosed.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
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CARING FOR EMPLOYEES

The Group considers our employees are the most important asset for
our operations and development. We aim to provide a workplace with
equal opportunity, harmony, continuous training and prospective career
opportunities for each of our employees so as to drive every one of us to
work hard and achieve our business objectives and goals. As at 31 March
2020, the Group had a total of 55 employees, including the executive
Directors. The analysis on the Group’s employees by gender, age groups,

education levels and the turnover rate by region is set out below:

b %2 08 B

A 52 [ 1L 0 B 2 S AN A R B PR A Y
B A o AN R % AL B RALBLR TR
Be o WA PR - B AR - RRERE I
WS R Z F e - B & A8
BT EREMZ AR ER A
MRE-BZRE=ZHA=Z+—H - REAMILEHSS
2R H > WREATE S o AR T B - AR
AL ~ BUE K P B4 b [ ) 4 2 3R bl R A
@ B 4 Hr il s T -

Employees by Gender Employees by Age Groups
RESMHRE D RESFHRARNE R
42%
58%
56%
® Male @ At or below 30 ® 31-50
Ligia 30 BT 31 % 50 %
Female Above 50
Lok 50 B UL I
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Employees by Education Levels

RESEHBNKFE D

9% 9%

40%
42%

@ Secondary School @ College Degree

i 52 WL
Bachelor Degree @ Master Degree or above
PN, RN

Our employees are located in Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group
complies with labour laws and regulations in Hong Kong, including the
Labour Ordinance, and in the PRC, including the Labor Law of the
PRC ("% A\ R 3L A 25 8 %) and the Labor Contract Law of the
PRC (W #E AN RILFI B % 8 & M ¥:) . The Group respects human
rights and discriminations on sex, race, ethnicity, age and religion are
strictly prohibited. The Group adopts a non-discriminatory policy in its
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion of staffs, and
focuses only on the applicants’ and staffs’ qualifications, experience and
merits. To ensure fairness, our recruitment process includes centralising
the candidate selection process by the human resources department for
Hong Kong recruitment and the general manager for the PRC recruitment,
standardising the interview assessments, and undergoing a strict vetting
process for the positions offered. We attach great importance to equal
opportunity and transparent promotions. During the Current Year, there
were no cases of child labour or forced labour occurred in the Group, and

there were no incidents of discrimination in the Group.
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Turnover Rate by Region
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
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Our compensation, working hours and rest periods are determined
by reference to our employees’ respective responsibilities, experience,
qualifications and performance. Working hours and holiday arrangements

strictly comply with the relevant labour laws and regulations.

We place strong emphasis on employee welfare and comply with the relevant
provisions of the laws in the PRC and in Hong Kong. We also aim to retain
our talents and minimise staff turnover rates. Our remuneration package
includes allowances, benefits-in-kind, medical insurance, contributions to
pension funds, discretionary bonus, as well as participation in a share option
scheme to eligible employees. Packages of each employee are reviewed and
adjusted regularly to ensure that they are up to prevailing market standard.
The Group remunerates its employees based on industry practice and the
performance of each individual. In the PRC, the Group contributes social
insurance and housing provident funds for employees and distributes
corresponding holiday benefits during holidays such as the Chinese New

Year.

We cultivate an atmosphere promoting excellence in the Group. Employees
with outstanding performance and capabilities are rewarded with financial
incentives such as bonuses and allowances, and/or attractive promotion

packages.

Training and Development

The Group believes that the more the development of the potentials of
the employees, the more prosperous the Company could grow. As a result,
it is one of the Company’s missions to place strong emphasis on career
development of its employees and provide them with extensive trainings.
Based on employees’ career development plans and needs and the specific
skills for the position, the Group offers internal training with a focus on
accounting and finance to corresponding production unit. Moreover, we
strongly encourage employees to attend any necessary external training
courses, workshops and seminars, include job-related skills training,
professional skills training and managerial training. We encourage our
employees to attend external training courses and participate in professional
lectures by providing substantial support to them, such as providing
financial support and encouraging employees to take any necessary leave for

studying.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Occupational health and safety

The Group puts the safety and health of employees as our top priority. Even
though the occupational safety and health risks of our Group’s office staffs
are relatively low and no work-related fatalities and work injury during the
Current Year, we take safety education and training seriously, and we aim to
raise employees’ awareness of safety and to prevent accidents especially fire.
The Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations that has a significant impact on the Group relating
to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from

occupational hazards during the Current Year, including the Law of the PRC

on Work Safety (13 N RIEFIE %L 2 W) | the Regulations on Work-
Related Injury Insurance of the PRC ( Hr 3 A R ILA1 B TR BEHEH] ) and

the Employee’s Compensation Ordinance in Hong Kong.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Suppliers are crucial to our businesses and operations. The Group aims
at developing on mutual trust among its suppliers. The Group adheres to
international best practices and conducts fair and unbiased tender processes
when dealing with suppliers. Our supply chain management includes a
supplier selection mechanism with a number of stringent selection criteria
subject to the core principles of honesty, integrity, fairness, justice and
transparency. Supplier selection is performed by the corresponding operation
and office managers, and the Group sets out procurement procedures
when dealing with suppliers of goods and services. In supplier selection,
the Group conducts thorough due diligence and vetting process by taking
into account of a number of selection criteria including pricing, quality
of products, company background, past experience and reputation, supply
capacity, any non-compliance of local law and regulations on existing
business, qualifications attained and financial status. Besides, the Group also
expects our major suppliers to understand the importance of environmental
protection and social responsibility and put health and safety as one of their
core principles in doing businesses. Proper internal control measures are also
in place in our procurement system to ensure each supplier engagement is

approved by the appropriate level of management.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
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The Group also monitors the quality of products and services provided
by its suppliers on a regular basis. Where the Group discovers that the
quality of products and services did not meet our standard, or their services
provided was environmental unfriendly and energy inefficient compared to
their peers in the market, they will be required to make corrective actions
in a timely manner. Otherwise, they may be suspended from any business

relationships with us.

Selection of contractor for the construction work in the
Weihai Property

During the Current Year, the Weihai Property was under construction.
Such construction was fully outsourced by the Group to an independent
contractor which is a state-owned enterprise in the PRC and was socially
responsible by participating in several reconstructions after occurrence of

natural disasters and emphasised green and low carbon construction.

The construction of the Weihai Property has already commenced since
April 2016 before it was acquired by the Group. Although the construction
work is provided by a contractor which has already been engaged, the senior
management took serious care in the background and their commitments
to the society and environment of that contractor by enquiring and
reading its ESG news and reports. During the Current Year, the project
personnel regularly monitor the progress of the construction conducted by
the contractor, and hold regular meetings with the contractor to check if
there were any toxic and harmful materials used and any contamination of
materials. We also emphasised the importance of avoidance, reduction, reuse
and recycling over disposal when managing wastes during the construction.
The Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant

laws and regulations in relation to the contraction of the Weihai Property.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

During the Current Year, the Group’s customers are from our Yingkou
Property, Jinggangshan Property and Zhongshan Property leasing operations.
Although there were only five customers during the Current Year, our
Group values mutually beneficial long standing relationships with them, and
we aim at delivering high quality services and products to our customers.
Besides, our Group is committed to protecting the information of our
tenants. Our employees are strictly prohibited to disclose the Company’s
information without authorisation, including the identity and background
and the contract terms with the tenants. We also make timely response to
any inquiries and renewal quotations from our tenants. The Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations in

relation to our products and services provided.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

To maintain a fair, ethical and efficient business and working environment,
the Group stresses great importance to anti-corruption measures to every
stakeholders including our employees, suppliers, customers and bankers.
Any form of corruption, especially fraud, extortion, bribery and money
laundering is strictly prohibited. We regularly remind our employees not
to accept gifts or rebates from suppliers or other stakeholders under any
circumstances, and not to receive or accept any gratification from any
persons, companies or institutions whom the Group has business dealings
with. To our external stakeholders such as suppliers, customers, professional
parties and bankers, we are committed to individual and business integrity,
adhering to the business ethics of honesty, integrity, fairness, mutual benefit,
and customer first. During the Current Year, there was no non-compliance
case noted in relation to bribery, extortion, fraud, money laundering
and corruption related laws and regulations, including the Anti-Unfair
Competition Law of the PRC ( H# 32 \ RIEAIE X A IEH 3 F 4 ) and the
Interim Provisions on Prohibiting Commercial Bribery (B 25 ik 7 3 i
WEAT A W 4T B2 ) formulated by the State Administration for Industry
and Commerce (K LT B AR ) .

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group adheres to the belief of “taking from society, and giving back to
society”. Apart from maintaining sound business development, the Group
also actively takes initiatives in community investments by actively involved
in the nurturing of talents in both the PRC and Hong Kong. Besides, the
Group encourages employees to take part in work-life balance activities
and community services, including various culture events, community

volunteering, employee outings, and supporting charitable organisations.
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Report of the Directors
ES58HES

The Directors submit their report together with the audited consolidated

financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and
provision of management services to subsidiaries. The Group is principally
engaged in the business of property investment, property development,
hotel operations, financial consultancy service and comprehensive healthcare
planning and management services. The principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note 19 to the consolidated

financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the Current Year are set out in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income on page 82 of this annual report.

The Board do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the

Current Year (Last Year: Nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set out on page 192 of this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance during the Current
Year, the key factors affecting its results and financial position, the principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Company and compliance with laws and
regulations are set out in the sections headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” and “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this

annual report.

Information about a fair review of, and an indication of likely future
development in, the Group’s business is set out in the sections headed
“Chairman’s Report” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this

annual report.

In addition, discussion on the Group’s stakeholders’ relationship is set out
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual

report.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Current Year, the turnover attributable to the Group’s largest
customer was approximately 63% of the Group’s total turnover and the
aggregate turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for 100% of the Group’s total turnover. The purchases
attributable to the Group’s largest supplier was approximately 93% of the
Group’s total purchases and the aggregate purchases attributable to the
Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 99% of the

Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors, their close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)
or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in any of

the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers noted above.

DONATIONS

The Group made no charitable donation during the Current Year (Last Year:

Nil).

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the Current Year are set out in Note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page

85 of this annual report, respectively.

The distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2020, calculated
under sections 291, 297 and 299 of the Companies Ordinance, amounted to

Nil (31 March 2019: Nil).

SHARES ISSUED

Details of the shares issued in the Current Year are set out in Note 26 to the

consolidated financial statements.

BONDS ISSUED

Details of the bonds issued in the Current Year are set out in Note 25 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
SRS

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a

pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties for investment purposes are set out in

Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company did not redeem any of the shares of the Company (the
“Shares”) listed on the Stock Exchange, nor did the Company or any of its

subsidiaries purchase or sell any of the Shares during the Current Year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Current Year and up to the date of this annual

report were as follows:

Executive Directors:

Ms. HUNG Man (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. LI Yong Jun (Vice Chairman)

Mr. LIU Hong Shen (Vice Chairman)

Mr. MENG Jin Long

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. LONG Tao

Mr. REN Guo Hua

Mr. CHEN Fang

Pursuant to article 133 of the Articles of Association, at each AGM, one
third of the Directors (the number nearest to and not less than one-third)
who have been longest in office since they were last elected or appointed by

the Shareholders shall retire but shall be eligible for re-election.

Accordingly, Mr. LI Yong Jun, Mr. LONG Tao and Mr. REN Guo Hua shall
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-clection at the forthcoming

AGM.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the INEDs, namely Mr. LONG
Tao, Mr. REN Guo Hua and Mr. CHEN Fang, an annual confirmation of
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. At the date of

this annual report, the Company considers all of them to be independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Brief biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 27 to 31 of

this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The emoluments payable to Directors (including executive Directors
and INEDs) were determined with reference to their respective job
responsibilities and the prevailing market rate for their respective positions

in the Group.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
has a service contract with the Company, which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation other than

statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and
senior management arising out of corporate activities. The permitted
indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required
by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance when this report prepared
by the Directors is approved in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the

Companies Ordinance.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

The Group has not entered into any equity-linked agreements during the
Current Year, and no equity-linked agreements to which the Company is a

party subsisted as at 31 March 2020.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
SRS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, none of the
Directors, the controlling Shareholders or substantial Shareholders (as
defined in the Listing Rules) or their respective close associate (as defined in
the Listing Rules) was interested in any business which competes or is likely

to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS

Save as the transactions disclosed in “Related Party Transactions” as set
out in Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements, no transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at

end of the Current Year or at any time during the Current Year.

Save as the transactions disclosed in “Related Party Transactions” as
set out in Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements, there are
no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance between the
Company, or one of its subsidiaries, and a controlling Shareholder or any of
its subsidiaries, and no contract of significance for the provision of services
to the Company or of its subsidiaries by a controlling Shareholder or any of
its subsidiaries, which subsisted at end of the Current Year or at any time

during the Current Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or

existed during the Current Year.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2020, the interests of the Directors or the chief executives
of the Company and their associates in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571
of the Laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO”)) which were required: (a) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO; or (b)
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein; or (c) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

were as follow:

Long Positions in the Shares of the Company

Name of Director Nature of Interest

WA il 2 L
Ms. HUNG Beneficial owner
et WA A
Interest of controlled corporation’
YRR Z e 2R
Mr. LI Interest of a controlled corporation®
e 52 VE T M 2 25
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Shares/ Percentage of
underlying total number of

Shares? issued Shares *
Bty il B8 BB 47

A B I8 2 BBy 2 4 b4
1,284,000 (L) 0.04%
1,557,314,000 (L) 45.40%
212,336,000 (L) 6.19%
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Report of the Directors (continued)
SRS

Note:

1. Redstone Capital Corporation (“Redstore”) beneficially owned 338,332,000
Shares. CLC beneficially owned 1,218,982,000 Shares, and is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Crown Landmark Fund L.P. (“CLF”), which is in turn wholly-
owned by Crown International Fund Corporation (“CIF”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of Redstone. Redstone is solely owned by Ms. Hung. Thus, Ms.
HUNG is deemed to be interested in 338,332,000 Shares of the Company held
by Redstone and 1,218.982,000 Shares of the Company held by CLC.

2. Eternal Glory Holdings Limited (“Eternal Glory”) beneficially owned
102,336,000 Shares and through its wholly-owned subsidiary Rising Century
Limited (“Rising Century”) owned 110,000,000 Shares. Eternal Glory owned
as to 50% by Mr. LI and 50% by Ms. LIU Xin Jun (“Ms. LIU”). Thus, Mr.
LI is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Eternal Glory and Rising

Century.
3. “L” represents long position in Shares or underlying Shares of the Company.
4. The percentage has been arrived at based on the total number of Shares in issue

as at 31 March 2020 (i.e. 3,430,000,000 Shares).

Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, neither the Director,
nor the chief executives of the Company nor any of their associates, had an
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EFESHE @

4 TR A B I Al A L B B
B B By 2 B 2 B X

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 March 2020, the interests or short positions of the corporations or REFTREZAZ+T—H - RBEARAFR
persons, other than the Directors and chief executives of the Company, in 15 78 I7 S ) £ R A1) 58 330k A L 2 8 i 1
the Shares and underlying Shares, as recorded in the register maintained by RLER  BRA A W R R AT BN H AN A
A BN LR e A B B I A B 2 i

the Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

WREWMT :
Shares/ Percentage of
underlying total number of
Name of Shareholders Nature of Interest Shares* issued Shares®
Bty il B8 BB 47
JBe 3K 4 1 B 2% P BT A BRIy 4 Befy 2 H o s
CLC Beneficial owner! 1,218,982,000 (L) 35.54%
L5 E Hada N
CLF Interest of controlled corporation’ 1,218,982,000 (L) 35.54%
ZYEY R
CIF Interest of controlled corporations! 1,218,982,000 (L) 35.54%
TV Z RE R
Redstone Beneficial owner! 338,332,000 (L) 9.86%
jigox ¥ PN
Interest of controlled corporations' 1,218,982,000 (L) 35.54%
ZYEY R
Eternal Glory Beneficial owner? 102,336,000 (L) 2.98%
Hi A AN
Interest of controlled corporation? 110,000,000 (L) 3.21%
T B Z HE %2
Rising Century Beneficial owner? 110,000,000 (L) 3.21%
a2
Ms. LIU Interest of controlled corporations? 212,336,000 (L) 6.19%
B+ T Z HE 52
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Report of the Directors (continued)
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Name of Shareholders

JBe 3K 44 A

Crown International Corp.

Nature of Interest

Al 2 Y

Beneficial owner?

Limited (“CIC”)

555 o B 4 1 A R

-2 PN

([ 55 BIBE )

Topper Alliance Limited

Interest of controlled corporation?

(“Topper Alliance”)

Mr. DONG Feng (“Mr. DONG”)
#wilgs sk ([ R4])

Note:

70

S VE T M 2 25

Interest of controlled corporations®

SZYEE M 2 AR

Redstone beneficially owned 338,332,000 Shares. CLC beneficially owned
1,218,982,000 Shares, and is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CLE which is in
turn wholly-owned by CIE a wholly owned subsidiary of Redstone. Redstone is
solely owned by Ms. HUNG. Thus, each of CLE, CIF and Redstone are deemed
to be interested in the Shares owned by CLC, and Ms. HUNG is deemed to be

interested in the Shares interested by Redstone.

Eternal Glory beneficially owned 102,336,000 Shares. Rising Century
beneficially owned 110,000,000 Shares and is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Eternal Glory, which in turn owned as to 50% by Mr. LI and 50% by Ms. LIU
, Therefore, Eternal Glory was deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Rising Century , and Mr. LI and Ms. LIU was deemed to be interested in Shares
held by each of Rising Century and Eternal Glory.

CIC beneficially owned 800,000,000 Shares and is wholly-owned by Topper
Alliance. Topper Alliance is solely owned by Mr. DONG and Topper Alliance
and Mr. DONG is deemed to be inerest in the Shares owned by CIC.

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2019/2020

Shares/ Percentage of
underlying total number of
Shares issued Shares®
ey, (i -Je%i gy
BB A 4 Bty 2 W 4 W
800,000,000 (L) 23.32%
800,000,000 (L) 23.32%
800,000,000 (L) 23.32%

ik :

Redstone® %% #E 47338,332,000 8 Jit 44 ©
CLFZ 2 & Wi A v 256 8 i 2 A
1,218,982,000/B Bt 4% © CLF I RedstoneZ 2 &
b JE§ 23 W] CIF#ER 2 FBMERS © RedstoneH fE &
+ BB A o B > CLF > CIF & Redstone s H
R AR 2 77 52 5 2 B v B R A 0 Ik
Az WA K I Redstone A 1) HE 2% o 2 A A
5o

Eternal Glory® i % 102,336,000/ i #y
Rising Century® 1 4 110,000,000 /8 i 43
3 % Eternal Glory#4: ¥ Ff i 22 ] > Ifi Ecernal
GloryH1 2% 5 22 J 8 2o 4= 43 Bl B A Hs0% &
50%ME S o BB > Eternal Gloryf4H 45 2 Rising
CenturyR¢ A Z B 4y v 5t A HE 75 - Wi 25 48 A
B B 4+ B B % i Rising Century X Eternal
Glory% A ##H Z B4 b B 25

Topper Alliance:Z 4 ¥ Fff Ji§ 2 7] 52 5 [ B B 4
BiE£1800,000,000 B B4 © Topper Alliance H#
Setk UM BEA o B IL > Topper Alliance % # %8
A 3 AR T 54 5 I R R A e A v A
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Report of the Directors (continued)

“L” represents long position in Shares or underlying Shares of the Company.

The percentage has been arrived at based on the total number of shares of the
Company in issue as at 31 March 2020 (i.e. 3,430,000,000 Shares).

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)

at the AGM held on 25 September 2015, for the purpose of providing

incentives or rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success

of the Group’s operations. A summary of the principal terms of the Share

Option Scheme is set out below:

(@)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include the
Directors, including the INEDs, other employees of the Group,
suppliers of goods or services to the Group, customers of the Group,
any consultant, advisor, any person or entity that provides research,
development, other technological support or services to the Group, the
Shareholders, and any non-controlling shareholder of the Company’s

subsidiaries.

The Share Option Scheme became effective on 25 September 2015
and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10

years from that date.

The maximum number of Shares which may be allotted and issued
upon the exercise of the share options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme is 343,000,000 Shares, representing 10% of the shares

in issue of the Company as at the date of this annual report.

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon the exercise of the share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme (including both exercised or outstanding share options) to
each grantee in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued
share capital of the Company for the time being (the “Individual
Limit”). Any further grant of share options in excess of the Individual
Limit in any 12-month period up to and including the date of such
further grant must be separately approved by the Shareholders in
general meeting of the Company with such grantee and his/her close

associates abstaining from voting.
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)

(vi)

The option period during which an option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time
shall be a period to be determined and notified by the Directors to
each grantee, which period may commence from the offer date, but
shall end in any event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of

the option subject to the provisions for early termination thereof.

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors and stated in the offer
to a grantee, there is no minimum period required under the Share

Option Scheme for the holding of an option before it can be exercised.

(vii) An offer of the grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days

from the date of offer. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on

acceptance of the grant of an option.

(viii) The subscription price for the Shares under the Share Option Scheme

(ix)

shall be a price determined by the Directors, but shall not be less than
the higher of (a) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for trade in one or more board lots
of the Shares on the offer date, which must be a business day; and
(b) the average of the closing prices of Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations for the five business days immediately

preceding the offer date.

The life of the Share Option Scheme is until the tenth anniversary
of the adoption date of the Share Option Scheme or the date on
which the Share Option Scheme is terminated by resolution of the

Shareholders in general meeting, whichever is earlier.

During the Current Year, no share options were granted, exercised or

cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme and no share options

were outstanding as at 31 March 2020.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Current Year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate granted to any Director or their
respective spouses or children under 18 years of age, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or were the Company or any of its holding companies,
fellow subsidiaries and subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Company’s Directors, their respective spouses or children under 18 years of

age to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions during the year ended 31 March 2020 are
being disclosed in Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements. Such

transactions, insofar as they constitute:

(a) compensations paid to Directors, are connected transactions which are
fully exempt from the disclosure requirements under Rule 14A.95 of

the Listing Rules; and

(b) compensations paid to members of the senior management of the
Company, are not connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices. Information on the principal corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the section headed

“Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL MATTERS

The Company’s compliance with the relevant provisions set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide in Appendix 27
of the Listing Rules for the Current Year are set out in the section headed

“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this annual report.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
SRS

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
The outbreak of COVID-19 since early January 2020 has affected business

and economic activity in the PRC and beyond. The operations of the Group
has deteriorated due to COVID-19 pandemic as one of the main operations
of the Group is sales of properties in the PRC. As some lockdown measures
had been implemented in the PRC during the COVID-19 pandemic, the
sales activities of the Group were completely suspended from late January
2020 to end of March 2020. Even though the lockdown measures were
released when the pandemic situation improved, economic conditions have
not been immediately return to the level before COVID-19. The Group
has already assessed the overall impact of the situation on the operation of
the Group and taken all possible effective measures to limit and keep the
impact in control. The Group will keep continuous attention on the change
of situation and make timely response and adjustments in the future but the

estimate of its financial effect cannot be made at this stage.

PARTICULARS OF IMPORTANT EVENTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Board has not identified any
important events affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of the

Current Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 22 August
2019. As disclosed in the announcement, the public float of the Company
has fallen below the minimum prescribed percentage of 25% as required
under Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules since 16 August 2019.

Reference is made to the Company’s announcement dated 29 August
2019 in relation to the restoration of the public float of the Company.
As disclosed therein, on 29 August 2019, the Company was informed
by Redstone that 20,000,000 shares of the Company, representing
approximately 0.58% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of that announcement had been disposed of through selling on the
open market on the same date. Following the completion of the disposal,
a total of 860,350,000 Shares, representing approximately 25.09% of the
issued share capital of the Company, are held by the public. As such, the
public float of Company has been restored to at least 25% of the issued
share capital of the Company in compliance with Rule 8.08(1)(a) of
the Listing Rules. Based on the information that is publicly available to
the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors
confirmed that the Company had maintained the required public float
for its shares as required under the Listing Rules throughout the period

immediately after the completion of the disposal.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

On 8 May 2019, PricewaterhouseCoopers, who acted as auditor of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2018, resigned and BDO was
appointed as the auditor of the Company with effect from 8 May 2019.

The consolidated financial statements for the Current Year have been
audited by BDO. A resolution will be proposed to the AGM to re-appoint
BDO, as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

HUNG Man

Chairman

Hong Kong, 12 June 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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|IBDO

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

E:E 0 +852 2218 8288
{8E : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF CROWN INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION
LIMITED

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Crown
International Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 82 to 191, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020, and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared

in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO
GOING CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 2.1(a) in the consolidated financial statements,
which states that as at 31 March 2020 and up to the date of this report,
an instalment of interest payment in respect of the Group’s entrusted loan
was past due and the bank has the right to request immediate repayment of
the entire loan with principal amount of approximately HK$546,000,000
outstanding as at 31 March 2020, together with interest and penalty
payables. However, as at 31 March 2020, the cash and cash equivalents of
the Group amounted to HK$1,501,000 only. As stated in Note 2.1(a), these
events and conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note 2.1(a),
indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not

modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
In addition to the matter described in the “Material Uncertainty Related to
Going Concern” section, we have determined the matters described below to

be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Valuation of Investment Properties

Refer to Notes 2.7 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

The fair values of the investment properties held by the Group were
approximately HK$1,911,983,000 as at 31 March 2020, with a fair value
gain for the year ended 31 March 2020 on investment properties of
approximately HK$41,198,000.

Valuations performed by the independent external valuer appointed by
management were obtained for all the investment properties to support
management’s estimated fair values, which were derived using the direct
comparison method. The valuations were dependent on certain key
assumptions that require significant judgement, including comparable
market transaction prices of the completed investment properties, as

adjusted for property-specific factors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
B ZSENER S (@

We identified the valuation of investment properties stated at fair value
as a key audit matter due to the significance of the investment properties
balances and the significant judgement involved in making the key

assumptions in determining the valuation.

Our Response

Our procedures in relation to the management’s assessment of the fair value

of the investment properties included:

. Evaluation of the independent external valuer’s competence,

independence and objectivity;

e Involved our auditor’s expert to discuss with the independent external
valuer and assessed the valuation methodologies and reasonableness of
the key assumptions used in the valuation of investment properties by

comparing the key assumptions against current market data; and

. Checked, on a sample basis, the published external market data for the

accuracy of the key inputs used by the independent external valuer.

Based on the procedures performed above, we found the key assumptions
used in the management’s assessment of the fair value of the investment

properties were supported by the available evidence.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our

.
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report

in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRS:s issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
. . L . .

responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,

disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the

going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to

liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative

but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging

their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept

liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
B ZSENER S (@

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
p p
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

e identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  obrtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e cvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by

the directors.

o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to

cease to continue as a going concern.

. evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

*  obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the

Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of

such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Li Yin Fan

Practising Certificate Number P03113

Hong Kong, 12 June 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HETBEBREX

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #¢

—F_FEFEA=A—HILFEE

2020 2019
SR ORE  —FNUE
Notes HK$’00_9 HK$"O(£)
B T#L T
Revenue e 25 B 5 14,914 5,371
Other gains/(losses), net HAbZ A, (EE) 55 6 31 (450)
Other income Al A 156 180
Fair value gains on investment properties, net BEWHEZ A FEBR 5 15 41,198 45,462
Staff costs & B A% N (13,763) (14,698)
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 4 3 ~ ik 55 & s 97 8 14 (8,558) (1,111)
Other operating expenses F A 288 BH X (11,080) (23,176)
Operating profit 8 %A 22,898 11,578
Finance income B WA 8 185 4,075
Finance costs 8 AR 8 (1,115) (888)
Finance (costs)/income, net W (BAR) W 55 ________(9_3_0_) ________ 3 _,1_8_7__
Profit before income tax %mﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬂ 9 21,968 14,765
Income tax expense B 49 . B 2 10 (13,168) (10,974)
Profit for the year Frwmsy 8 _,8_(10_ ________ 3 _,Z9_1_ B
Other comprehensive loss: JC Al 2 i pig 4
Item that may be subsequently reclassified to ﬁ%ﬁj‘ﬁ%i%ﬁﬁ'ﬁﬁiﬁﬁz
profit or loss: HH
Currency translation differences & Wﬁ%%%ﬁ (135,086) (138,239)
Item that will not be reclassified to AEENSPFEERBZ
profit or loss: HH: .
Change in fair value of financial asset at fair HQ%@?}\%{@%@W
value through other comprehensive income Ea L < g
) 16 (935) -
Total other comprehensive loss for the year 4 A 1 i 2 1hi Jis 4 48 751 _ (136,021)  (138,239)
Total comprehensive loss for the year AR P 4 i N 9 A8 (127,221) (134,448)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: ufgﬁff)ﬁfﬁ%*ﬂ/
Owners of the Company ZIK/A\ GE PN 9,379 3,791
Non-controlling interests I i e 2% (579) -
8,800 3,791
Total comprehensive loss attributable to: PLF 4% 77 MEAG 2 i s 4 48 3 -
Owners of the Company Zkﬁx\ﬁjﬁﬁ)\ (126,675) (134,448)
Non-controlling interests EIRZYd i £ (546) -
(127,221) (134,448)
Basic and diluted earnings per share A v B A BE AN 4E N
attributable to owners of the Company 5 JBe 3 AN K% 9 2 A
for the year (expressed in HK cent per (DLt e i 2. 3)
share) 11 027 HK cent ¥4l 0.11 HK cenc ¥l)

FesFE 1 H MM S A M EREZ
— 4y o

The notes on pages 88 to 191 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
RO AR R

Asat 31 March 2020 }* —FE ~FEFE=H=+—H

2020 2019
SRR ZFENIE
Notes HK$’°000 HK$’000
Wi it T Tl
Assets R
Non-current assets It By
Property, plant and equipment ENY N & 14 203,990 171,580
Investment properties LY/ 15 1,911,983 2,002,606
Financial asset at fair value through /N X [ B AN N (1 T )
other comprehensive income W% 2 4l & A 16 1,765 -
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits Al R WK IE
TEAT 3K B 4% 4 20 699 1,467
Deferred income tax assets TG 3 B E B 24 760 814
2,119,197 2,176,467
Current assets Ui
Trade receivables FE W 5 Wk 21 9,626 -
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits Al JRE WK I
T R M % 4 20 266,283 168,241
Properties under development for sale PR Yk 18 866,976 758,763
Restricted bank balances 32 R i 5 R AT 45 Bk 22 12,191 26,750
Cash and cash equivalents B4e kB 4% EY 22 1,501 140,323
1,156,577 1,094,077
Total assets & A 3,275,774 3,270,544
Liabilities £1 45
Current liabilities Ui £ 4%
Other payables and accruals At JRE A 2R 0E M ME R AR 23 356,683 221,523
Borrowings i £ 25 560,273 -
Lease liabilities HEAE 17 8,246 -
Income tax payable JE A BT 45 B 4,895 2,249
. 3B0097 . 223,772
Net current assets Ui B A 226,480 870,305
Total assets less current liabilities S8 7 DU ) £ A 2,345,677 3,046,772
Non-current liabilities et By A
Other payables and accruals JLAthy JRE A 3K JE B HE T A 23 5,623 6,608
Borrowings 5 8 25 38,230 598,046
Lease liabilities A 17 2,776 -
Deferred income tax liabilities R TR A 24 396,987 414,297
443,616 1,018,951
Net assets % A 1,902,061 2,027,821

SRR ERAE H A R A
2019/2020 4E
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)
B MRIAIR R (@

Asat 31 March 2020 B} —F - FE=H=+—H

2020 2019
SRoRE —F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
i ik T#T T#T
Equity B 2

Capital and reserves B A B fil
Share capital Ji A< 26 1,979,067 1,979,067
Other reserves J Ath ik 45 (77,921) 48,754
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 7% 2 v #E 5 A ME 4 BE 23 1,901,146 2,027,821
Non-controlling interests I i SR 25 915 -
Total equity HE 2 A 1,902,061 2,027,821

The financial statements on page 82 to 191 were approved by the Board of HRFEVHZMBERBENR_"FZ_FEANH

Directors on 12 June 2020 and were signed on its behalf T HEESE g R ALREE
HEHRE:
Ms. HUNG Man Mr. MENG Jin Long
e &t 4 T S A
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Executive Director
AT B H 17 #EF

The notes on pages 88 to 191 are an integral part of these consolidated SEeSEIVIHZ Mt A M BEHREZ

financial statements. —HB 4} o
Crown International Corporation Limited
8 4 Annual Report 2019/2020



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
||-7.|' () lTl o E}] %E

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BEF FEZH="+—HILEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LYk N 3
Financial
asset Non-
Share Capital Exchange at FVOCI Revaluation Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total interests equity
LY ST TN
Jefb 24k
ZAMY R
Ak AR 54 i Al it REERA BE O RRRER WA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tign T Tin T Ti#n Ti#x Ti#x Ti#x
Balance at 1 April 2019 REF-RENA—-HZER 1979067 7,915 (99,917) - 12,025 128,731 2,027,821 - 2,027,821
Comprehensive income/ (loss): 2HHA/ (BH#)
— Profit for the year — R - - - - - 9,379 9,379 (579) 8,800
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: Jefb 20 (BH) /B
- Change in fair value of financial — AP A2
asset at fair value through other Wt 2 b ¥
comprehensive income NPHEES = = - (935) - - (935) - (935)
- Currency translation differences ~ BRI AR - - (135,119) - - - (135,119) 33 (135,086)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 21 OB#) /B M H - - (135,119) (935) = 9,379 (126,675) (546) (127,221)
Capital received from 9 1 B WO i
non-controlling interests = = = = = = = 1,461 1,461
Balance at 31 March 2020 REBZREZA=ZA—H
2Bt 1,979,067 7915 (235,036) (935) 12,025 138,110 1,901,146 915 1,902,061
Balance at 1 April 2018 B NENJ B 28 1,979,067 7,915 38,322 - 12,025 124,940 2,162,269 160 2,162,429
Comprehensive income/ (loss): 2uBA/ OER)
— Profit for the year ~4 iR - - - - - 3,791 3,791 - 3,791
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: B2 (BH) /B
- Currency translation differences - B AR - - (138,239) - - - (138,239) - (138,239)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 20 () /A H - - (138,239) - - 3,791 (134,448) - (134,448)
De-registration of a non-wholly AR M2 E A
owned subsidiary - - - - - - - (160) (160)
Balance at 31 March 2019 BB REZNZET—H
2Bt 1,979,067 7915 (99.917) - 12,025 128,731 2,027,821 - 2,027,821

The notes on pages 88 to 191 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

EeSEIVIBE Z Mk B F4 A M B EZ

— k4o

51 TR 4

HRAH
2019/2020 4E
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BIRENER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE_FE -FEFE=ZH=4+—HILFE

2020 2019
ZFFE ZFNE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt T#T T#T
Cash flows from operating activities RBWHZBEHE
Profit before income tax Bk Fir 44 58 B i ) 21,968 14,765
Adjustments for: AR H -
Finance costs 1 75 AR
(other than interest on lease liabilities) (L&A EM BB 8 335 888
Interest on lease liabilities EAERNE 8 780 -
Finance income B BA 8 (185) (4,075)
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 4 3 ~ B 5 R st i P 85 14 8,558 1,111
Loss on written off of property, plant and WS 2 - W B
equipment WA 2 e 1R 6 - 506
Loss on disposal of property, plant and WY B E K
equipment WM 2 s 1R 6 6 -
Exchange losses, net REE 58, s 15, 13+ A 6 - 32
Fair value gains on investment properties, net BEWHZ
B PR R 15 (41,198) (45,462)
Changes in working capital BEE S
Trade receivables JE W B2 5 Rk (9,871) -
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits JHE Al I WK T
B ST R 110,545)  (166,774)
Properties under development for sale SRR LY S (124,173) (191,113)
Other payables and accruals At I A 3R IH K
J T £ A5 149,903 125,207
Net cash used in operations KEMHZHEEH (104,422) (264,915)
Net cash used in operating activities RPN Z B W _ (104,422)  (264,915)
Cash flows from investing activities BV B 2 Bl AR A
Purchase of property, plant and equipment Wi A\ 3 - R B vk s (34,935) (37,964)
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and WEWE- BE R
equipment w13 K 292 -
Addition of investment properties NEREY R (1,462) (1,166)
Purchase of financial asset at fair value through i H #&Z A FEFH A
other comprehensive income At 4 v W R 2
& (2,700) -
Redemption of short-term investment VT Il e 3 4% - 11,692
Withdrawal/(placement) of restricted bank PEH . (FEH) 3% PR
balances i F SR AT 45 i 12,995 (26,750)
Interest received BRI &EIDsS 185 4,075
Net cash used in investing activities BREHH N EH (25,625)  (50,113)
Crown International Corporation Limited
8 6 Annual Report 2019/2020



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
GROIRENER @
For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE B CFE=ZH="1—HIEE

2020 2019
SRORE RS
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B T#xL T#oc
Cash flows from financing activities MERZE L&A
Proceeds from issue of bonds BAITEFZ 3 a0E 36,045 13,350
Drawdown of entrusted loan WM BFEER - 582,850
Repayment of entrusted loan 8RBt = (149,210)
Repayment of principal portion of RS A AL
lease liabilities (7,377) -
Repayment of interest portion of BB M B R AR ZH S5
lease liabilities (780) -
Interest paid A B (31,679) (34,938)
Capital received from non-controlling interests [ JF 2 J #E 25 W B i) & < 1,461 -
Net cash (used in)/generated from WEWH (M), Pz
financing activities sewwm 2330 412,052
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BEeERJALESHEDZ
cash equivalents (W), B Im (132,377) 97,024
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 45 #] Z Bl 4 & Bl 4 54 140,323 43,585
Exchange loss on cash and cash equivalents BRekBieFHmZ
I 5 Jis 17 (6,445) (286)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year RERZ B L KBS EY 22 1,501 140,323

The notes on pages 88 to 191 are an integral part of these consolidated BeSEIVIHZ Mk B S4B MEZ

financial statements. —#R 5o

SRR ERAE H A R A 87
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fm © B 5 ¥k R B 5

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE_FE -FEFE=ZH=4+—HILFE

1

38

GENERAL INFORMATION

The principal activities of Crown International Corporation Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together with the Company are
collectively referred to as the “Group”) are (i) property investment, (ii)
property development, (iii) hotel operations, (iv) provision of financial
consultancy service and (v) provision of comprehensive healthcare
planning and management services, whilst those of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in Note 19 to the consolidated financial

statements.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong
Kong. The address of its registered office is Suite 902, 9th Floor,
Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong which is also

its principal place of business.

The Company has its shares traded on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Directors consider the ultimate
holding company to be Redstone Capital Corporation, incorporated in

the Samoa.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong

Dollar (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue

by the Board of Directors on 12 June 2020.

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2019/2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

&r 0 B 5 HR R Pt 5 (@

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BEF FEZH=+—HILEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise

stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements of Crown International
Corporation Limited have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred
to as the “HKFRS”) and the provisions of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance which concern the preparation of
financial statements. In addition, the financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis, except for investment properties and certain

financial instruments, which are measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the

consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

2 EEMAHBOREE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

fm © B 5 ¥k 2% B 5%

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE_FE -FEFE=ZH=4+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

90

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a)

Going concern assumption

In preparing the consolidated financial statements of

the Group, the directors of the Company have given

consideration to the operations of the Group can continue

as going concerns notwithstanding that the following

matters which may cast significant doubt about the Group’s

ability to generate sufficient cash flows to meet its liquidity

needs:

(@)

the operations of the Group has deteriorated due to the
Novel Coronavirus (“COVID-19”) pandemic as one of
the main operations of the Group is sales of properties
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). As
some lockdown measures had been implemented in
the PRC during the COVID-19 pandemic, the sales
activities of the Group were completely suspended
from late January 2020 to end of March 2020. Even
though the lockdown measures were released when the
pandemic situation improved, economic conditions
have not immediately returned to the level before
COVID-19. As a result, sales of the Group has been

affected significantly.

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2019/2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#n 6 B 55 3R R B 5E ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #¢ Z.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) Going concern assumption (Continued)

(ii)

an instalment of interest payment of the Group’s
entrusted loan with an aggregate amount of
HK$6,049,000 (equivalent to approximately Renminbi
(“RMB”) 5,539,000) which was due and payable on
20 March 2020 remained overdue as at 31 March 2020
and up to the date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements. As a result, the bank has the right
to serve a notice to request the immediate repayment
of the entire principal amount of the entrusted
loan together with interest and penalty. The entire
entrusted loan with principal amount of approximately
HK$546,000,000 (equivalent to RMB500,000,000),
together with interest and penalty payables as at 31
March 2020 is treated as immediately due and payable
and classified as current liabilities. However, as at 31
March 2020, the cash and cash equivalents of the
Group amounted to HK$1,501,000 only.

— B — 2B

e S

FE=H =+ —HILFEE

2 BEEFHEOR MR (@)

2.1 AL

HE (49)

(a) TFHIRERZ (H)

(ii)

S SR AT LA

AEEP R RE=
H =+ H B0 A —
I S e N
#i6,049,000% JC (HH &
PARE (TAR¥])
5,539,0007C ) 4 £ 3K » i
CROIRFEEA=Z+—
HRBEEESHGAGUME
WA B3R
KA o B Ik - 3% 4R1T A HE
B W 0> B R PR
BEMBERRARLHE
W B K &k o R Z®
ZEEZH=+—H"
R BEERBAFRN
546,000,000% 7 (F1 %
A R #500,000,00008 )
L[] A ) B e kA
F5 o1 B E) B K AT
Vo R N=K - RN P
A4 [ B 4 T Bl & %
EHR R _RE=NH
=Z+—HHH1,501,000
WIC °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
¥ B B 5 ¥R R Bt 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE_FE -FEFE=ZH=4+—HILFE

2

92

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) Going concern assumption (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements were prepared based
on the assumption that the Group can be operated as a
going concern and the directors of the Company have
prepared cash flow projections covering a period of not less
than twelve months. The directors of the Company are of
the view that the Group will have sufficient working capital
to finance their operations in the next twelve months from
31 March 2020, after taking into consideration of the

following:

(i) the Group is actively negotiating with the banker
to remedy the late payment issue and to restructure
the payment terms for the remaining amount of
the entrusted loans. As a result of the outbreak of
COVID-19, the PRC government was encouraging
banks to help enterprises to resolve their liquidity
problem. The directors of the Company consider the
Group will be able to reach an agreement with the
banker to defer the loan repayment schedule for 6

months;

(ii) the Group is actively negotiating with a third party to
obtain new funding in the amount of USD200 million
by issuing bonds for the future development of the
Group. Although the progress of the bond issue was
affected by the outbreak of COVID-19 in particular
the on-site due diligence work, the directors of the
Company consider the Group will be able to reach an
agreement with the third party once the due diligence

work is completed;

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2019/2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#n 6 B 55 3R R B 5E ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BEF FEZH=+—HILEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEGEBORBE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 S RFLHE (&)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(a) FFATAEEMRGR (4F)

(a) Going concern assumption (Continued)

(iii) as at 31 March 2020, the Group had certain
investment properties located in the PRC with net
carrying amount of approximately HK$1,911,983,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB1,750,900,000),
that are available for the Group to use as securities for
possible future bank borrowings. The Group is actively
negotiating with banks to obtain new borrowings.
Considering the Group’s ability in providing sufficient
pledges of properties, the directors of the Company are
in the view that the Group will be able to secure new
borrowings, when necessary; and

(iv) the estimated proceeds from the pre-sale of properties
under development in respect of the projects in
Weihai.

The directors of the Company, after making due enquiries
and consider the basis of management’s projections
described above, believe that, taking into account the
above mentioned actions and planned measures and their
progress, the Group will have sufficient funds to finance
its operations and to meet its financial obligations when
they fall due within the next twelve months from 31 March
2020. Accordingly, the directors of the Company are
satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated
financial statements on the going concern basis.

There is a material uncertainty related to the outcomes of
the above events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and therefore the Group may be unable to realise its assets
and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.
Should the use of the going concern basis in preparation of
the consolidated financial statements be considered to be
inappropriate, adjustments would have to be made to write
down the carrying amounts of the Group’s assets to their
net realisable values, to provide for any further liabilities
which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets and
liabilities to current assets and liabilities. The effect of these
adjustments have not been reflected in the consolidated

financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
¥ B B 5 ¥R R Bt 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE_FE -FEFE=ZH=4+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 BEEFHBORBE s

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 B (4)
(b)  FRAAT I 1 J B 7 3 B 15 5T

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) Effect of adopting new standards and amendments to

existing standards

The following new standards and amendments to existing
standards are mandatory for the Group’s financial year

beginning on or after 1 April 2019:

HKEFRS 16 Leases
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation
Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes and
HKEFRSs 2015-2017 cycle HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current period has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current period and prior year and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial

statements.

Crown International Corporation Limited

Annual Report 2019/2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#n 6 B 55 3R R B 5E ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 # £ —F—

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) Effect of adopting new standards and amendments to

existing standards (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (“HKFRS 16”)

@)

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16

HKFRS 16 brings significant changes in accounting
treatment for lease accounting, primarily for
accounting for lessees. It replaces HKAS 17 Leases
(“HKAS 177), HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether
an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15
Operating Leases-Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving
the Legal Form of a Lease. From a lessee’s perspective,
almost all leases are recognised in the statement of
financial position as a right-of-use assets and a lease
liabilities, with the narrow exception to this principle
for leases which the underlying assets are of low-value
or are determined as short-term leases. From a lessor’s
perspective, the accounting treatment is substantially
unchanged from HKAS 17. For details of HKFRS 16
regarding its new definition of a lease, its impact on
the Group’s accounting policies and the transition
method adopted by the Group as allowed under
HKFRS 16, please refer to section (ii) to (v) of this

note.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE_FE -FEFE=ZH=4+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) Effect of adopting new standards and amendments to

existing standards (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

@)

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 (Continued)

96

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective approach and recognised all
the cumulative effect of initial application as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings
at the date of initial application. The comparative
information presented in 31 March 2019 has not been
restated and continues to be reported under HKAS 17
and related interpretations as allowed by the transition
provision in HKFRS 16.

The following tables summarised the impact of
transition to HKFRS 16 on consolidated statement of
financial position as of 31 March 2019 to that of 1
April 2019 as follows (increase/(decrease)):

2 BEEFHEORME (50

2.1 SR (5)

(b)  FRAHT QY Je BT A 7T
A2 HE (4)

7 s T 75 o S SR 16 9% [
&'l (#)

(@)

PR A0 7 6 T 5 A o B

SE1cIER  B (A)

AEHOCRHACERZ
76O 3 E P 7 s
HHERISE 1658 > W 4RIk
JE F B4 B AR W B e
w2 R A HE H 2
PR B 2 70 300 0 4 65 A i
ORI Sy | K S
H=+—H 2% i b g
FORHBEAE T A S > 0 A
AL ¢ 7 3 7 i o S5
1755 12 7 o S 5 i o e
JIJ 55 1655 1 208 6 Aok S e
HT R B i R 2 o

AN A A Y
2 e it A S5 16 9% B R
ZECAE=EA=Z,
HEZZF-JUHENH—
H i &% A S 5 5K DL 2 1
MmMTEEE (W (R

&))

HK$'000
T
Consolidated statement of RZFE—NFEMNH—HZ
financial position as at 1 April 2019 BN
Right-of-use assets presented in property, BIIEWE - Bm Kbz
plant and equipment 5 FH e 13,390
Lease liabilities (non-current) MERAE (GRS 6,954
Lease liabilities (current) MEAE (RS 6,436
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#n 6 B 55 3R R B 5E ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE_EE

2 FEEH

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) Effect of adopting new standards and amendments to

existing standards (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

@)

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 (Continued)

4 = ] = A R4S
WK M2 ()

2.1 S WIL W (5)

(b)  FRAHT QY R B AT A 15 7T

K2 HE ()
A B A R SR 165k [

=4
(i)

(#1)

TR A A W 1A 255 e 4 v U

The following reconciliation explains how the

operating lease commitments disclosed applying HKAS

17 at the end of 31 March 2019 could be reconciled

to the lease liabilities at the date of initial application

recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

position as at 1 April 2019:

E16HE R R (A1)

DUF SR W R =%
—NWEZA=ZT—HE
SRR HE FH A 8 o it i 1
BI7TR BN R EHE
RGP ZF—EN
H— B 755 & B 851K DL
A e R A 0 46 HE ) H

W R A IR
Ui
HKS$’000
T#

Reconciliation of operating lease

ARG R A 2

commirment to lease liabilities

Operating lease commitment as of

31 March 2019

Less: future interest expenses

Total lease liabilities as of 1 April 2019

R-F—-WE=ZA=+—HZ
R MR
s AR AF BB 52

The weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowin
g g g

rate applied to lease liabilities recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position as at 1

April 2019 is 5.64%.

S SR AT LA

REF-NENH—HZHE A AR

e

14,174
(784)

13,390

BB —ENA—H
1 % A3 T 26 1R L 3 e R
A AEL B A0 T Y
S R AN B B A B R
RE5.64% °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE_FE -FEFE=ZH=4+—HILFE

2

98

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) Effect of adopting new standards and amendments to

existing standards (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

(ii) The new definition of a lease

2 BEEFHEORME (50

2.1 B (4)
(b)  FRAAT I 1 J B 7 3 B 15 5T

r2Z

HE(H)

7 s T 75 o S SR 16 9% [
&1 (#1)

(i)

LB AT A 2

Under HKFRS 16, a lease is defined as a contract, or
part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset
(the underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. A contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time when the customer, throughout the period of use,
has both: (a) the right to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the identified asset and

(b) the right to direct the use of the identified asset.

For a contract that contains a lease component and
one or more additional lease or non-lease components,
a lessee shall allocate the consideration in the
contract to each lease component on the basis of the
relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components, unless the lessee apply the practical
expedient which allows the lessee to elect, by class of
underlying asset, not to separate non-lease components
from lease components, and instead account for
cach lease component and any associated non-lease

components as a single lease component.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 # £ —F—

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) Effect of adopting new standards and amendments to

existing standards (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

(i)

The new definition of a lease (Continued)

The Group has eclected not to separate non-lease
components and account for all each lease component
and any associated non-lease components as a single

lease component for all leases.

(iii) Accounting as a lessee

Under HKAS 17, a lessee has to classify a lease as an
operating lease or a finance lease based on the extent
to which risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
a lease asset lie with the lessor or the lessee. If a lease
is determined as an operating lease, the lessee would
recognise the lease payments under the operating lease
as an expense over the lease term. The asset under
the lease would not be recognised in the statement of

financial position of the lessce.

V==

é

FE=H =+ —HILFEE

2 BEEFHEOR MR (@)

2.1 S WIL W (5)

(b)  FRAHT QY R BYAT TR 15 7T
K2 HE(H)

A B A R SR 165k [

=4
(ii)

(#1)

LB H H E #8 (A1)

(iii)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE_FE -FEFE=ZH=4+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

100

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) Effect of adopting new standards and amendments to

existing standards (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

(iii) Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

Under HKFRS 16, all leases (irrespective of they are
operating leases or finance leases) are required to be
capitalised in the consolidated statement of financial
position as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but
HKFRS 16 provides accounting policy choices for
an entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases which
are short-term leases and/or (ii) leases for which
the underlying asset is of low-value. The Group has
elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for low-value assets and leases for which at
the commencement date have a lease term less than
12 months. The lease payments associated with those
leases have been expensed on straight-line basis over

the lease term.

The Group recognised a right-of-use asset and a lease

liability at the commencement date of a lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BEF FEZH=+—HILEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEGEBORBE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 S RILHE (&)
(b) Effect of adopting new standards and amendments to (b) IR A A J Bl 17 1€ R 15 5T
existing standards (Continued) IKZHE (4
HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued) F s AR5 RS 1698 T
&1 (4)
(iii) Accounting as a lessee (Continued) (i) AF 2 AR B B 51 R B
(%)
Right-of-use asset 1 J1] B B
The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost i P R P B 42 A T

and would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability (see below for
the accounting policy to account for lease liability);
(ii) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received;
(iii) any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee and
(iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee
in dismantling and removing the underlying asset to
the condition required by the terms and conditions of
the lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce
inventories. Except for right-of-use asset that meets
the definition of an investment property or a class of
property, plant and equipment to which the Group
applies the revaluation model, the Group measures
the right-of-use assets applying a cost model. Under
the cost model, the Group measures the right-to-use
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement

of lease liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE_FE -FEFE=ZH=4+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

102

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) Effect of adopting new standards and amendments to

existing standards (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

(iii) Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use asset (Continued)

For the Group, leasehold land and buildings that were
held for rental or capital appreciation purpose would
continue to be accounted for under HKAS 40 and
would be carried at fair value. For leasehold land and
buildings which is held for own use would continue
to be accounted for under HKAS 16 and would be
carried at fair value. The adoption of HKFRS 16
therefore does not have any significant impact on
these right-of-use assets. Other than the above right-
of-use assets, the Group also has leased a number of
properties under tenancy agreements which the Group
exercises its judgement and determines that it is a
separate class of asset apart from the leasehold land and
buildings which is held for own use. As a result, the
right-of-use assets arising from the properties under

tenancy agreements are carried at depreciated cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BEF FEZH=+—HILEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEGEBORBE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 BRI ()
(b) Effect of adopting new standards and amendments to (b) IR A A J Bl 17 1€ R 15 5T
existing standards (Continued) IKZHE (4
HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued) F s AR5 RS 1698 T
&1 (4)
(iii) Accounting as a lessee (Continued) (i) AF 2 AR B B 51 R B
(%)
Lease liability Bl A

The lease liability should be recognised at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the date of commencement of the lease. The lease
payments shall be discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily
determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
the Group shall use the Group’s incremental borrowing

rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid
at the commencement date of the lease are considered
to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease
incentives receivable; (ii) variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at commencement date; (iii)
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a
purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to
exercise that option and (v) payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the

lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE_FE -FEFE=ZH=4+—HILFE

2

104

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) Effect of adopting new standards and amendments to

existing standards (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

(iii) Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

2 BEEFHEORME (50

2.1 B (4)
(b)  FRAAT I 1 J B 7 3 B 15 5T

Lease liability (Continued)

Subsequent to the commencement date, a lessee
shall measure the lease liability by: (i) increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (ii) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made and (iii) remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, e.g., a change in future lease payments
arising from change in an index or rate, a change in
the lease term, a change in the in substance fixed lease
payments or a change in assessment to purchase the

underlying asset.

(iv) Accounting as a lessor

The Group has leased out its investment properties
to a number of tenants. As the accounting under
HKEFRS 16 for a lessor is substantially unchanged from
the requirements under HKAS 17, the adoption of
HKFRS 16 does not have significant impact on these

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BEF FEZH=+—HILEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) Effect of adopting new standards and amendments to

existing standards (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

v)

Transition

As mentioned above, the Group has applied HKFRS
16 using the modified retrospective approach
and recognised all the cumulative effect of initial
application as an adjustment to the opening balance
of retained earnings at the date of initial application
(1 April 2019). The comparative information
presented in 31 March 2019 has not been restated and
continues to be reported under HKAS 17 and related

interpretations as allowed by the transition provision in

HKEFRS 16.

The Group has recognised the lease liabilities at the
date of 1 April 2019 for leases previously classified
as operating leases applying HKAS 17 and measured
those lease liabilities at the present value of the
remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s

incremental borrowing rate at 1 April 2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE_FE -FEFE=ZH=4+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

106

(b) Effect of adopting new standards and amendments to

existing standards (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

)

Transition (Continued)

The Group has elected to recognise all the right-of-use
assets at 1 April 2019 for leases previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17 at an amount equal
to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any
prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that
lease recognised in the statement of financial position
immediately before the date of initial application. For
all these right-of-use assets, the Group has applied the
practical expedients at the date of initial application of
HFKRS 16, and replied on the previous assessment for
onerous contract provisions as at 1 April 2019 as an

alternative to performing an impairment review.

The Group has also applied the follow practical
expedients: (i) applied a single discount rate
to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics; (ii) applied the exemption of not to
recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
leases with term that will end within 12 months of
the date of initial application (1 April 2019) and
accounted for those leases as short-term leases; (iii)
exclude the initial direct costs from the measurement
of the right-of-use asset at 1 April 2019 and (iv)
used hindsight in determining the lease terms if the
contracts contain options to extend or terminate the

leases.

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2019/2020

2 BEEFHEORME (50

2.1 S I (50)
(b)  ERAIA R Je B 17 3 A5 7T

KZHE (H)
AU B A R 5 109 TR
&1 (&)

(v) PP (H)

AfEHOEER %
—JUAEH —H Bk
AR 4 A 9 o it S 5
1758 Bm B AN
FHLE e P A0 M
> 4 W B A B AR
7] > % 4 # S IRAE R 46 HE
FH 8 Z B > 2w
46 FJB0 AR B R UL A
P it A B % AL B AR AT
oy & T AF B M A L
PR A 8 o BB A %
SERE BRI R o AR
P L 0 R A s
B R R SR 16t H
JE A T AT B D5 35 > MG AR
A TE ST s ] -
FNAENAH— H IR
il 1 2 3 AT I A8 B 2
BRIT%E-

A 4K 5 EOREH T 3 )
THREETE: QAR
AP AR AL A
A REH B — I BIR (i)
S FH 01 5 0 B HE L H
H(MZF—JLaA
—H ) sk 28 H R AR
PR - W R R T 54
BE % B S L& BE B
B > S % SR B s
WME AR ) =%
—NEMNH—H RS
JERE 5 5 VR > ISR A 46 L
e AR 5 B (i) i & 40 38
R A& Ik A e
BER-AIREREEM
o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BEF FEZH=+—HILEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) Effect of adopting new standards and amendments to

existing standards (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

v)

Transition (Continued)

In addition, the Group has also applied the practical
expedients such that: (i) HKFRS 16 is applied
to all of the Group’s lease contracts that were
previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17
and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease and (ii) not to apply
HKFRS 16 to contracts that were not previously
identified as containing a lease under HKAS 17 and
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to
the Group’s accounting policies and consolidated financial
statements, have been issued, but are not yet effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group. The Group’s
current intention is to apply these changes on the date they

become effective.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business’

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material’
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
and HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture’

Eftective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020

The amendments were originally intended to be effective for
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The eftective
date has now been deferred/removed. Early application of the

amendments continue to be permitted.

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2019/2020

2 BEEFHEORME (50

2.1 B (4)
(c) EAIMMAE R ZH AT~

AEAE 7T 7 v B 5 R A

LT W il S A 42 [ G o R B
SR A Bk 2 A R B R
S SCHER R T S
S LA A - AR R AR K LA
A5 030 A P PR A © AR SR M H
i AR A8 A B A 2 H B R
EEAS 1K

FHMBEREEN  EENER

BB

Bla R EANER

RF B as R

BB

BHMBEREREN  RIRERLE

o HBET

5395 R

B EHs

R Z BT

BWRHEREEN  REFIREA

FORRFRET ARAELEZ

RRIFSRZMET PR E
BN

L ORZRIFEHHEZ
1 Bl Z 48 JEA I 4 3%

2 AT S E
—H — H 2.2 & 45 v 1
ERG o LR H R B A
BB - 1805 72 71 12 S %
e o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#n 6 B 55 3R R B 5E ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BEF FEZH=+—HILEE

2 BEEFHEOR MR (@)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective (Continued)

(@)

(i)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 — Definition of a Business

The amendments clarify that a business must include,
as a minimum, an input and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs, together with providing extensive guidance on

what is meant by a “substantive process”.

Additionally, the amendments remove the assessment
of whether market participants are capable of replacing
any missing inputs or processes and continuing to
produce outputs, whilst narrowing the definition of
« » «@. . »

outputs’ and a “business” to focus on returns from
selling goods and services to customers, rather than on

cost reductions.

An optional concentration test has also been added
that permits a simplified assessment of whether an

acquired set of activities and assets is not a business.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 — Definition of

Material

The amendments clarify the definition and explanation
of “material”, aligning the definition across all
HKFRSs and the Conceptual Framework, and
incorporating supporting requirements in HKAS 1

into the definition.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

110

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective (Continued)

(iii) Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 —

(iv)

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments modify some specific hedge
accounting requirements to provide relief from
potential effects of the uncertainties caused by interest
rate benchmark reform. In addition, the amendments
require companies to provide additional information to
investors about their hedging relationships which are

directly affected by these uncertainties.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses to
be recognised when an entity sells or contributes assets
to its associate or joint venture. When the transaction
involves a business, the gain or loss is recognised in
full, conversely when the transaction involves assets
that do not constitute a business, the gain or loss
is recognised only to the extent of the unrelated

investors” interests in the joint venture or associate.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BEF FEZH=+—HILEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEEEHBORME (5)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries 2.2 W& A
2.2.1Consolidation 221G HKH
Subsidiaries are all entities (including a structured entity) B JBg A w1 5 A 45 T Rr 5

over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated

from the date that control ceases.

Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are

measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-
controlling interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured at

their acquisition date fair value, unless another measurement

basis is required by HKFRSs.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

112

2.3

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on

the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the

investees net assets including goodwill.

2.4 Segment reporting

2.5

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors that

makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in HK$, which is the Company’s

functional and the Group’s presentation currency.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#n 6 B 55 3R R B 5E ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b) Transactions and balances

(c)

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation where item are re-
measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, except
when deferred in other comprehensive income as qualifying

cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets, such as equities classified as available for

sale, are included in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation

currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that

balance sheet;

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BEF FEZH=+—HILEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE_FE -FEFE=ZH=4+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 BEEGHEORBEE (@)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued) 2.5 AR (50)
(c)  Group companies (Continued) (c) ZEEHAAE (#)

(i) income and expenses for each statement of (i) KW HZEZRA K
comprehensive income are translated at average AR R
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable M i bk T 2 08 P 3k %
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates R 5 B AT R R 5
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case B2 A PG IR RAD o 7
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the BEREULT » WA B th#%
transactions); and REER G HZERGR

)

(iii) all resulting currency translation differences are (i) BT A Bk AR 2 A i i

recognised in other comprehensive income. S0 25 B At 2 R AR
T B o

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the T AR AR A IR B I > SRS Ab

translation of any net investment in foreign entities, and B A T 4 DL B AR e

of borrowings and other financial instruments designated REEREZEHWIEB 2

as hedges of such investments, are recognised in other AR T HEEZE

comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is sold S 2 RS b 2 v W A P

or any borrowings forming part of the net investment are W o A B BE AP SR S R A

repaid, the associated exchange differences are reclassified to T KT 2 AT A

profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale. BRI - FH B MR 50 25 B T 4

MEHG ERNEHEEZ —
iy e
2.6 Property, plant and equipment 2.6 W3 ~ BB Be vk i
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less W3~ R Bk 4 VR B AR D R
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. AEITEE T B EH A R R B R o B Bk
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to B A AL 55 W AT R IE BB A
the acquisition of the items. b X o
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or FAR A R W e SR B E H
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is FH B 2 H A% 5800 F 25 0 i A AR B2
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item M > HEZIE H Z B fE W) 5 L E
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured W - 7w N A R T R s e s R
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged in LR (W) o B A b A1
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income during the B AR AT AR B A Z W A
period in which they are incurred. A TH W AR 2R A R o
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1 1 4 Annual Report 2019/2020



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BEF FEZH=+—HILEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEEEHBORME (5)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.6 W13k~ W5 B Bt i (1)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Property, furniture and equipment (other than construction
in progress) are depreciated so as to write off their cost net
of expected residual value over their estimated useful lives
on a straight-line basis. The useful lives, residual value and
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at

the end of each reporting period. The useful lives are as follows:

Furniture and fixtures 3 to 5 years
Computer, office equipment 3 to 20 years
and machinery
Motor vehicles 5 years
The shorter of assets’ expected

Other properties leased

for own use useful lives and lease terms

Leasehold improvements are capitalised and depreciated over their

expected useful lives to the Group.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment
losses. Cost comprises direct costs of construction as well as
borrowing costs capitalised during the periods of construction
and installation. Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the
construction in progress is transferred to the appropriate class
of property, plant and equipment when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the assets for their intended use
are completed. No depreciation is provided for in respect of
construction in progress until it is completed and ready for its

intended use.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and

adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than

its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within
“other gains/(losses), net” in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE_FE -FEFE=ZH=4+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

116

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group. It
also includes properties that are being constructed or developed
for future use as investment properties. Land held under
operating leases are accounted for as investment properties when
the rest of the definition of an investment property is met. In
such cases, the operating leases concerned are accounted for as if

they were finance leases.

Investment property is initially measured at cost, including
related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs.
After initial recognition, investment properties are carried at fair
value, representing open market value determined at each of the
end of reporting period by external valuers. Fair value is based
on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference
in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If the
information is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. Changes in fair values are recorded in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

If the use of a property changes from owner-occupied to being
held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or
both, and that is not occupied by the Group, it is reclassified
as an investment property, measured at fair value at the date of
reclassification and the difference between the fair value and the
net book value of the investment property is recognised in the

other comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BEF FEZH=+—HILEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEEEHBORME (5)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.8 J 4 i BE WAL

2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible

reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

2.9 Leasing

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2019

(i)  As a lessee

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or
finance leases) are required to be capitalised in the
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities, but accounting policy choices
exist for an entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases
which are short-term leases and/or (ii) leases for which
the underlying asset is of low-value. The Group has
elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for low-value assets and leases for which at
the commencement date have a lease term less than
12 months. The lease payments associated with those
leases have been expensed on straight-line basis over

the lease term.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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2.9 Leasing (Continued)

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2019 (Continued)

@

As a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost
and would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability (see below for
the accounting policy to account for lease liability);
(ii) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received;
(iii) any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee and
(iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee
in dismantling and removing the underlying asset to
the condition required by the terms and conditions of
the lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce
inventories. Except for right-of-use asset that meets
the definition of an investment property or a class of
property, plant and equipment to which the Group
applies the revaluation model, the Group measures
the right-of-use assets applying a cost model. Under
the cost model, the Group measures the right-to-use
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liability. For right-of-use asset that meets the
definition of an investment property, they are carried

at fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
#n 6 B 55 3R R B 5E ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BEF FEZH=+—HILEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEGEBORBE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 A (5)

2.9 Leasing (Continued)

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2019 (Continued)

(A) HZF—ILFEWH— HEE

JH B9 8 7t B ()
(i)  As a lessee (Continued) () AEAAREAN(H)
Right-of-use asset (Continued) B (50
The Group accounts for leasehold land and buildings AR T AR B A vk Rl
that are held for rental or capital appreciation purpose HI S 4059% 1% % L B s
under HKAS 40 and are carried at fair value. The A K H H R AL
Group accounts for leasehold land and buildings which B A R AR I %
is held for own use under HKAS 16 and are carried A PEBIR o AREE E AL 05
at depreciated cost. Other than the above right-of- v | 5 R 2B 16BR A%
use assets, the Group also has leased a number of e W E L &
properties under tenancy agreements which the Group AR I 3 BT 85 B AR
exercises it judgement and determines that it is a BIAR o Bk bt £ F A S
separate class of asset apart from the leasehold land Ab > AR E N CAR TR &
and buildings which is held for own use. As a result, R T - &R
the right-of-use asset arising from the properties under S B AT R - AR I Ry
tenancy agreements are carried at depreciated cost. FeiE A B AL b R
A5 DL A B ) S R 38
o R it - AH 5 R IE T
Wy 36 A BB R A
YT AT R -
Right-of-use assets related to leasehold interests i - M HE 25 FEE M T
where the interest in the land is held as inventories 5 > FI R B RE A5 A B 1Y
of properties are included in the same line item 5 HE O\ AH RE B
as inventories of properties as that within the EEFT B IE —IHH A - 5
corresponding assets. TE¥EGRR -
Lease liability ALEE A
The lease liability is recognised at the present value B BB T 1 AL B

of the lease payments that are not paid at the date
of commencement of the lease. The lease payments
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses the

Group’s incremental borrowing rate.

S SR AT LA

U HOIR A 2 LB AT
K A B AR e A o AL AF K
PR FH LB IS PR R R
Bl (il 7% A 3 T 5 5
SE ) o fi % AR 0 )
HEAE - AR PR A4
P A 394 A R R o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE_FE -FEFE=ZH=4+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 BEEFHBORBE s

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.9 M (5)

2.9 Leasing (Continued)

120

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2019 (Continued)

@

As a lessee (Continued)

Lease liability (Continued)

A H=

FAFEHH — HEHE

JH 1Y & At B ()

@@

feR RN (#)
AL A (8

The following payments for the right-to-use the T 5 3 Ik 7 FL 5 B 4R H
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid 30 S A v AR 38 P9 BE A B

at the commencement date of the lease are considered
to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease
incentives receivable: (ii) variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at commencement date; (iii)
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a
purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to

exercise that option and (v) payments of penalties for

B A T RE S AT 2k
BB AMEMN: ()
] 2 A 35K AT ) R Wi L
BB (i)W 46 3% BA 4R
H 2 48 sk f) 5t &
P V7 ) Rl & A a3k (B
R R ) 5 (i) A&
FELN R 5% 01 i A6 40 AR
TEJ A B SR IE S (iv) i

terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the AN & BLE 2 47 1 %
lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease. FUSIERE  SBRRERAT
BT 3 S (v) ik AHL 9T R R
AR AT 1 398 48 A% 11

FHLET > AR AH B Z Sk A

&
N ©

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group B IE H AR - AR EE
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the A X R E A

carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease

liability; (ii) reducing the carrying amount to reflect

8 () 38 R A DL R
WAL B BRI R 5 (i)

the lease payments made; and (iii) remeasuring the A JR T A DA R A iy
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease B R B A K 5 TR (i) TR
modifications, e.g., a change in future lease payments sl o2 M A DA IR A AT

arising from change in an index or rate, a change in
the lease term, a change in the in substance fixed lease
payments or a change in assessment to purchase the

underlying asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#n 6 B 55 3R R B 5E ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BEF FEZH=+—HILEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Leasing (Continued)

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2019 (Continued)

@

(ii)

As a lessee (Continued)

Lease liability (Continued)

There are recognition exemptions for short-term leases.
Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12
months or less at the commencement date. Payments
associated with short-term leases are recognised on a

straight-line basis as expenses in profit or loss.

Accounting as a lessor

The Group has leased out its investment property to
a number of tenants. Rental income from operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised as an expense on the

straight-line basis over the lease term.

2 BEEFHEOR MR (@)

2.9 & (5)

(A) HZF—IAEI ) — H R
JH 19 i B ()
() AERARFLA (4)
LA £ fi (40

(ii)

S SR AT LA

0 LB A e R
B o R IR A 4R H
IR LI s 1218 H DA R
A RE B o SR S A B
P A K % AR R 4R AR
A e R A S o

A s AEL N B 1 i B

AEECE HHF W
MEBEYE - REME
Z FHL 4 e AT A B AL A
T DL L AR A 4R AR A
it o BER S KPR AL
L E A 2 90 25 B R
A AR B A 2 AR T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE_FE -FEFE=ZH=4+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

122

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Leasing (Continued)

(B) Accounting policies applied until 31 March 2019

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on the straight-line

basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised as an
integrated part of the total rental expense, over the term of

the lease.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#n 6 B 55 3R R B 5E ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BEF FEZH=+—HILEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEGEBORBE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

21075 85 8 R b By %

2.10Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Development cost of properties
comprises cost of land use rights, construction costs and
borrowing costs incurred during the construction period. Upon
completion, the properties are transferred to completed properties

held for sale.

Net realisable value takes into account the price ultimately
expected to be realised, less applicable variable selling expenses

and the anticipated costs to completion.

Properties under development for sale are classified as current
assets unless the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete beyond normal

operating cycle.

2.11Financial Instruments

(i)  Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a
significant financing component) is initially measured at
fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL”), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable
without a significant financing component is initially

measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by

regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirely when determining whether their cash flows are

solely payment of principal and interest.

T B B o i Wy S AR AR B T 5 B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE_FE -FEFE=ZH=4+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

124

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i) Financial assets (Continued)

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not
held for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in
other comprehensive income. This election is made on an
investment-by-investment basis. Equity investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) are
measured at fair value. Dividend income are recognised in
profit or loss unless the dividend income clearly represents
a recovery of part of the cost of the investments. Other
net gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income and are not reclassified to profit or loss. All other
equity instruments are classified as FVTPL, whereby
changes in fair value, dividends and interest income are

recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on ﬁnancial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
loss (“ECL”) on trade receivables, contract assets, financial
assets measured at amortised cost and debt investments
measured at FVOCI. The ECLs are measured on either
of the following bases: (1) 12 months ECLs: these are
the ECLs that result from possible default events within
the 12 months after the reporting date: and (2) lifetime
ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument.
The maximum period considered when estimating ECL is
the maximum contractual period over which the Group is

exposed to credit risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #¢ Z.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.11Financial Instruments (Continued)

(@)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted
at an approximation to the assets’ original effective interest

rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for trade
receivables and contract assets using HKFRS 9 simplified
approach and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based
on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the

economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on
the 12-months ECLs. However, when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since origination, the

allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECL, the Group considers reasonable
and supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information analysis, based
on the Group’s historical experience and informed credit

assessment and including forward-looking information.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE_FE -FEFE=ZH=4+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

126

2.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset
has increased significantly if it is more than 90 days past

due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-impaired
when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

(2) the financial asset is more than 180 days past due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset.
For non credit-impaired financial assets, interest income is

calculated based on the gross carrying amount.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on
the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred. Financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value and financial liabilities at amortised
costs are initially measured at fair value, net of directly

attributable costs incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BEF FEZH=+—HILEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEGEBORBE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.11Financial Instruments (Continued) 21148 T H (&)
(i) Financial liabilities (Continued) (i) s&mA 67 (A7)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost Fiz 4 67 A 51 e 1 4 i £ £
Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and T B 8 A ) MR 1 4 il £ %
other payables, borrowings, and bond payables issued by £ 455 M8 Ao MR Ak B I Al JE A 35k
the Group which are subsequently measured at amortised T~ 5 8 AR SR AT Z AT
cost, using the effective interest method. The related interest 97 o % AF e H AR R
expense is recognised in profit or loss. B W 3 4 R 9 R A 4 o
A B A S B S R 4R AR A e
Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when A A L R g AT
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the W o W 2R B 18R 15 28
amortisation process. o
(iii) Effective interest method (iii) B BEFB %
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the BB R B TS A A R
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and 4 b £ 6 2 B 8 AR B
of allocating interest income or interest expense over the N R UG DSY L N
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that KBS 205 ¥ o BRI R T4
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments 4 il e sk B AR TE A
through the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or ol 0 e 0 TR (i JE ) > AR A
where appropriate, a shorter period. AT R 2R 2 B4 WA Bl A sk
BlZ & o
(iv) Equity instruments (iv) WA A
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at AR ) B BAT Z B TR R
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. JIT 4% B P A R T L R B
1T RAG R
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE_FE -FEFE=ZH=4+—HILFE

2

128

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(v) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for

derecognition in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or

expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments to a
creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or in part
as a result of renegotiating the terms of that liability, the
equity instruments issued are the consideration paid and are
recognised initially and measured at their fair value on the
date the financial liability or part thereof is extinguished.
If the fair value of the equity instruments issued cannot be
reliably measured, the equity instruments are measured to
reflect the fair value of the financial liability extinguished.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability or part thereof extinguished and the consideration

paid is recognised in profit or loss for the year.

2.12Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash in hand and deposits held at call with

banks.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BEF FEZH=+—HILEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.13Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly

in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date in the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to

the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income

tax liability is settled.

2 BEEFHEOR MR (@)

2.13 B 301 % Y %t P 1 Bt

A B 2 30 T B 2 45 B e A
B o Bt JH A A Fr 2 T L i A A e
i o B A Lt 2 G WA B B R
R 25 P e R 2 JELH A R R b o A2
BEAE DL - Bl IE IR 43 ol 3L At 22 i
W 5 o L 4 T B PN T

(a) BRI AT 1 B

B9 e A B S TG AR R A 4y
) B > AR R A R
B Z B 50 B R R R
H O A 2 B R B e A 2
Bt st 5 o i i ) B 5 o 1) %
TR T IR > S L B0
fili At e Z IR UL © A BH I 7% il
B IR A% B T S A T B
B Z < A A o

(b) BT 15 Bl

9% 5 Fr 45 B0 R R
A B A Y Bk B A
R AE A B B 5 A% Y R T
R I M 2 B A MR o R
T > 5 908 S8 At Y 4 20 g
AR 0 e W . - B S T R o
BB AR ALER 5 (B
WIEEE AU P HEERA
TR A e 28 » T 7252 5 A
5 B A E 25 o SR B
gt > F IR A A R iR o R R P 15
B BRI A6 55 39 oK Z i 2 A
i g BE B O > B AR B
VR SIE T 15 B E A B R
JIE Fir 45 6 64 5 45 55 g TEU00 5K
o B ER ()
o

5 5 5 R AR 18 A LA W]
mwwmgﬁ 129



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

fm © B 5 ¥k 2% B 5%

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE_FE -FEFE=ZH=4+—HILFE

2

130

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.13Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment property

that is measured at fair value is determined assuming the

property will be recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that

future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those

temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the
company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the

temporary differences and it is probable that the differences

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to

offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise

the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this

case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#n 6 B 55 3R R B 5E ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BEF FEZH=+—HILEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEGEBORBE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 B 301 % Y %t P £ B (%0)

2.13Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle

the balances on a net basis.

2.14Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlements is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any

one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-
tax interest rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The
increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as

interest expense.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

132

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.15Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down.
In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To
the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of

the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a
financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to
another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or

loss as other income or finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at

least 12 months after the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BEF FEZH=+—HILEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEGEBORBE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

21648 3K AR

2.16Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required
to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial

period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they

are incurred.

2.17 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in

equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.18 Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services

rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are

not recognised until the time of leave.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE_FE -FEFE=ZH=4+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

134

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Pension obligations

(c)

The Group contributes to a mandatory provident fund
scheme (“MPF Scheme”) under the requirements of the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The
assets of the scheme are generally held in separate trustee-
administered funds. Contributions to the MPF Scheme by
the Group and employees are calculated as a percentage of

the employees’ basic salaries.

The Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated
by the government of the PRC. The retirement scheme
contributions are based on a certain percentage of the

salaries of the subsidiaries’ employees.

The contributions are charged to the consolidated statement

of comprehensive income in the period in which they relate.

Bonus plan

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses,
based on a formula that takes into consideration the
profit attributable to the Company’s owners after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that

has created a constructive obligation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
#n 6 B 55 3R R B 5E ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BEF FEZH=+—HILEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEGEBORBE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued) 2.18 1@ B i A (40)
(d) Termination benefits (d) AU 1EMERE A
Termination benefits are payable when employment is ¢ 1k A A A R R AR 4R I 7E O
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement R AR H A 1k 08 IR R
date. The Group recognises termination benefits when it is A o 8 B HAT W A OE ST A
demonstrably committed to a termination when the entity LB R B 2 08 A - H I 4
has a detailed formal plan to terminate the employment |l 2 ] RE I > AHE B A R
of current employees without possibility of withdrawal. 18 7R Gl AT A Lk IR R R A Ik
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of A 55 A ) o 7 ik T U R AR B IR
the reporting period are discounted to their present value. + 8 A B R R
BlELBIUE -
2.19Interest income 2.198 B A
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis using the AR A TT R R B B R
effective interest method. TH] Ll 4] B 1 e 52 o
2.20Revenue recognition 2.20 Y it W w2
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when KH KA Z W7 5 i ik
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at 5 A 42 ) RE RS 2% 5 GRS > JL
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group A AR W A A R ) R AR %
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services, B i B R 55 i AT R A A AR i
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties. B A7 58 = J WU & A o AR A
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after AL 356 1 (BB 58 At 85 85 B - S 1 BR
deduction of any trade discounts. 247 B 5 4 o

ARRA A
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

136

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.20Revenue recognition (Continued)

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that apply
to the contract, control of the goods or service may be transferred
over time or at a point in time. Control of the goods or service is

transferred over time if the Group’s performance:

e  provides all of the benefits received and consumed

simultaneously by the customer;

. creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the

Group performs; or

*  does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for

performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time, revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time

when the customer obtains control of the goods or service.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amounts
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. Where the contract
contains a financing component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under that
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For contracts where
the period between the payment and the transfer of the promised
goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price is not
adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component,

using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.20Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Financial Consulrancy service

The Group provides financial consultancy service to
customers. Financial consultancy service income is
recognised in the accounting period in which the service is
rendered. For the service contract relates to routine services,
the service income will be recognised on a straight line
basis over the contract terms as the work is performed. For
services that are provided on adhoc basis, service income is
recognised upon completion of the provision of such ad-hoc

services.

Rental income

Operating lease rental income is recognised on a straight

line basis over the lease terms.

Sales of properties

Revenue arising from the sale of properties developed for
sale in the ordinary course of business is recognised when
the property is accepted by the customer, or deemed as
accepted according to the contract, whichever is earlier,
which is the point in time when the customer has the ability
to direct the use of the property and obtain substantially
all of the remaining benefits of the property. Deposits and
instalments received on properties sold prior to the date
of revenue recognition were included in the consolidated

statement of financial position under contract liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE_FE -FEFE=ZH=4+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 BEEFHBORBE s

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.20 0 2% WE w2 (50)

2.20Revenue recognition (Continued)

(d) Comprehensive healthcare planning and management

services income

Service income is recognised over time as the counterparties
simultancously receive and consume benefits when the

Company performs the management services.

2.21Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent asset or liability is a possible asset or obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more

uncertain events not wholly within the control of the Group.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements. When a change in
the probability of an outflow of economic resources occurs so that

the outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually certain,

an asset is recognised.

2.22Related parties

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related

to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(if) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of key management personnel of the

Group or the Company’s parent.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BEF FEZH=+—HILEE

2 BEEFHEOR MR (@)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.22Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions apply:

@

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and

fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of

a group of which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the

other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group or an entity

related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence

over the entity or is a member of key management

personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a

part, provides key management personnel services to

the group or to the group’s parent.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE_FE -FEFE=ZH=4+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.22Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,

that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or

domestic partner.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

140

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance. The Group has not used

any derivative financial instruments to hedge its risk exposures.

Risk management for the Company and its subsidiaries is carried
out by the Executive Committee which identifies, evaluates
and monitors financial risk in close co-operation with the
Group’s operating units. The Group monitors the financial
risk continuously to minimise the risk, such as credit risk and

liquidity risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#n 6 B 55 3R R B 5E ()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables and bank deposits. The exposures to these

credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade receivables, the Group reassesses the
lifetime expected credit losses at the end of the reporting
period to ensure the adequate impairment losses are
made for significant increases in the likelihood or risk of
default occurring since initial recognition. In this regard,
management of the Group considers that the Group’s credit

risk is significantly reduced.

In respect of other receivables, the Group closely monitors
the credit performances and prompt repayments from the
counterparties. The Group has policies in place to review the
recoverability of other receivables on an ongoing basis and

assess the adequacy of provision for impairment.

In respect of bank deposits, the Group has diversified its
exposures into different financial institutions. It has policies
in place to assess the credit standing of the counterparties

and financial institutions before the Group invests its assets.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

142

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of the
Group’s available cash and other interest-bearing loans that
the Group considers appropriate. Equity and other long
term financing including strategic partnerships, or strategic
joint ventures are also considered by the Group in its capital

structuring.

The Group monitors rolling forecasts of its liquidity reserve
which comprises borrowing facilities and cash and cash

equivalents on the basis of expected cash flow.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the date of the consolidated statement of financial
position to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows. Balances due within 12 months approximate
their carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not

significant.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

(b) 7B & <& KT (A7)

Within Between Between More than

1 year 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years 5 years Total
—4E K — B4 MELH LN L it
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THL THI THL T T#L

As at 31 March 2020 RERZREZAZ,—H
Other payables and accruals 00 A T M B B 253,691 1,092 3,276 2,184 260,243
Borrowings e 600,586 43,335 - - 643,921
Lease liabilicies HEAR 8,666 2,375 512 - 11,553
862,943 46,802 3,788 2,184 915,717

As at 31 March 2019 RER-WEZAZF—H
Other payables and accruals — H A REAY 08 J JE 7 £ £ 191,150 1,484 3,507 3,507 199,648
Borrowings fi & 38,689 55,758 613,141 - 707,588
229,839 57,242 616,048 3,507 907,236

3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 ¥/ b B 4% B

The capital structure of the Group consists of owner’s equity,
which include cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable
to equity holders of the Company which comprises the issued

share capital and retained earnings.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue to provide returns for
shareholders and to support the Group’s stability and growth.
The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure to
ensure optimal capital structure to maintain a balance between
higher shareholders’ returns that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by
a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital

structure in light of changes in economic conditions.
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3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the net debt to total
capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total
capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less cash and
bank balance. Total capital is calculated as “Equity” as shown in
the consolidated statements of financial position plus net debrt.

The gearing ratio as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 are as

3.2

B A b B A PR (1)

7 55 AR 4 2 B AR AL P b
REVEEA o % b R T 1A B
DL AR BT B o R TG A K
RBUIRBL P BRAT S Rt B o A
BB GHE RS 7 M B AR DL P 517 Y
[HEss | Bt - 2R 2%

follows: FEEZHEF—H SR -NUEZA
E=t—HMEEABILRNT:
2020 2019
“ERORE DR AE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#xL T#L
Net debt B 584,811 430,973
Total equity RE 25 0 1,902,061 2,027,821
Net debt to equity ratio T 6 15 BB 23 1 BB R 30.7% 21.25%

3.3 Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair
value, by valuation method. The different levels have been

defined as follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities (level 1).

e Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices)

(level 2).

*  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)

(level 3).

Crown International Corporation Limited
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3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The following table presents the Group’s financial instruments

that are measured at fair value at 31 March 2020:

H:
Level 3 Total
=% bk 1]
HK$°000 HK$’000

T#x T#x

As at 31 March 2020 RE-BZFREZH=Z+—H

Asset ¥ A
Financial asset at fair value through A PR A A 2 T
other comprehensive income — W Z &Rl & B
equity investment — R ARBE 1,765 1,765

The Group measures its financial asset at fair value through
other comprehensive income at fair value. The financial asset was
revalued by independent qualified valuers who holds a recognised
and relevant professional qualification and has recent experience
in the valuation of similar investment. The Group’s managements
have discussion with the independent qualified valuers on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is

performed at each annual reporting day.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
is based on quoted market prices at the end of reporting period.
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an

arm’s length basis.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market is determined by using valuation techniques. These
valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market
data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an

instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

ACSE D o P AE EE B R A P E
N Al 2 T R 25 2 4 L E o Sl
HREMFAE AR EEERH
LA 3 500 48 3 20 90 A 6 A 8
i 7. B Al 6L T Rl o 7 B 4
JEEHR S S AT 0 I - AR AR A
L 34 SR 3L A A A 8 RORE A
i ABE B B Al i A SR AT 5 i

RERETSHEZ &M T EZ A
- 75 35 07 9 OR 2 T 4 A
HEE M2 53 Pt ~ R v~ AL~ AT
SEALAR ~ B A R SRS R VT B
I e 2 W AT - T AT A R 4%
O P B R T R R AT 2
B2 Gy » S AT B T 35 R A e 3 O

A G HRT H R e TR A
SRS 1 Al 47 T E o % A Al
i 5 8 i R R T 98 BN T 45 IR
2 W - Al R AR R
S8 AT o i A E T A SPET
Z P A K i A\ T B - T
RN TY/N

5 5 5 R AR 18 A LA W]
mwwmgﬁ 145



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e

87} 155 ¥ < Bfd 5 (i

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE_FE -FEFE=ZH=4+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

146

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable

market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Specific valuation assumptions used to value financial instruments

include:

. Net asset value of the financial instruments which is a

significant unobservable input; and

e Adjustment for discount for lack of marketability and lack
of controls are used to determine fair value for the financial

instruments.
As at 31 March 2020, it is estimated that with all other variables
held constant, an increase/decrease in net asset value of the
financial instrument by 5% would have increased/decreased the

Group’s other comprehensive income by HK$88,250.

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 for the year.

Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of financial

3 B R B A B (m)
3.3 A Pa =2 A wl (s)
1t — T o 2 6 T A A A 0

BT AT B T e - % TR
A=

< il LAl 8 BT O P 2 4 A A
e st B 45

o R T HAREEFE RA
B H P B R A e

o R A R I &
T A B E A TR
ERUEI e

N oROBE=ZA=+—H AR
i B A R AN DL R > TS RL T
FU& g E B, WA 5% > A A4 18
JE b 2 T W 25 4 9 A2 88,2508 IT

BB A~ 5 AR SR = AR Z TR AR I

SRR 58 = A A P 4 ik TR A 30T 40

instruments classified as level 3 fair value hierarchy are provided B AR R IR T
as follows:
HK$’000
T
Unlisted equity investments FE Ll AR B
At 1 April 2019 PR -JUENA—H -
Addition NE 2,700
Decrease in fair value recognised in EIWAS i T € A AN S -
other comprehensive income (935)
At 31 March 2020 R ZA=4H 1,765
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

In the process of applying the accounting policies described in Note
2 above, the Group has made the following judgments that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements. The key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the financial position
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the Group’s assets and liabilities within the next

financial year are disclosed below.

The carrying values of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities approximate to their fair values due to their short-term
maturities. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes
is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the
current market interest rate that is available to the Group for similar

financial instruments, unless the discounting effect is insignificant.

(a) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are certain transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the year in which such determination is made. It is
the Group’s policy to recognise deferred tax assets for unused tax
losses carried forward to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the unused tax
losses can be utilised, based on all available evidence. Recognition
primarily depends on the Group’s expectation of future taxable
profit that will be available against which tax losses can be
utilised. The Group has measured the deferred tax relating to
the temporary differences of their investment properties using
tax rates and the tax bases that are consistent with the expected
manner of recovery of their investment properties. The details of

the assessment are disclosed in Note 24.
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(b) Investment properties

()

The fair value of each investment property is individually
determined at each reporting date by independent valuer based
on a market value assessment. The valuers have relied on direct
comparison method as its primary methods. Details of the
valuation techniques and assumptions have been disclosed in

Note 15.

Impairment of construction in progress and

properties under development for sale

In determining whether allowance should be made to the Group’s
construction in progress and properties under development for
sale, the Group takes into consideration the current market
environment and the estimated net realisable value (i.e. the actual
or estimated selling price less estimated costs to complete and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sales). An allowance is
made if the estimated net realisable value is less than the carrying
amount. If the actual net realisable value on construction in
progress and properties under development held for sale is less
than expected as a result of change in market condition and/or
variation in the budgeted development cost, material allowances
for impairment losses may result if the net realisable value is less

than the carrying amount.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(d) Going concern consideration

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, apart
from those involving estimations, management has prepared the
consolidated financial statements on the assumption that the
Group will be able to operate as a going concern in the coming
year, which is a critical judgement that has the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements. The assessment of the going concern assumption
involves making a judgement by the directors of the Company, at
a particular point of time, about the future outcome of events or
conditions which are inherently uncertain. The directors of the
Company consider that the Group has the capability to continue
as a going concern and the major events or conditions, which may
give rise to business risks, that individually or collectively may
cast significant doubt upon the going concern assumption are set

out in Note 2.1(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the chief operating decision-maker, namely the executive
directors, for their decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s
business component and for their review of the performance of
that component. The business components in the internal financial
information reported to the executive directors are principally
engaged in property investment, property development, hotel
operations, provision of financial consultancy service and provision of

comprehensive healthcare planning and management services.
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INFORMATION (Continued)

(a) Analysis of revenue by category

5 Wk K ER (s

() #BUN 5 Hr Z Wtk

2020 2019

—F-FF  —FNE

HK$’000 HKS$’000

Tl Fil

Rental income MaEBA 14,588 5,371
Comprehensive healthcare planning 2 W ] Wl 52 2 A SR 3k

and management services income PR W
recognised over time 326 -
14,914 5,371

As at 31 March 2020, the aggregated amount of the transaction
price allocated to the remaining performance obligations under
the Group’s existing contracts is HK$102,805,000 (2019:
HK$29,590,000). The amount represented revenue expected to
be recognised in the future from pre-completion sales contracts
for properties under development and provision of comprehensive
healthcare planning and management services. This amount
includes the interest component of pre-completion properties
sales contracts under which the Group obrains significant
financing benefits from the customers. The Group will recognise
the expected revenue in future when or as the service is rendered
or, in the case of the properties under development for sales,
when the properties ownership are assigned to the customers
which is expected to occur over the next 12 to 24 months (2019:

next 12 to 36 months).

Crown International Corporation Limited
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5 WA B W EER (a)
INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) Segment information (b) 2 ¥ %k

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed A B ] A SR TR R A S A

separately, according to the nature of their operations and the P T P i A8t B i 4 B ) A

services they provide. Each of the Group’s business segments Bl o AREE I 2 S 4y WA H Ry —

represents a strategic business unit which is subject to risks and SR Mg S 5 LA > BT R 52 L i

returns that are different from those of other business segments. JIt A e R A 31 T At S 5 43 5 o 3K

Summarised details of the business segments are as follows: W54y H8 Z GEAE LA N T

i) the property investment segment engages in investment NI /E ‘s <@yl kg u i i
of properties in cities of Yingkou, Jinggangshan and It B Ly T R A L T A S 3
Zhongshan of the PRC, the Group aims to use these B - ARG M G BR
properties for properties rental or capital appreciation S M 3 AL O AR 1 T
purposes; &

ii)  the property development segment engages in property i) R S A S A T
development and sales of properties in Weihai city (TR 1) Z W 6 88 e S 3%
(“Weihai”); Fie e ¥

iii) the hotel operations segment engages in hotel rental and i) 0 R A A R R B A
food and beverage business in Weihai; J H A B A RO S

5 5 5 R AR 18 A LA W]
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INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued)

iv) the financial consultancy service segment engages in the
provision of financial consultancy service to assist customers

to obtain financing;

v)  the comprehensive healthcare planning and management
services segment engages in the provision of comprehensive
healthcare planning and management services to the

healthcare operators; and

vi) the unallocated segment comprises operations other than
those specified in (i), (ii), (iii), (iv) and (v) above and

includes that of the corporate office.

The hotel operations in Weihai is yet to commence operation
as at 31 March 2020 as it is currently under construction. The
property development operation is currently under pre-sale stage

and the relevant properties are under construction.

Capital expenditure comprise additions to investment properties
and property, plant and equipment. Segment assets consist
primarily of investment properties, properties under development
for sale, property, plant and equipment and receivables. Segment
liabilities comprise deferred income tax liabilities, operating
liabilities and borrowings. Unallocated assets and liabilities
mainly represent assets and liabilities used by the corporate office,
which cannot be allocated on a reasonable basis to any segment,

which include items such as cash and cash equivalents.

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2019/2020
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued)

The directors of the Company assess the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of segment results, which
represent, operating profit less central administrative costs. The
segment results, depreciation, fair value gains on investment
properties and capital expenditure based on reportable segments

for the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

5

W 2k B 4 8 E B (a0

(b) 2 E R (8

A2 ) O R R A R A (B A
i 9 AT BOBAR ) R AR 2 R
B-BEZRFRER R NAFEZEA
= R AR B T e o By 2
SrREAL YT BEWEZ AFER
A B A BASC AT

Comprehensive
healthcare
Financial ~ planning and
Property Property Hotel consultancy ~ management
investment development operations service services Unallocated Total
SHEN  KEREH
IE 2414 LES WA T HHME  RAREH it
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Ti#n T Ti#x Ti#x T Tix
For the year ended 31 March 2020 ~ BE_F_Z4=J=+—H
AR
Segment revenue: igitied
Revenue from external customers RESMEEF 2 W 14,588 - - - 326 - 14,914
Segment results VEES | 51,737 (3,189) (700) (5,010) (1,118) (18,822) 22,898
Finance income HHWA 185
Finance costs B A (1,115)
Profit before income tax i B A B R A 21,968
Income tax expense Fi AR B (13,168)
Profit for the year A A 8,800
Other segment information T ¥ B
Depreciation on property, plancand — #13 ~ BUR K3 fii 4 8
equipment (254) (222) (49) (2,038 (354) (5,641) (8,558)
Fair value gains on investment BEMEZNTHEA
properties, net i 41,198 - - - - - 41,198
Additions to wE
~ Property, plant and equipment REN VYT - 988 33,080 5,074 2,381 615 42,138
- Investment properties -t EnE 1,462 - - - - - 1,462
5L 568 BRER AR 1 A R A ]

2019/2020 4E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE_FE -FEFE=ZH=4+—HILFE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (Continued)

154

(b) Segment information (Continued)

5 Wk K ER (s

(b) 2+ &R (50

Financial
Property Property Hotel consultancy
investment development operations service Unallocated Total
B
WmERH LS 130 Tk 1 e RATHH At
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T T T
For the year ended 31 March 2019 &E-F—A4E=H=+—H
LA E
Segment revenue: gidiey
Revenue from external customers A€ HAMB % F Z 45 5,371 - - - - 5,371
Segment results VaiES 47,302 (8,845) (1,941) 3) (24,935) 11,578
Finance income WHBA 4,075
Finance costs AR (888)
Profit before income tax e B 45 i 2k ) 14,765
Income tax expense Fi BB 3 (10,974)
Profit for the year A 74 i A 3,791
Other segment information et BB
Depreciation on property, plant VEN ST Ei
and equipment (315) (102) (22) - (672) (1,111)
Fair value gains on investment BEMEZ N THERNFH
properties, net 45,462 - - - - 45,462
Additions to WE
- Property, plant and equipment B EN UYEL ] 598 66 37,300 - - 37,964
— Investment properties — BB 1,166 - - - - 1,166

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#n 6 B 55 3R R B 5E ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BEF FEZH=+—HILEE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5 Wodi B o dE R (a0
INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) 2r¥BE R (8)
3 customers (year ended 31 March 2019: 3) contributed more ZHEP (BREZ-NLEZ=ZH
than 10% revenue of the Group. Et+—HILEE: =Z4) nARgL
R 1 0% 25 -
2020 2019
TR R ZE -
Property Property
investment investment
segment segment
PEBRESE WEREST
HKS$’000 HK$000
T# T Tt
Customer A EFA 9,401 -
Customer B 5B 1,950 2,018
Customer C wFAC 1,881 1,948
Customer D FD N/AA % 1,405
Total At 13,232 5,371
5L BRER AR A BR A )

2019/2020 4E 1 5 5



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
¥ B B 5 ¥R R Bt 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE_FE -FEFE=ZH=4+—HILFE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5 Wk KB R (s

INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) 2+ &R (50

REFZRERZFEFEZA
=t H o 3R 2 2 2 o

(b) Segment information (Continued)

The segment assets and liabilities based on reportable segments as

at 31 March 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

156

MR AT

Comprehensive

healthcare

Financial  planning and

Property Property Hotel consultancy  management
investment  development operations service services Unallocated Total

SWEN  kKEARH
ESi4 14 WERR il 374 HUME KRR it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Ti#n T T Ti#n T T Ti#n

At 31 March 2020 REB-FEZAZ4—H
Segment assets SRR 1,925,661 1,074,783 235,928 4,188 2,116 31,597 3,074,273
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBE%EN 49 81 - 671 438 262 1,501
Total assets jigi Y 1,925,710 1,074,864 235,928 4,859 2,554 31,859 3,275,774
Segment liabilicies SR (428,857) (714,992) (156,950) (3,644) (2,984) (66,286)  (1,373,713)
Total liabilities AR (428,857) (714,992) (156,950) (3,644) (2,984) (66,286)  (1,373,713)
At31 March 2019 REZ-WEZAZT-H

Segment assets SmEE 2,006,827 918,651 201,655 400 - 2,688 3,130,221
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBEF0N 12,357 120,139 - 477 - 7,350 140,323
Total assets g0 2,019,184 1,038,790 201,655 877 - 10,038 3,270,544
Segment liabilities AR (445,559) (638,105) (140,072) (187) - (18801)  (1,42,723)
Total liabilities ARAH (445,559) (638,105) (140,072) (187) - (18,801) (1,242,723)

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
#n 6 B 55 3R R B 5E ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BEF FEZH=+—HILEE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5 WA B W EER (a)

INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) 2r¥BE R (8)
The Group’s businesses operate in Hong Kong and the PRC. The 7 £ [ 7 A s B v R AR S o AR
Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019 HEBREFFER-E N
and non-current assets other than financial instruments, deposit EEHZA kA
paid for corporate asset and deferred income tax assets as at 31 WA R T RER
March 2020 and 2019 based on geographical area are as follows: Z-NEZA =+ H b 5 H)

W E A (ST TR
4 [ AT R PR SR AE T

BREERRIN) W F -
2020 2019
SRTRIE R
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#xL FHoo
Revenue Wi
PRC H [ 14,914 5,371
Non-current assets It By 7
Hong Kong s 6,144 401
PRC o g 2,109,829 2,173,785
2,115,973 2,174,186
Revenue is categorised based on the jurisdiction in which the W 25 ¥ % 5 i AE W) 3 RE I O AT 4
customers are located. Non-current assets are categorised based on Bio BB E B G B T e w47
where the assets are located. SR

5 5 5 R AR 18 A LA W]
2019/2020 g\iiﬁ 1 5 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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& 87 15 ¥ < Bfd 5

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE_FE -FEFE=ZH=4+—HILFE

OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES), NET

6 JAbEA, Oite) 5 #

2020 2019

SRORE DR

HK$’000 HKS$’000

T#x T#T

Exchange losses, net [E 58 s 18 15 - (32)
Loss on written off of property, WS P 3 ~ B B Bt Z

plant and equipment &5 18 - (5006)
Loss on disposal of property, MEW - BE R iz

plant and equipment &5 18 (6) -

Others HoAth 37 88

31 (450)

STAFF COSTS

The staff costs disclosed below are for all employees and include all

Directors’ emoluments (Note 13(a)).

7 MR sk

TR R B R B > B A
BERZME (MEE13a) °

2020 2019

“Bo®E R

HK$°000 HK$°000

T#T T#T

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits Wt 4 B At 301 i B AR R 13,106 14,001
Contributions to defined contribution plans S AL K G E ft K 657 697
13,763 14,698

All employees of the subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC who
are PRC citizens participate in employee social security plans enacted
in the PRC, including pension, medical and other welfare benefits,
which are organised and administrated by the government authorities.
According to the relevant regulations, the Group contributes on
a monthly basis based on certain percentages of the salaries of the
employees, subject to a certain ceiling, and are paid to the labor and
social welfare authorities. Contributions to the plans are expensed as

incurred.

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2019/2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
#n 6 B 55 3R R B 5E ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BEF FEZH=+—HILEE

FINANCE (COSTS)/INCOME, NET 8 WH OfA) WA
2020 2019
SRTRAE R UE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# L T o0
Interest expense: B S
Accretion of consideration and other AR Je Ho At A 3k T =2
payables (Note 23) REFTE (B 5E23) (335) (477)
Interest on entrusted loan TR Z A B (37,566) (36,113)
Interest on bond payable JE A 65 27 2 1) &L (6,653) (411)
Interest on lease liabilities MEAEZME (780) -
(45,334) (37,001)
Less: Capitalised interest W G AR ZF S 44,219 36,113
Finance costs 9 B AR (1,115) (888)
Interest income: FLE WA
Bank interest income AT H WA 185 130
Interest income from short term investment AR EZ A B WA - 128
Interest income from loan receivable HE Wk 2 A B - 3,817
Finance income g PN 185 4,075
Net finance (costs)/income W8 O ), WA 38 (930) 3,187
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 9 BRI £ B i kA
Profit before income tax for the year is arrived at after charging: A A JBE Bk BT 45 6 T 6 A B
2020 2019
SRTRAE R
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# L Tt
Auditor’s remuneration % 95 i T 4 1,350 1,350
Minimum lease payments for properties REMBHTHRZ
under operating leases I I A B A K - 7,116

ARRA A
2019/2020 g\iiﬁ 1 5 9



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE_FE -FEFE=ZH=4+—HILFE

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income represents:

10 Ji £ B B 3

i

Aok B A T WA AR N A B 2 BT 4

2020 2019
SRoRE T
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T#L Tt
Current tax B35 56 2
PRC o
— Current year — R4 2,790 821
Under/(over) provision in prior years VLB AR BE RS R R (o B 43
#) 78 (1,212)
2,868 (391)
Deferred taxation 9% 48 i 5 10,300 11,365
13,168 10,974

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the

theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate

7 S [ s o A A i ¥ ) 2 A5 S
TR 08 W) Z SRR IR P 3 R Gt

applicable to the results of the consolidated companies as follows: W2 MmB AW T &R
2020 2019
—“FFE ZFONE
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T#x T#T
Profit before income tax Wi Fir 4 5L 1 i A 21,968 14,765
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to 2T 7 45 ) 3k A R i AR
profits in the respective jurisdictions it Fl| 2 5 HUBE R G L 2 B 7,144 5,630
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AT B B 3 2 Bl I 5 B 258 623
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue RPN Z B 52 (16) (6]
Under/(over) provision in prior years VAT AR EERE AN
(8 )5 #324) 78 (1,212)
Deferred tax assets not recognised AR T 8 2 0 o T 5,704 5,934
Income tax expense B 449 B BH 32 13,168 10,974

Crown International Corporation Limited
1 6 O Annual Report 2019/2020




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

&r 0 B 5 HR R Pt 5 (@

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BEF FEZH=+—HILEE

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The applicable rate of Hong Kong profits tax is 16.5% (2019: 16.5%).
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made for the year as
the Group has no assessable profit for the year (2019: Nil). Provision
for China corporate income tax is calculated based on the statutory
tax rate of 25% (2019: 25%) on the assessable income of each of the

Group’s PRC entities.

11 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings per ordinary share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the

year.

10 P 45388 BH 3 (a0
FWAERZEARRE165% (ZF
—JUAE 1 16.5% ) o I AR 45 [ AR 1 If 41
JERBE R ( U4 ) > BUR AR
47 B N 4 A s R A BEAE 4B - R
i 3 FT A58 35 40 AR 8 A 4 1 4% o [
8 2 ER B AR BB R 25% (ZF
—JUAF 1 25% ) FHH o

11 &
(a) IR I 2 A R T D4R AR
2 M 35 45 A A RE A BB R DL
97 % 9 e 2 I 4 W o

2020 2019
—ERDRE . CF A

Profit for the year attributable to owners of Ao E AN AN AR R R A -

the Company, HK$’000 T#T 9,379 3,791
Weighted average number of ordinary LB AT 5 7 B 2 IR 7 3 8

shares in issue 3,430,000,000 3,430,000,000
Basic earnings per ordinary share, HK cent B R 98 M B A 2 ) > WAL 0.27 0.11

(b) The calculation of diluted earnings per ordinary share is based on
the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares used, which is
the same for calculating basic earnings per ordinary share above,
as the Company did not have any dilutive potential ordinary

shares for the two years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019.

12 DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors do not recommend payment of final dividend

for the year ended 31 March 2020 (year ended 31 March 2019: Nil).

(b) B M 9 2R 2 BT TS DA
A2 T BN RE AR AF 7 % A e st
B3 b SO I 2 B 2 Bk R 2 A I
Fiv FH =2 40 1) 3 728 T o R 7 3% S
K9 FNERA AR ERE R
CEERZENE=ZA =S
H 1k 73 A 42 5 N 20 A £ ¥ A6 7 4
T A 3 T

12 BB

EETAERRBRE B _FHE=
H=E=+—HIHEERMKRE (RE_F
—NEZHAZ+—HIR4ERE K)o

SRR ERAE H A R A
2019/2020 4E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B _F_FE=F=1—HIFEF

13 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS

13 o 3 2 4 A B A 4

() FHFREMHITEARZHE

HAERREHITBANRZHM
out below: WmE:

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive is set

BE_F-RE-H=1+—HI
i

For the year ended 31 March 2020:

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

A AL R A R A W) 36 o (LR B Eﬂﬁﬂkzﬁlﬁ
Emoluments paid
or receivable in
respect of director’s

162

other services in
connection with
the management of
Employer’s the affairs of the
contribution to Company
retirement benefit or its subsidiary
Name Fees Salaries scheme undertakin, Total
Rl
A SR 2 ) B
NSRS P
BhRFAG I SR AR
4 wa o i 1k ak 2 4 o
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
T#i T T T T
Executive directors e RIE
Hung Man fe 1,500 = 19 = 1,519
Li Yong Jun £y & 600 - - - 600
Liu Hong Shen LIRS 600 - - - 600
Meng Jin Long naH 483 269 2 - 754
Independent non-executive [ RE = FiF ¢
directors
Long Tao i 200 - - - 200
Ren Guo Hua i E 200 - - - 200
Chen Fang B 200 - - - 200
3,783 269 21 - 4,073

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#n 6 B 55 3R R B 5E ()

Rrﬁqaumdﬂ}h%ﬂiZ&méfﬁ:igiigaﬁfigf?f‘iiiﬁy%

13 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 13 ¥ g0 Z 1) B P At (a0
DIRECTORS (Continued)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) HWHEBEHITEANBRZME
(Continued) (%)
For the year ended 31 March 2019: KEZF-NWAE=ZA=Z+—HIL
AR BE

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertakin
AL UES R BAA A S A ) B BB OB W

Emoluments paid

or receivable in

respect of director’s

other services in

connection with

the management of

Employer’s the affairs of
contribution to the Company
retirement benefit or its subsidiary
Name Fees Salaries scheme undertakin Total
[N s
AR HAL TS
o EREARTEZ
WAL BN AL
i e #a 1 3 3% JE e 2 4 ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'00
T T T T T
Executive directors BirE S
Hung Man (Note a) fEA (Hrata) 16 - - - 16
Li Yong Jun (Note b) AKE (Wikb) 1,367 - - - 1,367
Liu Hong Shen B 600 - - - 600
Meng Jin Long neH 600 - - - 600
Yeung Man, Simon (Note c) B (M) 1,434 - 18 - 1,452
Wong Hoi Kin (Note d) HE (Mkd) 670 - 14 - 684
Independent non-executive ~ BALIFHITHEF
directors
Long Tao it 200 - - - 200
Ren Guo Hua iRek 200 - - - 200
Chen Fang B 200 - - - 200
5,287 - 32 - 5,319
Notes: B 5
(a) Ms. Hung Man was appointed as the Chairman and Chief () BEHLER_-F—-NIWE=H_+/N\H
Executive Officer of the Company on 28 March 2019. W TAT Ry A A W] 5 AT B A
(b) Mr. Li Yong Jun was appointed as the Executive Director and vice (b) ZKERAER-F—)EHHAZHE
chairman of the Company on 3 May 2018. ZAT T A v F BUAT AR R o
(¢)  Mr. Yeung Man, Simon was resigned on 28 March 2019. () Mfkedn _—_F—NWE=H_1+/N\H
BEAE -
(d)  Mr. Wong Hoi Kin was appointed as an Executive Director on 9 (d) FHWEREEN - ) ELHILHE
July 2018 and resigned on 28 March 2019. EEABNTEELR 2 NEZH
Z T \HEHE

5 5 5 R AR 18 A LA W]
2019/2020 g\iiﬁ 1 63



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE_FE -FEFE=ZH=4+—HILFE

13 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(Continued)

The Company’s executive directors represent all of the
Company’s chief executives. Accordingly, no separate disclosure
in respect of the remuneration of the chief executives is made in

the financial statements.

No emoluments were paid to any director as an inducement to
y
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of

office during the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: Nil).

(b) Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any termination

benefits during the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: Nil).

(c) Consideration provided to third parties for making

available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group did not pay
consideration to any third parties for making available directors’

services (2019: Nil).

(d) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

As at 31 March 2020, there was no loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings arrangements in favour of directors, controlled bodies

corporate by and connected entities with such directors (2019:

Nil).

Crown International Corporation Limited
1 6 4 Annual Report 2019/2020
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13 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#n 6 B 55 3R R B 5E ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BEF FEZH=+—HILEE

DIRECTORS (Continued)

(e)

()

Directors’ material interests in transactions, (e)
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Group was a party
and in which a director of the Group had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: Nil).

Five highest paid individuals )

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2020 comprise 3 directors
and 2 employees (2019: comprise 3 directors and 2 employees).
The details of the emoluments payable to the 2 employees (2019:

2) during the year are presented below:

13 4 Z A B M4k (0

WA R T KRS Kb
Z WK HE AR

755 T S8 A A 4R [ SR A BT S K
25y~ KHE R AT R AR
o R RAEH P AR ESRE
Pk M BT OB A - HIR R
CERICREZA=SHIESER
AR BAR AT T IR T 3 8 3% (=
FUE ) o

EXE 37 JN=n

BECEFFE=A=1HIRSE
JE > AR A e BN L B =
HEREIWARE (ZFJUE:
BFE=AEFLAWEAER) - FR
WEAHZ W 4 (ZF U Wi 4)

REZMEFBEFWT -
2020 2019
“RORE F A
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#xL F#oT
Salaries and other short-term 3 4 B At 55 1 (R B A A
employee benefits 1,787 2,099
Pension costs — defined contribution plan TR 4 AR — S AL K 38 20
1,825 2,119

Number of individuals

A¥

2020 2019
—F-FE ZFNE

Emoluments band T 4 i [

HK$1 — HK$1,000,000 1% 76 — 1,000,000 7t
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001%5 JE — 1,500,000 %5 JT
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001%5 ¢ — 2,000,000%5 7T

1 1
1 _
- 1
2 2

5 5 5 R AR 18 A LA W]
2019/2020 g\iiﬁ 1 6 5



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE_FE -FEFE=ZH=4+—HILFE

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14 P93 - Wi s B i i

Computer, Other
office Construction properties
Furniture and equipment Leasehold Motor in progress leased for
fixtures  and machinery  improvement vehicles (note) own use Total
T AR ERTH fie R
BREEE  RWRER AE%EE it (Hak) AR E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
Tix T T Tix T Ti#n Tix
Year ended 31 March 2019 BREZZ-NAEZN =~ AR
Opening net book amount AR 3 3,406 600 944 139,433 - 144,386
Currency translation differences I - (222) - (30) (8,901) - (9,153)
Additions e 149 66 - 449 37,300 - 37,964
Written off 4 - (506) - - - - (506)
Charge for the year HEREE (26) (220) (200) (665) - - (1,111)
Closing net book amount LS R 126 2,524 400 698 167,832 - 171,580
As at 31 March 2019 BoF-REZAZS-H
Cost A 1,384 4349 1,829 3,287 167,832 - 178,681
Accumulated depreciation BithiE (1,258) (1,825) (1,429) (2,589) - - (7,101)
126 2,524 400 698 167,832 - 171,580
Asat 1 April 2019 REZ-RAENH—H
Cost Bk
At 31 March 2019 as originally presenced ~ RZZ—-UEZAZ+—HF 25 1,384 4349 1,829 3,287 167,832 - 178,681
Initial application of HKFRS 16 PIUCHE R i B 5 S R B0 6
(Note 2.1(b)(0) 5 (W#E210)0)) - - - - - 13,390 13,390
1,384 4,349 1,829 3,287 167,832 13,390 192,071
Accumulated depreciation BatiH (1,258) (1,825) (1,429) (2,589) - - (7,101)
Restated balance as at 1 April 2019 REBNAENA— AR 2 &b 126 2,524 400 698 167,832 13,390 184,970
Year ended 31 March 2020 BREZBRESA ST AR
Restated balance as at 1 April 2019 REF—NENA—HEEH 2 hh 126 2,524 400 698 167,832 13,390 184,970
Currency translation differences BN LT 2 (1) (163) - (33) (11,895) (@17) (12,319)
Additions e 157 115 = 600 34,062 7,204 42,138
Disposal & - - - (298) - - (298)
Lease modification HEBY - = = = = (1,943) (1,943)
Charge for the year MR (42) (206) (200) (231) - (7,879) (8,558)
Closing net book amount A T ¥ 230 2,270 200 736 189,999 10,555 203,990
As at 31 March 2020 REBZREZA =1
Cost A 1,527 4,241 1,812 1,845 189,999 18,372 217,796
Accumulated depreciation it (1,297) (1,971) (1,612) (1,109) - (7,817) (13,806)
230 2,270 200 736 189,999 10,555 203,990
Note: As at 31 March 2020, the carrying amount of interests in Migh: Ro-RZREEA=Z1T—H - RE
leasehold land defined as right-of-use assets were included in the T A5 ) RE S ) R B B RE 2% 1Y
carrying amount of construction in progress of approximately M 1 B 49 62,382,000% 70 O L & ¢
HK$62,382,000. 5 TA% 2 R i LA

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#n 6 B 55 3R R B 5E ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BEF FEZH=+—HILEE

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15 @Yk
2020 2019
SRORE F UL
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#x T-# T
At beginning of year A 2,002,606 2,091,000
Addition WE 1,462 1,166
Fair value gains, net O E BRI A 41,198 45,462
Exchange difference [EE 56, 2% % (133,283) (135,022)
At end of year HAEE R 1,911,983 2,002,606

The Group’s property interests are held to earn rental income or for

capital appreciation are measured using the fair value model.

AR B 5 AT DA R < A A S A
B2 Wy SERERR T PR A P (BT G 4 o

Amount recognised in profit or loss for investment A7 B B 0 S e B S 1 A 1 S
properties
2020 2019
“ERORE DR AE
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tl F il

Rental income 4B A 14,588 5,371
Direct operating expenses from properties that RKEEEMEBRAYEY

generated rental income BB E (1,498) 98)
Direct operating expenses from property that AR B R E A R B WA S

did not generate rental income BB E = (59)

SRR ERAE H A R A
2019/2020 4E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #¢ £ —

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

15 & W¥E s

Investment properties Relationship of
held by the Group in the Significant ~ unobservable 2020 2019
consolidated statement of Fair value Valuation unobservable  inputs for fair Amount Amount
financial position hierarchy technique input(s) value HK$’000 HKS$’000
AFHR
A B
EAA B MRz  ZRSRE SRk
S HR B kAR HHZ  WARUZ & &H
Pikidi 2 BBk AR CERE S BAZY W% TH#x T
Property in Yingkou (located at ~ Level 3 Direct comparison method Market price of ~ The higher the 92,056 98,330
Zhuoyue Building, Kunlun the comparable market price,
Main Street West, Bayuquan properties and the higher
District, Yingkou City, adjust to reflect the fair value
Liaoning Province, the PRC) the conditions
and locations
of the subject
properties
BOME (ERPEEEEE H=H HHE LB A itES T 55
Il i P L R W5 itk L -
[LEAEVNS) WARLEE  AFEEE
VYU
WEZ MR
LA E
Property in Zhongshan (located ~ Level 3 Direct comparison method Market price of The higher 1,755,936 1,840,321
at Daxing Hao Yuan, No. 69 the comparable  the market price,
Zhongshan Third Road, East properties and the higher
District, Zhongshan City, adjust to reflect the fair value
Guangdong Province, the conditions
the PRC) and locations
of the subject
properties
L (AR BRGS0 HE LB (<44 ¢/ES T 55 G
L 7 R 1 = B 69 Z i 5 e » TN
HHR) dfEdHE  ATHEERE
VYT ER
R T4 NV
Befir
Property in Jinggangshan Level 3 Direct comparison method Market price of ~ The higher the 63,991 63,955
(located at No. 1 Lan Hua the comparable market price,
Ping Road, Ciping Town, properties and the higher
Jinggangshan City, adjust to reflect the fair value
Jian City, the conditions
Jiangxi Province, the PRC) and locations
of the subject
properties
R i (BB P BAT G 5 =4 HHE LB A itES T 55
R I LR W5 itk L -
MAESEH1E) WARLHE  AFEEE
VYU
WEZ M
LA E

Crown International Corporation Limited
1 6 8 Annual Report 2019/2020



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BEF FEZH=+—HILEE

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Level 3 fair values of investment properties have been generally derived
using the sales comparison approach. Selling prices of comparable
properties in close proximity are adjusted for differences in key
attributes such as property size and quality. The most significant
input into this valuation approach is price per square metre and the

construction cost estimate.
There were no changes in valuation techniques during the year.

The fair value measurement information for the investment properties

in accordance with HKFRS 13 as at 31 March 2020 is set out below:

(a) Valuation basis

As at 31 March 2020, the fair values of the investment properties
located in cities of Zhongshan, Yingkou and Jinggangshan have
been arrived on the basis of valuation carried out on that date by
independent qualified professional valuers not connected to the
Group. The valuation of Zhongshan, Yingkou and Jinggangshan
was arrived at by reference to market evidence of transaction

prices for similar properties at similar location.

(b) Leasing arrangements

Investment properties located in Yingkou, Jinggangshan and
Zhongshan, PRC are leased to tenants under long-term operating

leases with rentals payable annually.

15 & WE s)

BB 2 — LA G B Lk R AR =
RO FAR o L B AT 3 2 VT BRI
EZ B RO RN S RN
7% TR R o UG 2 B
N5 W 0 B ST 7 K R MG B A T S 5 R
o

Al 4L 00 7 4 P Sl 06 2 )

42 FE 7 98 S 705 o ) 5 1 3 9% P 4R B G
EYER R REZAZHZA
AR BRI

(a) A fii % e

RERZREZA=ZT—H AR
LT i R R i 2 B
Y3 Z S fE T kR B A 4R S
$0E TR 7 2 8 ST A S A
T % H AT Z AL A o il T
B 0T R I B i A S Al TS
2 B B Z B 2 T 5
o A8 A R B

(b) AL
RIS o B T~ S 1 77 B ol
117 2 8 T 3 7 AR 0 R 01 2
AL T AL > 4548 OB 4 o

5 5 5 R AR 18 A LA W]
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE_FE -FEFE=ZH=4+—HILFE

16

170

FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE 16 %4 Vi ak A b 4w
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE i Z 4 ik ¥
INCOME
2020 2019
—“FRFE ZFNE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T T# T
Unlisted investment L RE
— Hong Kong equity securities, at fair value (note) — A TFHFIIEZ
BWRATE S () 1,765 -
Note: B &l =
The unlisted Hong Kong equity securities represented the investment in HIEE LW ZHmBRABHERNE—FKEB
5.96% (2019: Nil) equity interest of a private entity established in Hong JROL AN E#85.96% (=T —Juss - 18) it
Kong. The fair value loss of HK$935,000 (2019: Nil) is recognised as other A HE 25 M BE o AR N > AP 1H935,000
comprehensive expenses and is included in financial asset at fair value through Wt (TR —JUE - ) TR A At 2 i BH
other comprehensive income reserve of the Group under HKFRS 9 during the X M AR R A U B R A RSB BE T AR
year. The fair value of the unlisted equity securities as at 31 March 2020 was A 10 A VB R N At 2 TG WA 4 £l 45 - 48
measured using valuation technique with significant unobservable inputs as set BE - BE-F-FF=H=+—H L
out in Note 3.3. T B A S5 2 O T 4R B 3. 3 0 #y L
A TR TG e B A S P A BT

i i

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2019/2020



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BEF FEZH=+—HILEE

17 LEASE LIABILITIES 17 Al f B
The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified AR T 4R R CAE B2 T8 W s
retrospective method and adjusted the opening balances as at 1 April A 8 B e R B S 6% > MR %
2019 to recognise right-of-use assets relating to leases which were —JUAE DY H — H i B 4565 - DL R
previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. The Group B EA BT SRR
entered into a number of lease agreements for the use of office premises i AR 48 A o o SR 7R B
in Hong Kong and the PRC, with lease terms of 3 years. The net book RS THE o A4 B R 6 B A s B P B Ay
value of the Group’s lease liabilities was as follows: e 65T 3 2o TE AR B G R - AL
AR o ACHRE B Y LB 6 A MR T VR A
T

Lease

liabilities

AT £

HK$’000

T#L

As at 31 March 2019 RoE-NWE=ZA=+—H =

Initial application of HKFRS 16 B URME A s S i A B SR 16 9% 13,390

Restated balance at 1 April 2019 R JUEN ] — H R ES 2 A 13,390

Additions WA 7,204

Lease payments L 3 (8,157)

Interest expenses A8 B 32 780

Lease modification MEB % (1,943)

Exchange difference [ 3, 2 A (252)

As at 31 March 2020 REFRDRFZA=TH 11,022

5 5 5 R AR 18 A LA W]
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17 LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)

Future lease payments are due as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #¢ £ —

172

17 Ml A )
SR AL B 5K 2 B0 B

Minimum
lease
As at 31 March 2020 R REZN=Z1—H payments Interest  Present value
I AR RL B A Zip-S Bl
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x T#x T#x
Not later than one year R —a 8,666 (420) 8,246
Later than one year and not later —4E DL _FAH R i A AR
than two years 2,375 (105) 2,270
Later than two years and not later W 4R D), AR 08 4R
than five years 512 6) 506
11,553 (531) 11,022
Minimum
lease
As at 1 April 2019 WoZ-ENH —H payments Interest Present value
B (KL APk 1D SS BifE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
THT T#IT T#IT
Not later than one year A — A 6,975 (539) 6,436
Later than one year and not later — 4 DL B AH R A AR
than two years 7,199 (245) 6,954
14,174 (784) 13,390
Crown International Corporation Limited

Annual Report 2019/2020



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
#n 6 B 55 3R R B 5E ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BEF FEZH=+—HILEE

17 LEASE LIABILITIES (Continucd) 17 AL B (a0
2019
S
HKS$’000
THT
Minimum lease payments under operating leases AR P 558 AL T Y A0 L B A AR T R % S
recognised as an expense during the year 7,116
At 31 March 2019, the Group had commitments under non- RoZNEZA=Z+—H > REER
cancellable operating leases in respect of rented premises, which fall AN W HR 8 A0 L R DA AR B S A
due as follows: ZHBEWEZRENT
2019
—%
HK$’000
T#T
Not later than one year A i — 4 6,975
Later than one year and not later than five years — 4R P, AHOR B E AR 7,199
14,174
5500 B BRAE [ A R

2019/2020 4E 1 73
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #¢ £ —

174

FE=H=1—HILFE
18 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

18 fi 4 # R E

FOR SALE
HK$’000
T#T
At 1 April 2018 B )FENH—H 568,801
Additions WHE 226,051
Exchange difference [ 5o, 2 (36,089)
At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 RoE-NE=EA=+H—H R
WH—H 758,763
Additions WwE 162,190
Exchange difference [ 5o, 2 (53,977)
At 31 March 2020 REBREZA=1—H 866,976
Notes: Fff 1 -
(a) The amount of properties under development for sale and expected (a)  TH RIS A8 208 — 42 DLAR W Im] i) 5 4

to be recovered after more than one year is HK$866,976,000 (2019:

HK$758,763,000).

(b)  Properties under development for sale are situated on leasehold land (b)

located in the PRC.

(c)  Asat 31 March 2020, the carrying amount of interests in leasehold land (c)

defined as right-of-use assets were included in the carrying amount of

properties under development for sale of approximately HK$284,184,000

Crown International Corporation Limited

Annual Report 2019/2020

TR rh i 2 3R I 24 866,976,000 TG ( &
— U4 1 758,763,0008 08 ) ©

e B v Ay 0 v B A B b
I

MEROBREZA=Z+—H o RE R
A 3 7 o R e B Y IR TR A
284,184,000 G B 1 & 76 15 £ B /R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
g3 O 81 Ry R B 5E ()
For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE E CFE=ZH="1—HILEE
19 BB A
MR BE=ZHA=Z1—HZEREHN B

19 SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2020.

Place of incorporation/
establishment and

Principal activities and

ACEZE: 8 275

Particulars of issued
share capital/registered capital

Proportion of
ordinary shares

Name kind of legal entity place of operations and debt securities  held by the Group (%)
i3 2V % £if 2 V4 AEM
JR: 2 e il I A B i i 5 1 ¢ b
# i BTN LEEH KBRS 0 0 2 A (%)
Crown Entertainment Corporation Samoa Investment holding in Samoa 1,000,000 ordinary shares of *100%
I 708 B A A A ) Limited liability company 1T S 4R Mt US$1 each
BEBE G A H 1,000,000
W A1 98 70 2 3 A
Crown Finance Holdings Limited Hong Kong  Investment holding in Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%
SHEBEAERARA Limited liability company TERERETR 10,0009 7C
FEHMAR
Crown Finance Holdings Limited Samoa Investment holding in Samoa 10,000 ordinary shares of US$1 each *100%
2HEBEAERARA A Limited liability company 7T B M 10,000/
1 i A R A W A1 9 70 2 3 A
Crown Global Opportunity Investment Samoa Investment holding in Samoa 1,000 ordinary shares of 100%
Limited Limited liability company T B M US$1 each
ERHEHEEREAMAF i i R A 1,000/
B A 1 56 70 2 3 M
Crown International Investment Corp. Samoa Investment holding in Samoa 1,000 ordinary shares of 100%
Limited liability company O 4R US$1 each
B A A 1,000/
IR 1 9% 70 2 0 It
Crown International Resort Limited Hong Kong  Investment holding in Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%
FRIERAE R AT Limited liability company TER R AR 10,000% 75
FEARAR
Crown Land Corp. Limited Hong Kong Provision of administrative HK$10,000 100%
BHEFIMTEEHRA A Limited liability company services in Hong Kong 10,000% 7
FEARAR TEF WSRO AT B B
Crown Tianhe Resources Limited Hong Kong  Investment holding in Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%
R G EAH WA Limited liability company TER R AR 10,000% 75
FEARAR
Grandlife Healthcare Group Limited Hong Kong  Investment holding in Hong Kong HK$500,000 51%
FKREREEEERAF Limited liability company TER R AR 500,000 7
FEARAR
Grandlife Healthcare Holdings Limited Samoa Investment holding in Samoa 380,000 ordinary shares of *51%
Limited liability company TP T B M US$1 each
B GR RLA H 380,000/8
B A 156 0 2 M
B ERER A A B A F

2019/2020 4E
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19 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation/
establishment and

19 W& A Al (s0)

Principal activities and

Particulars of issued

share capital/registered capital

Proportion of
ordinary shares

Name kind of legal entity place of operations and debt securities  held by the Group (%)

LRV CHGRA Ak

JB L B ik 6 A o 20 D o

HH EH RN TEEHRBERGY B 2 kA (%)

Jumbo China Investment Group Lid Samoa Investment holding in Samoa 2,000,000 ordinary shares of 100%
Limited liability company TR PR T B M US$1 each
E P AT A R 2,000,000/
M A 156 0 2

Jumbo China Investment Led Hong Kong  Investment holding in Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%
BRI E A A Limited liability company FERER AR 10,0009 78

BHA R A

“U” Inns (Yingkou) Hotel Management PRC Property investment in PRC Registered capital of 100%
Corporation Limited 2 Wholly foreign-owned PR ENE HK$25,600,000
TRINZAS (8 1) 0 05 15 BIAT 24 W) © enterprise A A
A AN 4K 25,600,0003 76

“U” Inns & Hotel (Jing Gang Shan Shi) PRC Hotel investment in PRC Registered capital of 100%
Limited 2 Wholly foreign-owned 7 v B A RMB50,000,000
TREVZARIE G (B 1L ) A7 2 ) & enterprise L A
o 2 A i 4 3 A BH50,000,0007E

World Opal Investment Limited Hong Kong  Investment holding in Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%
JURCE§ g c) Y Limited liability company TERERETER 10,0003 7T

WA RAH

Zhongshan Hualian Industrial PRC Property investment in PRC Registered capital of 100%
Development Corporation Limited * Wholly foreign-owned R R G % RMB50,000,000
ULy 7 B S A A enterprise [ERUBSEN
o 4 A 43 N R #50,000,00078

T B I A A BRI A PR ] PRC Provision of comprehensive Registered capital of 51%
Wholly foreign-owned healthcare planning and RMB100,000,000
enterprise management services A A
o A AN K SR AR SR 0 L AR #100,000,00078

35 KRR () A R e PRC Provision of comprehensive Registered capital of 51%
Wholly foreign-owned healthcare planning and RMB15,000,000
enterprise management services ik A
PR 4 A 4 3 S KA SR 2 AR #15,000,00078

176
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19 W& A Al (s

19 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation/

establishment and

Principal activities and

Particulars of issued
share capital/registered capital

Proportion of
ordinary shares

Name kind of legal entity place of operations and debt securities  held by the Group (%)
i35V [k £if ' v REH
R % It ¥ A & i 4635 0 I B 4
#ik SRR FEEHRB RS i 0 Z A (%)
S A A ) PRC  Provision of financial consultancy Registered capital of 100%
Wholly foreign-owned service in PRC RMB50,000,000
enterprise 7 H R R 5 L Al A
R 4 FEAM A AR 50,000,007
e B P M () R ] PRC Provision of comprehensive Registered capital of 100%
Wholly foreign-owned healthcare planning and RMB50,000,000
enterprise management services [RUAZES
o 2 AT 4 3 B KA SR L M A EM50,000,0007
AL TR A R A PRC Investment holding in PRC Registered capital of 100%
Wholly foreign-owned T h BB e I RMB180,000,000
enterprise Ak fit A
o A ST A\ Ri180,000,0007
o R AT A ) PRC Hotel and property investment Registered capital of 100%
Wholly foreign-owned in PRC RMB425,620,000
enterprise e o B4R 0 e 3 i fit A
U ES S ke s N R 425,620,007
* Shares held directly by the Company. JBe 4y A O B BLER R A ©

A

their Chinese names.

These companies do not have English names. These are only translation of

B BR R4 1 A FR A
2019/2020 4E

b AT I o B AL
Hrp S Bl o
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE_FE -FEFE=ZH=4+—HILFE

20 OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS 20 Ui WSk B~ B kO K
AND DEPOSITS %4
2020 2019
—FFF ZF N
HKS$’000 HK$000
T#x T#T
Non-current Ik i By
Rental deposits A 4 699 1,467
699 1,467
Current o
Other receivables A 8 Wik T 9,828 9,200
Prepayments and deposits (note) TEAT 3K O0E T 4% 4 (FEek) 256,455 159,041
266,283 168,241
266,982 169,708
Note: B 5l -
Prepayments and deposits mainly included prepayments in the amount of T A I B e 4 =R A 5 AR A B TR AROE A
approximately HK$232,052,000 (equivalent to RMB212,502,000) (2019: 232,052,000% 76 (FH % i A R#212,502,000
HK$157,844,000 equivalent to RMB135,002,000) made by the Group which J6) (= —JU4F £ 157,844,000% 70 1 5 7
represent prepayments for procuring the acquisition of a potential property A RH135,002,00078) > % F 4R B e S o
development project in Weihai, PRC. The amounts will be transferred to B i 9 — I T A 0 36 % e I R LA AR
properties under development for sale when the Group obtains contractual TH o i A A T AT R T b S S A A
usage rights of the relevant lands and properties. FIREWE > 3% SR E M H S 2B R RTY
£
21 TRADE RECEIVABLES 21 MEWCRT 5 Rk
Trade receivables generally are paid in arrear at the beginning of each JRE WAL B 5 M ok — B AP A REL 2B 4 BE 2 4
rental year. B AT o
2020 2019
—RoRE —E Ak
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#T T#t
Trade receivables JFE W B 5 R Ak 9,626 -

Crown International Corporation Limited
1 7 8 Annual Report 2019/2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BEF FEZH=+—HILEE

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

There is no specific credit term granted to customers. Further details
on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from trade
receivables are set out in Note 3.1(a). The ageing analysis of net trade

receivables, based on the invoice dates, as at end of the reporting

21 MEWCE 5 IR (80

AEENEIEFERIBRTER A
I A 488 [ £ R ORE B ik B R K
A AR B B 2 A — 2 AN O B
3.1(a) o A HR IR - HE KBTS Bk 3

period is as follow: WEREHMZER W
2020 2019
e
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#L THoT
1 to 3 months 13838 A 9,626 -

RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES AND

22 3% WA T AT &G B R B

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERBE5EY
2020 2019
“RRE . ZFNE
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#T T# 0
Bank balances SRAT Hh Bk 1,429 140,318
Cash on hand T B & 72 5
Cash and cash equivalents Bl BB 45 1,501 140,323
Restricted bank balances 3 B 1] 56 SRAT 45 iR 12,191 26,750

As at 31 March 2020, cash and cash equivalents and restricted bank
balances of approximately HK$12,997,000 (2019: HK$159,723,000)
respectively are denominated in RMB and deposited with banks in the
PRC. RMB is not a freely convertible currency in the international
market. The conversion of RMB into foreign currencies and remittance
of RMB out of the PRC is subject to the rules and regulations of

exchange control promulgated by the government of the PRC.

W _FRE=ZA=Z+—H>
#12,997,000% ¢ ( =& —Ju&:
159,723,000 76 ) Z Bl 4 X Bl & E1EY
VA B % Wl 45 T 14T 45 i AN RO BT
SEAF TR P Z AR AT o H BT ARER
R AE B R 3 b R ol A RS
A AP Bt N RS I th b [ ZH 2
BURT AT =2 A R 457 1) 50 ) % A5 481 ot A58
Fﬁo

5 5 5 R AR 18 A LA W]
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE_FE -FEFE=ZH=4+—HILFE

23 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 23 JC Al Ao sk B B Mt £ 4
2020 2019
“RORE SEE
HK$’000 HKS$’000
T# L T# T
Non-current I B
Leasehold improvements payable TS 2 5 B A 3R I 5,623 6,608
5,623 6,608
Current 1B
Construction and development cost payables JRE ) 3 58 )% % g pl AR 197,845 150,328
Contract liabilities (note) TR AR (R 102,805 29,590
Interest payable JE A ) B 10,077 1,494
Others oAt 45,956 40,111
356,683 221,523
362,306 228,131
Note: B 5l -
The contract liabilities arising from pre-sales of properties of Weihai project BRAMETTEEIE B Y EEE R gk
and provision of comprehensive healthcare planning and management services. R SR i) 45 B B T A A o K E A A AR
The contract liabilities represents receipt of advance payments from pre- RREF_FF=EA=Z1T—HILFERH
sales of properties amounting to HK$72,560,000 during the year ended 31 B 1 2 FH K I 72,560,000% 76 ( ZF —Ju
March 2020 (2019: HK$29,590,000) and receipt of advances from provision £ :29,590,00095 70 ) K #7243t At e 5% ) 45 B
of comprehensive healthcare planning and management services amounting to MR Z BBUK I 655,0008 78 ( ZF—JudE -
HK$655,000 (2019: Nil). %)

Crown International Corporation Limited
1 8 O Annual Report 2019/2020
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BEF FEZH=+—HILEE

24 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income tax levied by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to

settle the balances on a net basis. The offset amounts are as follows:

24 Y %€ i 15 BE 2E B £1 4

B AT AT R AN T st B SO O
SHL PS80 0 0 A AT HR RS > T T A
Tt B 4 i L — R B T A A
JE R U 8 7] — BBk B B el = e
BBUA B > B R i o 45 00 R
IR - B 1 28 2 BT 490 i B EL AR LA
RS - B BT

2020 2019

ZRIRE ZF S

HK$’000 HK$’000

TG T-#I0

Deferred income tax assets 95 2 JT 459 Bl A 760 814
Deferred income tax liabilities AL Fir 19 B A AR (396,987) (414,297)
(396,227) (413,483)

The components of deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the movements

during the year ended 31 March 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2020

RREE R R CE I
S AR - B A T BT P e
WL HEAE T A BLYE A (L) Z ALK
RSB T -

BREF-REZ A= HILEE

Fair value Fair value

Accelerated change of gain on

depreciation investment  acquisition of
allowances Tax losses properties a subsidiary Total

B —

B¥IE WE 2 2
T 47 4 45 L s 1L AT ATHER At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T T
Ac 1 April 2019 BZZ-RENA—H 64 750 (405,109) (9,188) (413,483)

(Charged)/credited to the consolidated (B E) /GG A 2R &

statement of comprehensive income - - (10,300) - (10,300)
Exchange difference E i 7% 4) (50) 27,059 551 27,556
At 31 March 2020 REZFZRE=ZA=1—H 60 700 (388,350) (8,637) (396,227)

5 5 5 R AR 18 A LA W]
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE_FE -FEFE=ZH=4+—HILFE

24

182

DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2019

24 YEHE BT 15 B ¥ A 2L £1 4%
(4)

BREZZ-NFEZA=ZTHIEEE

Fair value Fair value

Accelerated change of gain on

depreciation investment acquisition of
allowances Tax losses properties a subsidiary Total

W — P

BREME i 2 ) 2
8 BB AT ATFEEF At
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
T T T Tl Tl
At 1 April 2018 RoB-N\ENA—H 68 802 (420,550) (9,823) (429,503)

(Charged)/credited to the consolidated statement MERH) /G AEA 2Tk &

of comprehensive income - - (11,365) - (11,365)
Exchange difference I 3t 25 (4) (52) 26,806 635 27,385
At31 March 2019 REZZ-NEZA=ZF—H 64 750 (405,109) (9,188) (413,483)

Unrecognised deferred income tax assets are as follows:

ARHE R ZIEIE T BE AW T

2020 2019

g BN

HK$’000 HK$’000

T# T T-#o0

Unutilised tax losses R By 2 B IE i 1 49,419 43,510

At 31 March 2020, the deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses of
approximately HK$293,651,000 (31 March 2019: HK$258,386,000)
have not been recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams to utilise such losses. Unrecognised tax losses amounted to
HK$282,282,000, (31 March 2019: HK$248,069,000) has no expiry
date and certain unrecognised tax losses amounted to HK$11,369,000
(31 March 2019: HK$10,317,000) expire within five years under the

current tax legislation of the respective jurisdictions.
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MRoF_RE=ZHA=1+—H -BEHE
£ #1293,651,000% 7 (ZF—LEZN
=-+—H :258,386,000% i) Kl H & 7
B A B 4E 2 % A 2R VR A i TE
VA 74 A% R AR B T A o AR AH R )
VR i 2 BUAT R R - R 2
R T 5 0 T 4E % 282,282,000 08 (
Z—IE=ZA =4 —H :248,069,000%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#n 6 B 55 3R R B 5E ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BEF FEZH=+—HILEE

25 fif &%

25 BORROWINGS

2020 2019
SRERE E
HK$’000 HK$’000
TG Tt
Entrusted loan (note a) Tt (Mska) 546,000 584,600
Bonds payable (note b) AT 65 27 (BfiED ) 52,503 13,446
598,503 598,046
Less: Amount due within one year shown W PR B 2 R
under current liabilities: W FENERZ S

Entrusted loan i (546,000) -
Bonds payable JE A A 55 (14,273) -
Amount shown under non-current liabilities BN IERB ARz & 38,230 598,046

Notes: i

(a)

On 9 November 2018, B ifF B4 B M R & %A IR A " (“Weihai
Runhe”) , an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an entrusted debt investment agreement with Asia Alliance
Asset Management Co., Ltd. (“Asia Alliance Asset”), an independent
third party, through Harbin Bank Tianjin Branch pursuant to which
Weihai Runhe obtained a loan in the amount of RMB660,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$792,000,000) for a term loan of
3 years, bearing interest at 6.6% per annum (“Asia Alliance Asset
Loan”). The borrowing is secured by the pledge of Weihai Runhe
construction-in-progress ‘Real Estate Registered Certificate” which will
be in custody by Harbin Bank Tianjin Branch. The funding would be
used for construction work of Golden Beach No. 1 Project. The final
drawdown amount of this loan was RMB500,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$584,600,000) and the remaining undrawn facility
amount was lapsed. This loan is guaranteed by Mr. Meng Jin Long,
being the legal representative of Weihai Runhe and a director of the
Company. The entrusted loan was a three-year term and the repayment
are by installments until 27 November 2021. As at 31 March 2020,
the scheduled amount repayable within one year was amounted to
RMB260,780,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$284,772,000), and
after one year but within two years was amounted to RMB239,220,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$261,228,000).

As at 31 March 2020, the Group has not paid one instalment of
interest payment of the entrusted loan with an aggregate amount of
HK$6,049,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB5,539,000) which was
due and payable on 20 March 2020, based on the loan agreement, the
lender has the right to demand immediate repayment, and as a result,
the bank has the right to serve a notice and require Weihai Runhe to
repay the entire entrusted loan of principal amount of approximately
HK$546,000,000 (equivalent to RMB500,000,000) as at 31 March
2020, together with the interest and penalty, immediately. Accordingly,
the entire entrusted loan is treated as immediately due and payable and
classified as current liabilities as at 31 March 2020.

() RZF—)4FE+—HRH > KAFR—FK
MR R Z 2B W& A ) > i s
REZEGRAF (NRMEMAR ) B
W ST A B B A W R A7 8 —
LWL = I R B A
w] ([ WL e | ) BT S Bt A
Toh i - R UL > R T R A T BN R
660,000,0007C ( FH # # £1792,000,000
W0 ) YRR > BERAE I R =4 - HRAR
FlRe o5 ([ I B A fEak ) -
RV B REER Mg TR
[ 7 B 3 8 Gk ik W | A 49K 32 38 v 10 9
AT R TR o FHIH SE30E &A% 1
A4 VB — SR IE OB SE R B R
PEIA A N R¥E500,000,0000C (FHE
A #1584,600,000% 76 ) > i F AR HUK
Tl 4 A IR o R TE K T R
REERBEARKRAFNER G L
AR ZRTEERLZFH R
EHEF_—F+—H 1+ tHu
AR - R F_RFE=ZH=1—
H > THAEAE—4F OB 1 & 3 0 N R
260,780,0007C (#H ¥ 7 #1284,772,000
eIt o S — AR AR E AE W AR Y AR
&% A N R #5239,220,0007C (FH B
#1261,228,0009 75 ) ©

MRE-R_BEZH=Z+—H AR&EH
MARMBER R FE=ZATHE
Wy — 2 516,049,000 70 (FHE R A
A R ¥5,539,00000 ) W F1 8 A 3% > B8
Bk 1 - B RE SRS B R K > A
M SRAT R RESE H W > R B R
THRORN —F - FRE=ZA=+—H
A A4 #1546,000,000H 7T (FHE A
RH500,000,00070 ) 1 2 56 88 5k 48 [7] A1)
B E K o B Bl BREER N %
CREZHA=ZT—H B BB
T AF o Sl 4 8 % B £ 4 o

B BR R4 1 A FR A
2019/2020 4E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
¥ B B 5 ¥R R Bt 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE_FE -FEFE=ZH=4+—HILFE

25 BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

On 28 November 2018, the Company as issuer and Head & Shoulders
Securities Limited as placing agent, among other parties, entered into
a placing agreement pursuant to which the Company to issue a 7% per
annum bonds (the “Bonds”) in an aggregate principal amount of up to
HK$100,000,000 maturing on the second anniversary of the issue date
of the Bonds at the placing price equal to 100% of the principal amount
of the Bonds (the “Placing”). The purpose of raising this Bonds was

intended to be used for general working capital of the Group.

As at 31 March 2020, the outstanding amount of the Bonds issued
was HK$55,500,000 (31 March 2019: HK$15,000,000). An upfront
commission of 11% on the principal amount of the Bonds was paid to
the placing agent and this commission was amortised to the profit and
loss throughout the entire period of the Bonds issued. Accordingly, the
unamortised commission as at 31 March 2020 was HK$2,997,000 (31
March 2019: HK$1,554,000). This bond payable is guaranteed by the
largest shareholder of the Company, Ms. Hung Man.

26 SHARE CAPITAL

25 1 8 (@)

Wik (A7)

(b)

H_F—)\E+—AZ+NH KA
Al (MR BTN ) B A i 2 LA A
(1 2 T 5 AR ) B3 Al 3T 49 7 5T L S
B W k> PR UL > AR A F G T BATAE B
7% 2GS (T ]) » ARG R w2
100,000,000%57C » A E 8847 H B Z 58
ZRAEBI > TR A R R SR A A A
2100% (TR 1) o 4768 25 B A sk I
15 P M A AR T 2 — I s o

N _F_FE=ZA=Z+—HOBAT
155 5 11 o A 4 4 %1 % 55,500,00078 (=
Z—EZHZ=+—H :15,000,000%
JC) o AH I AR R AR 4 A1 9% 0 T AT 1
LTI TR E B > 0 % 00 4 € i 5
AT 05 7 W 280 0 T 80 6 4R 2% - RO >
REDZRE=ZHA=+—HWRE
S 4 %52,997,000% 70 (2 —JUE=
H=4—H :1,554,0008 56 © % K& £
7 AR A W] de K e R R R 5 AR -

26 JEAR

Share capital

Number of JBe A
shares HKS$’000
by ¥ H T#
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: CEEAT B B R N R
At 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019 and W NENH—H-
31 March 2020 “EEEAETTHR
R OFREZA=ZTH 3,430,000,000 1,979,067
27 CASH FLOW INFORMATION 27 B4 R
(a) Notes supporting cash flow statement (a) B4R R Mk
2020 2019
SRR S
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x T#T
Cash and cash equivalents comprise ReRBA&SH0m e
Bank balances and cash on hand AT LR K T H Bl & 1,501 140,323
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
#n 6 B 55 3R R B 5E ()

%nMﬁmm&dﬂAQMZHOﬁﬁiﬁgﬁﬂ?ﬁfﬁ?fi””ﬂiﬁﬁ%
27 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) 27 BEWEER )
(b) B9 B pr A A 2 A 4 IR

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities
Interest Lease
payables Borrowings liabilities Total
HEA ) & e AL At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
T T T T
(note 23) (note 25) (note 17)
(BE23) (Hik25) (WE17)
At 1 April 2018 o) ENA—H 26 160,000 - 160,026
Changes from cash flows: BAREED:
Proceeds from issue of bonds BAT 05 P A kR - 13,350 - 13,350
Drawdown of entrusted loan RMEFLER - 582,850 - 582,850
Repayment of entrusted loan B EFER - (149,210) - (149,210)
Interest paid [EREEDSS (34,938) - - (34,938)
Total changes from financing REBMENHALRERE
cash flows . (34,938) 46990 - 412,052
Other changes: HAbszm:
Exchange differences M 3 2% B (22) (9,040) - (9,062)
Finance costs B A 36,428 96 - 36,524
Total other changes HoAbsE B A ______3@?0_6 _______ ( §,24_4)__________—_______2Z,§6_2_
At 31 March 2019 REF-WE=A=+—H 1494 ¢ 598046 - 599,540
Effect of adoption of AT s
HKFRS 16 UG Z s mo13390 13390
Restated balance at 1 April 2019 REF—NLENA—H
REF) 2 Ktk 1,494 598,046 13,390 612,930
Changes from cash flows: BA&RBEED:
Proceeds from issue of bonds BATE SR P aE - 36,045 - 36,045
Repayment of principal portion of 1R & A EZ AL 4
lease liabilities - - (7,377) (7,377)
Repayment of interest portion of HREMEAEZAN S
lease liabilities - - (780) (780)
Interest paid B B (31,679) - - (31,679)
Total changes from financing KHMEMRLFEREH
cash flows Bk ] (31,679) 36,045 (8,157) (3,791)

SRR ERAE H A R A
2019/2020 4E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
¥ B B 5 ¥R R Bt 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE_FE -FEFE=ZH=4+—HILFE

27 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) 27 BlER AR w0
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) B NG W) 7 2k 2 £ 40 Bk
activities (Continued) (#1)
Interest Lease
payables Borrowings liabilities Total
HEAS A B fii £t iNEgER it
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x T#x T#x T#x
(note 23) (note 25) (note 17)
(H¥iik23) (Hit2s) (Hrak17)
Other changes: ) :
Increase in lease liabilities from new ] H A EH W2
leases MEH R - - 7,204 7,204
Lease modification HEBEYL = = (1,943) (1,943)
Exchange differences E 5t 2 % (945) (38,600) (252) (39,797)
Finance costs I AR 41,207 3,012 780 44,999
Total other changes Jofb 2 B A o 402e2 (35588) 5780 10,463
At 31 March 2020 BRER-REZNZ—H 10,077 598,503 11,022 619,602

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

&r 0 B 5 HR R Pt 5 (@

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BEF FEZH=+—HILEE

28 7R IE

28 COMMITMENTS

(a) Lease commitments

Operating lease commitments — where the Group is the lessor

At 31 March 2020 and 2019, the Group had contracted with

tenants for the following minimum lease receivables:

() HEAR

AR AR — KBS 75 HI RN

RO RER R AN
Sb B AR SR AT S 4

ZH KRB W R E W -
2020 2019
SRR ZFELE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T 0 T#o0
Not later than 1 year 8 3 — A 39,464 14,563
Later than 1 year and not later than 2 years —4E P, BB AR B I AR 37,851 42,127
Later than 2 years and not later than 3 years . 4E DL _FH R il = 48 37,414 40,406
Later than 3 years and not later than 4 years ~ =4E D, I fH A # # DY 42 37,532 30,460
Later than 4 years and not later than 5 years  PU4E DL I B S # # 4R 37,601 49,544
Over five years 36 AR 345,346 408,793
535,208 585,893

Operating lease receivables represent future aggregate minimum

lease receipts by the Group from non-cancellable operating leases

of its investment properties. Typically, leases are negotiated and

rentals are fixed for lease term of nine to fifteen years.

(b) Capital commitments

As at 31 March 2020, the Group has capital expenditure

contracted for but not provided in the consolidated financial

A8 2 LR MR MR QA A 5 i
U g E AT § YN
W B 2z A 2R 4 A (0K AR o — JBE
W o R A RERE v - A
FLII P IUAFE B A TR

BRI
REBRZRESA=+—H - AL
B T SCAR £ S A s

(b)

statements below in respect of the construction of the properties: 36 T AT A H R 8 4 00 A BE 32
2020 2019

g R UE

HK$°000 HK$’000

T#T THT

Construction of properties jS /3 121,120 179,256

SRR ERAE H A R A
2019/2020 4E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
¥ B B 5 ¥R R Bt 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE_FE -FEFE=ZH=4+—HILFE

29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29 BH Bk 05 2 5

The following transactions were carried out with related parties during FERNEBB T EITZRGEINWT -

the year.

Key management compensation 2 B4 PH el

Key management includes directors and senior management. The P R R AR B o

compensation paid or payable to key management for employee i B BS LA sl B Ao o A B g 2 il

services is shown below: BIRWT

2020 2019
o E
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# T Tt

Directors’ fee WHA A 3,783 5,287

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits Wt 4 B At 0 1 B 269 -

Pension costs — MPF IR A A — o ) A B 4 21 32

4,073 5,319
30 PLEDGE OF ASSETS 30 B HE
As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, the following items were used to MR RERR-NFE=ZA=Z+—
secure loan facilities granted to the Group: H > F 50 4 36 5 Y 5 AR 42 T AR 4R I Y
B -

(i) Pledge of the construction-in-progress “Real Estate Registered () EW BRI ERE TREN A
Certificate” held by Weihai Runhe, which represents the hotel ) 2 B wr B - e AR R 4 T # A
development under construction in progress and the properties TEM a4 K sk 18 2 AE P 2
under development for sale as set out in Note 14 and Note 18 EEREEEREP ¥
respectively.

(ii) Pledge of the entire share capital RMB425,620,000 of Weihai (i) B30 B T R W A B AR N R
Runhe. 425,620,0007C °

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#n 6 B 55 3R R B 5E ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BEF FEZH=+—HILEE

31 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 31 AN ) 2 B8R LR B bk

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

i 5 B)

COMPANY
2020 2019
SRERE E
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 TG Tt
Assets A
Non-current assets I By
Interests in subsidiaries T B 2w Z RE 25 1,522,031 46,338
1,522,031 46,338
Current assets i
Other receivables, prepayments and A 8 WK T~ LA AR
deposits V&= 270 309
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFEE Wic B g A ] ek T 22,043 1,476,729
Cash and cash equivalents B4 RBE&SED 9 142
22,322 1,477,180
Total assets hagi3 L | _115_4_4_,3_513_ _____ 1_, 5_2_3_,?1_8_ B
Equity B 2
Capital and reserves A B fii A
Share capital it A% 1,979,067 1,979,067
Accumulated losses Y ] (a) (494,256) (472,436)
Total equity B 2 A 1,484,811 1,506,631
Current liabilities U RER
Other payables and accruals At JRE A 5k T e M it £ 6,912 3,355
Borrowings & & 14,273 -
Amounts due to subsidiaries JRE A B I A R 3K JE 127 86
21,312 3,441
Non-current liabilities It B £ 45
Borrowings & & 38,230 13,446
Total liabilities a0 59,542 16,887
Total equity and liabilities il 2 R £ 0 AR 1,544,353 1,523,518

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of

Directors on 12 June 2020 and was signed on its behalf

AAFZEEAMRKEERTR -F
FENATZHAH - W THALR

RERTRE
Ms. HUNG Man Mr. MENG Jin Long
e &4 W A ek
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Executive Director
AT A HITEF

SRR ERAE H A R A
2019/2020 4E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
¥ B B 5 ¥R R Bt 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE_FE -FEFE=ZH=4+—HILFE

31 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 31 A ) 2 B8R LR B bk

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE f % B (m0)
COMPANY (Continued)
(a) Reserve movement of the Company (a) AN W) 2 il i 5 )
Accumulated
losses
Bl is i
HK$’000
Foo
At 31 March 2018 R-F—-NE=ZH=Z+—H (452,269)
Loss for the year FENEHE (20,167)
At 31 March 2019 W _E—NWFE=H=1+—H (472,436)
Loss for the year FEREE (21,820)
At 31 March 2020 R R RAEZA=ZTH (494,256)

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

&r 0 B 5 HR R Pt 5 (@

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BEF FEZH=+—HILEE

32 EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The outbreak of COVID-19 since early January 2020 has affected
business and economic activity in the PRC and beyond. The operations
of the Group has deteriorated due to COVID-19 pandemic as one of
the main operations of the Group is sales of properties in the PRC. As
some lockdown measures had been implemented in the PRC during
the COVID-19 pandemic, the sales activities of the Group were
completely suspended from late January 2020 to end of March 2020.
Even though the lockdown measures were released when the pandemic
situation improved, economic conditions have not been immediately
return to the level before COVID-19. The Group has already assessed
the overall impact of the situation on the operation of the Group and
taken all possible effective measures to limit and keep the impact in
control. The Group will keep continuous attention on the change of
situation and make timely response and adjustments in the future but

the estimate of its financial effect cannot be made at this stage.

32 Wk A% 0

H R R4 A BIAS - 0756 il % A
B CUARC R R v (o e KL At M st 4 7 S A0
A 5 o P IR R e i R KA > B A
S J Y SRS AL > R 2 A AR B Y R 3
B 2 — R A R I P A S B o A e i
FRARFUAT I - [ P9 TG e 9 4 0 - AR
FMZHEEHA _F_FF AT
B R URAE = A S0 T B R 50 o
Bifl R B AR AR > B ol A A B - AEL
AREYE G VLTS AR B 7 BT[] 18 30 37 568 Ml 48 Wir
ZKF o A SR [ LAl A B AV D0 AR
A R - N DRI — D) T R
VA 280 VA 6K 5 B I % S 5 B e
PRF 1 32 1 IR 2 9 = A 4R 51 48 A A
A DU B A - AR R AT % IR R
A B > (E B R B JHE 3 A w I 6 B B

.
LR

5 5 5 R AR 18 A LA W]
mwwmgﬁ 191



Financial Summary

87} 15 1 2

The following is a summary of the consolidated results of the Group for the A A ) A 5 3 AR B B TR 2 A S A M e

last five financial periods. mEe
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
ZE-ANE ZF-LE 220\ ZR-UE ZEOR4e
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
T T SR T Tt
Revenue W 25 3,514 12,024 4,995 5,371 14,914
Profit before income tax Wik e 45 A5 A ¥ A 218,764 123,300 109,610 14,765 21,968
Income tax expense Jir 43 B8 e S (46,498) (41,960) (895) (10,974) (13,168)
Profit for the year A 1 1 A 172,266 81,340 108,715 3,791 8,800

Profit attributable to owners of YNNG X EDN
the Company HEAY 2 172,266 81,179 108,716 3,791 9,379

The following is a summary of the total assets and liabilities of the Group AKEHR _-F—ANFE _F—LE _F

and equity attributable to owners of the Company as at 31 March 2016, —NE-ZE-NERZEZEE=A
2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020. =+ —HZEEAME - AR AN E] B
HNREAERE RS Mk T o

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

RN ZF-LE ZZ-0A\E ZR-E SRR

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

T T RV T T

Total assets HEAEME 1,962,452 1,984,419 2,864,473 3,270,544 3,275,774
Total liabilities AEAH (748,941) (768,836) (702,044) (1,242,723)  (1,373,713)

Net assets BEFH 1,213,511 1,215,583 2,162,429 2,027,821 1,902,061

Equity attributable to owners of N/NEIE ZEDN

the Company JEAG HE 25 1,213,511 1,215,430 2,162,269 2,027,821 1,901,146
Non-controlling interests T I e 2 - 153 160 - 915
Total equity T £ A 1,213,511 1,215,583 2,162,429 2,027,821 1,902,061

Crown International Corporation Limited
1 9 2 Annual Report 2019/2020



International

Crown International Corporation Limited
L5 BRERAE A PR A )

Suite 902, 9th Floor,
Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

VA
V0 1 85 P BRI B
99025

WWW.Crownicorp.com




	封面
	目錄
	公司資料
	主席報告書
	管理層討論及分析
	董事簡介
	企業管治報告
	環境、社會及管治報告
	董事會報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	財務摘要
	封底



